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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable President 
and Members of the Council 
St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
LaPlace, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of St. John the Baptist Parish Council (the "Parish") as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Parish's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective fmancial position of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Parish as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

We did not audit the financial statements of St. John the Baptist Parish Library, which represents 100 
percent of the assets, net position, and revenues of the discretely presented component unit as of December 
31, 2022. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our 
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for St. John the Baptist Parish Library, is based solely 
on the report of the other auditors. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the Parish and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

1 



01I P&N

 

Posttethwaite & Netterviilk 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Parish's ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the fmancial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Parish's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Parish's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

'144 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, the budgetary comparison information, the Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB 
Liability and Related Ratios, the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability for the 
Retirement Systems, the Schedule of Contributions to Each Retirement System, and the Notes to Required 
Supplementary Information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Parish's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements, the schedule of compensation paid to St. John the Baptist Parish council members, the schedule 
of compensation, benefits, and other payments to the parish president, the justice system funding schedule — 
receiving entity-cash basis presentation, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other 
auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements, the schedule of compensation paid to St. John the Baptist Parish council 
members, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to the parish president, the justice 
system funding schedule — receiving entity-cash basis presentation, and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic fmancial statements as a 
whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 
comprises the statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditors' report 
thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not 
express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material rnisstatement of the other information 
exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 29, 
2023, on our consideration of the Parish's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Parish's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Parish's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Coollauxvil> 1. kotauaL 
Metairie, Louisiana 
September 29, 2023 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH C'OUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOIFISI.ANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

This section of the St. John the Baptist Parish Council's fmancial report presents our discussion 
and analysis of the Parish's financial performance during the year that ended on December 31, 
2022. Please read it in conjunction with thc transmittal letter at the front of this report and the 
Parish's tinancial statements, which follow this section. 

FINANCLAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of St. John the Baptist Parish Council exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by approximately S189 milhon (net position) at 
December 31, 2022. Of this amount approximately $146 million is net investment in capital assets. 
The Pansh has an unrestricted net position (deficit) balance of approximately $(26.2) million in the 
2overnmental activities and $(10.0) million in its business-type activities. In total, the net position 
of the Parish decreased in 2022 by approximately $19.0 million. 

As of the close of the current year. the Parish's governmental funds reported combined ending fimd 
balances of approximately $86.2 million, an increase of approximately S23.5 million in comparison 
with the prior year. At the end of the current year, unassigned fluid balance for the General Fund 
was approximately $5.8 million, or 51% of the total General Fund expenditures. 

The Parish was struck by Hurricane Ida on August 29, 2021. The storm caused major damage 
throughout the Parish and increased costs across several funds and departments. The Parish sought 
reimbursement of eligible expenditures via the Federal Emergency Management Agency's 
(FEMA) disaster assistance program and continues remediation 

The Parish's total debt increased by approximately $40.3 million during the current year. This 
change was due to scheduled debt payments approximately $7.5 million and additional debt 
incurred of S47.8 million, $30 million of which was taken out to recover from Hurricane Ida 
damages while waiting for funding from FEMA. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

This annual report consists of four parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section). the 
basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that 
presents combining statements for non-major governmental funds. The basic financial statements 
include two kinds of statements that present different views of the Parish. 

The tirst two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide hoth long-term and 
short-term information ahout the Parish's overall financial status. The remaining statements are 
fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the Pansh government, reporting the 
Parish's operations in more detail than the govemment-wide statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The 2overnment-wide financial statements report information about the Parish as a whole using 
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net 
position includes all of the government's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement 
of actnities regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

- 5 - 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH C'OUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOIFISI.ANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

The two go% ernment-wide statements report the Parish's net position and how they have changed. 
The government-wide financial statements are divided into three categories: 

• ernmental activities — This category includes most of the Parish's basic services such 
as public safety. public works, economic development and general government. Sales taxes 
and property taxes finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type activities — This category reflects operations that are financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private busmesses where the Pansh charges a fee fbr services it 
provides. The Parish's water, sewer, solid waste, and mosquito abatement systems are 
included here 

• Component Unit - This category includes the St. John Parish Lihrary. This entity is legally 
separate from the Parish, but the Parish is financially accountable for it The Library issues 
separate fulancial statements and has a vear end of December 31. Complete financial 
statements may be obtained directly from the administrative office of St. John the Baptist 
Parish Library. 1334 West Airline Highway, LaPlace, Louisiana 70068, See Note 1 for further 
details. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Parish's most significant 
funds — not the Parish as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the Parish uses to keep track 
of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. The Parish has many fnnds to 
account for the numerous funding sources provided annually. However. the fund financial 
statements look at the Parish's major funds with all non-major funds presented in total in one 
column. These statements report governmental activities on a more current hasis rather than a long-
term basis, indicating sources and uses of funding and resources available for spending in future 
periods. 

The Parish has three types of fiands: 

Governmental funds — Most of the Parish's activities are reported in governmental funds, which 
focus on how money tlows in and out of those funds, the balances that are left at year-end, and the 
amount available for spending in future periods. These funds are reported using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily 
converted to cash. 

The relationship between governmental activities reported in the govemment-wide financial 
statements and the governmental funds reported in the fund financial statements are reconciled in 
the fund financial statements. 

Proprietary - Sen ices for which the Parish charges customers a fee are generally reported 
in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds. like government-wide statements. provide both long and 
short-term financial information. 

The business-type activities reported in the government-wide tinancial statements are the same as 
the proprietary funds reported in the fund financial statements, but the latter provide more detail 
and additional information, such as cash flows. 

- 6 - 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH C'OUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOIFISI.ANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Fiduciary funds - Resources that are held for the benefit of parties outside the government are 
reported in fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the governrnent-wide financial 
statements hecause the resources of those funds are not available to support the Parish's own 
programs. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

C)ther Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information. The combining statements referred to in connection 
with nonmajor governmental funds and enterprise funds are presented immediately following the 
required supplementary information 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As rnentioned earlier, the assets and deferred outflows of St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources hy approximately S189 million at 
Decernber 31. 2022. The largest portion of the net position is net investment in capital assets, 
which reflects capital assets net of any related outstanding debt associated with the acquisition of 
those assets less any unused proceeds of the debt issued. The Parish uses these capital assets to 
provide services to its citizens Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
Although the Parish's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt mu.st be provided from other sources. as the 
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

- 7 - 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH C'OUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOIlISI.ANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 3L 2022 

The following table reflects condensed information on the Parish's net position: 

Stateinent of Net Position 
(in thousands) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Assets 

2022 2021 2021 2021 2022 2021 

      

Current and other assets $ 111,411 $ 101.937 $ 8,562 $ 9.272 $ 130,983 $ 111.209 
Capital assets 110.778 106,959 121.705 125.123 232,483 232.082 

Total assets 233,199 208,896 130,267 134,395 363,466 343,291 

Deferred outflows 10,218 9.555 3,463 3.657 13,h£;1 13.212 

Long-tenn liabilities 117.227 77.768 20.354 21.657 137.581 99.425 
Other habilities 28.547 30.177 3.430 3,577 31.977 33.754 

Total liabilities 145.774 107.945 23 784 1 5 /34 169 558 133,179 

Deferred inflows 13.247 11.961 5 262 3 136 18 509 15.197 

Net position 
Net investment in 

capital assets 33,929 (,8,816 111,853 116,590 145,782 185,406 
Restricted 76.630 70.778 2.89 471 79.519 71.249 
Unrestricted (26,1631 (41,049) (10.055) (7,479) (36,221) (48.528) 

Total net position   $ 98,545  

 

$ 104,684  $ 109,581 $ 189,080  $ 208,127 

Another portion of St. John the Baptist Parish's net position (42.0%) represents resources that are 
subject to restnctions on how they may be used. The majority of these restricted assets are the 
result of recent bond issuances to provide capital improvements to roads. drainage, and water 
system. as well as Hurricane Ida recovery. 

St. John the Baptist Parish's husiness-tmv activities net position decreased hy approximately $4.9 
million due pnmanly to a decrease in capital assets in the current year. The Parish's governmental 
activities net position decreased approxiniately $14.1 million. The decrease in net position of 
governmental activities is attributed to primarily to an increase in liabilities. offset by an increase 
in assets. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH C'OUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOIIISI.ANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 3L 2022 

A comparative view of the Parish's total revenues and total expenses for governmental and 
business-type activities are reflected in the following chart 

Revenues 
Program revenues 

Governmental 
Activities 

Change in Net Position 
(in thousands) 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 21121 

      

Charges for services $ 3.222 S 3.594 $ 12,827 S 15.508 $ 16.049 S 19.102 
Operating grants and 
contributions 13.298 8.883 

  

13.298 8.883 
Capital grants and 
contributions 1.019 2.13ii 

  

1.019 2.13ii 
General revenues 

      

Property taxes 24.159 26.4115 361 378 14.520 26.783 
Sales taxes 27.520 24.567 

  

17.520 24.567 
Other taxes 1.234 1.1178 

  

1.234 1M78 
Grants and contributions 
not restricted to specific 
programs - - 67 -,,3i) 67 ', 30 

C)ther 7.061 4.772 175 310 7.130 5.08' 
Total re% enues 78.513 71.4'0 13.430 16.426 01.043 87.855 

Expenses 

      

General government 26.742 18.463 

  

26.742 18.463 
Public safety 10.282 10.492 - 

 

10.282 10.492 
Puhhc works 31.607 30.364 

  

31.607 30.364 
Transportation 10.484 9.010 

  

10.484 9.010 
Health and welthre 999 885 

  

999 885 
Economic development 1.665 1.317 

  

1.665 1.317 
Culture and recreation 3.33' 3.610 

  

3.33' 3.610 
Interest on long-term debt 2.443 1.4116 

 

- 2.443 1.4116 
Solid waste 

  

3.3n4 3.59t1 3.304 3.59t1 
Mosquito abatement 

  

815 815 815 815 
Water 

  

10.466 10.0118 10.466 10.008 
Sewer 

  

8.851 9,333 8.851 9,333 
Total expenses 87.554 75,539 23.436 23,746 110.9911 99,1 85 

Excess (deficiency) 
before transfers (9.041) (4.110) (10.006) (7,320) (19.047) (11,430) 

Transfers (5.108) (5.1131 5.108 5.113 

  

Increase (decrease) in 
net position (14.149) (9.223) (4.898) (2.207) (19.047) (11.430) 

Net position- beginning ').545 114.462 109.582 109.604 2(f8.127 224.066 

Prior period adjustment 

 

(6.694) - 2.185 

 

14.50)) 

Net position — beeinning. 
as restated 98.545 107.768 109.582 111.780 '08.1 7 7 219,557 

Net position - endim2 $ 84.396 S 98.545 $ 104,684  $ 100.582 $ 189.080 S 208.127 

- 9 - 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

The following charts illustrate the revenues and expense for governmental activities for 2022: 

REVENUES BY SOURCE - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
Other Taxes 

Other 1.5% 
9.0% 

Capital Grants _ 
2.6% 

440

141

k,

 

Property Tax 
30.8% 

,Charges for Services 
4.1% 

Sales Tax 
35.1% 
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16.9% 

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
General government 

30.5% 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

The Parish's business-type revenues decreased $3.0 million or 18.2% from the previous year due primarily 
to a decrease in charges for services. Charges for services and fees accounted for approximately 95.5% of 
revenues for business-type activities. The following charts illustrate the revenues and expense for business-
type activities for 2022: 

REVENUES BY SOURCE - BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES 

Charges for Services 
95.5% 

Other 
4.5% 

EXPENSES BY FUND - BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES 

Mosquito 
3.5% 

Solid Waste 
14.1% 

Utilities 
43.1% 

Sewerage 
39.3 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier. St John the Baptist Parish uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmenta/firnds — The focus of St. John the Baptist Parish's governmental fiinds is to pro% ide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows and balances ofspendahlc resources. Such information is useful in assessing St. 
John the Baptist Parish's tutancrn€ requirements. In particular, nnassigned fund balance may serve as a useful 
measure of the go% ernment's net resources mailable for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, St John the Baptist Parish's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of approximately $86.2 million. an increase of approximately S23.5 million in comparison 
with the prior year. Approxirnately a negative 19.S% of this total amount (approximately a negative $17.1 
million) constitutes unassigned fund deficit. The remainder of fund balance is nottspenchible, restricted, or 
committed to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been reserved to liquidate 
contracts and purchase orders of the prior penod, to pay debt service, or to finance capital projects. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of St. John the Baptist Parish. At the end of the current tiscal year, 
unassigned timd balance of the General Fund was approximately $5.8 million, while total fimd balance was 
approximately $5.9 rnillion. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity. it may be useful to compare both 
unassigned fund balance and total fiand balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 
51.5% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund halance represents 52.5% of that same amount. 

The fund balance of St John the Baptist Pansh's General Fund increased by approximately 52 1 million dunng 
the current fiscal year due to changes in federal grant revenue and interfund activity. 

The Sales Tax District Fund has a restricted fund balance of approximately Sl0.6 million as of December 31, 
2022. This represents a decrease of approximately $1 2 million which is primarily due to interfund activity 
esceedrn€ sales tax collections. 

The Road and Bridges Fund has a restricted fund halance of approximately $855,000 as of December 31, 2022, 
as well as nonspendable fund balance of approximately $70,01H) This represents a decrease of approximately 
S1.3 million primarily due to transportation and capital outlay expenditures. 

The 1992 General Obligation Bonds Sinking Ftuid has a restricted hind balance of approximately $15.2 million 
as of December 31, 2022. This represents increase of approximately $1.8 inillion. 

The Hurricane Ida Fund has a fund deficit of approximately $21.8 million as of December 31, 2022. This deficit 
is due to expenditures relating to the hurricane debris cleanup and disposal exceeding federal grant revenues 
recei% ed in the current year. 

The American Recovery Plan Fund has a restricted fund balance of approximately $47.000 as of December 31. 
2022. This represents an increase of approximately $45,000 due to earnings from investments net of 
expenditures. 

The Levee Protection Fund has a restricted fund balance of approximately S21.3 nullion as of December 31, 
2022. This represents an increase of approximately $5 1 million due to decreased costs of canal maintenance. 

The 2022 General Obligation Bond Construction Fund has a committed fund balance of approximately $15.5 
million as of December 31. 2022. This represents an increase of approximately $15 6 million due the issuance 
of general obligation bonds during the fiscal year. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Propriety jimds - St John the Baptist Parish's propriety funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide tinancial statements_ but in more detail. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The Parish's budget is prepared according to Louisiana law. Durine the course of the year, the Parish revises 
its budget to take into consideration significant changes in revenues or expenditures. Louisiana Revised 
Statute 39:1311 requires a budget amendment if either expected revenues are less. or anticipated 
expenditures in excess, of budgetary goals by .5°i. or more. The original budget for the Parish was adopted 
on December 28, 2021 and thr final revised budget was adopted On October 25, 2022. 

A statement showing the Parish's original and final budget compared with actual operating results is 
provided in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report beginning on page 94. 

A comparison of actual results as of December 31. 2(►22 and the original budget for the General Fund are 
as follows: 

 

OrOnal 
Budeet Actual Difference 

Total revenues $ 6,403,309 $ 6,135,921 $ (267,388) 
Total expenditures 11.464.121 11,279,824 184.297 
Other financing sources 5,( )77,749 7,277,228 2,199,479 

Net change in fund balance $ 16,937 $ 2.133.325 $ 2,116,388 

   

The variations between the original budget and the final amended budget for the General Fund are as 
follows: 

 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

 

I)ifference 

Total revenues $ 6.403.309 $ 6,403,309 $ 

 

Total expenditures 11,464,121 11,464.121 

  

Other financing sources 5,077,749 5.065.049 

 

(12,100) 

Net ehane in fund balance 16,937 $ 4J•437 y (12.1001 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

The Parish's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2022 for its governmental and business-type 
activities were approximately $232.5 nullion. net of depreciation as reflected in the schedule below: 

Capital Assets 
(in thousands) 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

 

1011 2021 1011 2021 1011 2021 

Land $ 4.494 $ 4.494 $ 1.719 $ 1.719 $ 6.213 $ 6.213 
Buildings 42,207 41,570 8,855 9,177 51,062 50,747 
Equipment & fixtures 11.857 11.959 3.188 3.080 15.045 15.039 
Infrastructure & drainame 36.426 38,781 101.109 104,176 137.535 142,957 
Construction in progress 15.794 10.155 6.834 6.971 ".628 17.127 

Total $ 110,778 $ 106,959 $ 121,705  $ 125,124  $ 232,483  $ 232,0O 

There was an approximately increase of $3.8 million (3.6°.•;) in governmental activities capital assets. net 
of depreciatim expense, which is due primarily to current year acquisitions and increased construction in 
progress. The capital assets for business-type activities. net of depreciation expense, decreased 
approximately $3.4 million or 2.7% primarily due to a decrease in infrastructure. More detailed information 
on capital assets is included in Note 5 in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

The Parish had approximately $102 milhon in long-term debt as shown in the table below: 

Outstanding long-term debt 
(in thousands) 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

 

7011 1011 7011 1011 7011 2021 

General obligation bonds $ 50,075 $ 40.085 $ $ 

 

$ 50,075 $ 40.085 
Public improvement bonds 6,780 7,580 

  

6,780 7,580 
Sales tax & revenue honds 31.310 1.720 

  

31.310 1.720 
Finance purchase - 86 

  

- 86 
Lease liability 675 525 593 385 1.268 910 
Loans 777 851 7.852 7.180 8.629 8,031 
Revenue bonds - 

 

2,000 2,300 2,000 2,300 
Discount:Premiums 1.595 710 - - 1.595 710 

Total 91,212 $ 51,557 $ 10,445 $ 9,865 $ 101,657 $ 61,422 

The Parish's long-term deht increased by approximately $40.3 million. This change was due to the 2022 
general bond obligation series debt issuance, as well as the issuance of Hurricane Idea revenue bonds during 
the fiscal year. 

More detailed information on long term ()lineations and debt is included in Note 8 in the notes to the basic 
financial statements. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, at the end of 2022, St. John the Baptist Parish's unemployment 
rate was at 3.5% compared to the statewide rate of 3.3% and the nationwide rate of 3.5% 

During the course of the year, the Parish revises its budget to take into consideration significant changes in 
revenues and expenditures. Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1311 requires that the budget be re‘ised if either 
expected revenues are less or anticipated expenditures are in excess of bud2etary goals by five percent (5%) 
or inore. 

The 2023 Budget was adopted hy the Parish Council on October 25. 2022 with parishwide revenues of 
$129,015 thousand, not including transfers, and parishwide expenditures of $132,533 thousand, not 
including transfers. The proposed shortfall will be supported by fund balance Included in the total 
expenditures of $132,533 thousand. capital expenditures are budgeted at $61,305 thousand. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This tinancial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers. customers. and investors and creditors 
with a general overview of the Parish's finances and to demonstrate the Parish's accoumability for the 
money it receives. If you have questions ahout this report or need additional information, contact the 
Parish's Chief Financial Officer at 1811 W. Airline Hwy., LaPlace, LA 70068. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COLIN( IL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  
IlE(. EMBER 31,21122  

ASSETS 

 

Primais Goy crumeut 

  

COMPONENT 
UNIT 

Gosernmental 
Adis itirs 

Business-tYpe 
Actisities 

 

Total LIBRARY 

     

Cash dnil Lash egliwalents S 75.683.522 S 1.085.614 S 76.769.136 $ 15.087.4i74 
Inventory. at :ost - 451.792 

 

451.792 - 
ReLeivabks. net 

     

Act:MIMS receivable (net) 256 394 2.185.615 

 

2.-142 009 

 

Ad valotem taxes 22.678.234 340.123 

 

23.1111- 357 6.F.57  372 
Sales and use taxes 4.310 26(1 - 

 

4.310 260 

 

Other 1796.16-  - 

 

1.796.167 

 

Due from other novenunents 9.- 00.-77 14.722 

 

9.715.499 

 

Prepaid items -199.736 383.302 

 

883.038 

 

Restricted assets 

 

3,954.481 

 

3.954 481 

 

Internal balances 1.898 215 O,898.2151 

  

- 
Net pension asset 5.597 508 2,044.982 

 

7.642 490 961 59-

 

Cal will assets Rot lie= depreciatol 20.287.833 8.553.492 

 

28.841.3'5 2.560.4)82 
Capndl assets bang depieciated. net 90.490.370 113.15I.459 

 

203.641.1429 1,863.333 
TOTAL. ASSETS 233.199 016 I 3(t,267.367 

 

363,466,383 2.-. -;29 458 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

     

Defeired Amounts related to pension liability 4.148.819 786.950 

 

4.935.799 289.568 
Deferred amounts on other post-employinent benefits 5.235 646 2,676.436 

 

7.912,0112 1.545 137 
Defeired amiunts related to iefundnig 833.208 - 

 

833.208 - 
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 10.21..673 3.46.1.416 

 

13.681.089 1.854.705 

LIABILITIES 

     

Cash in exLess of bank balance 7'15.92 - 

 

715.532 - 
Accounts 1,ayable 17.413.230 1.472.908 

 

18.8/46.138 4142.863 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1.459 918 952.r3 

 

2,412,191 - 
Deposits due others 

 

1,605.564 

 

1.005 564 

 

lineanied revenues 8.320 585 - 

 

8.320 585 

 

Interest payable t;37.000 

  

637  OW 

 

Lon2 term lialnlities: 

     

Bonds. ledses. compensated dbsences 

     

Due ss ohm one year 10.016.298 1.459.60 

 

11.475.958 

 

Due in rnore than one year E1.195 041 8,9A5.544 

 

90.180,5115 69 928 
Other post-employment benefits liability. 

     

Due within ...tie yea 1,o6ii 907 948.186 

 

2.009,093 113 - 25 
Duc in inine than kine yea 1/4.344.976 8.961.109 

 

27.306.085 '.943.096 
Net lien:ion liability 6.60q.43- - 

 

6.00.43- - 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

 

23 - S5 244 

 

11'.•+.558.16 3.6iiQf.12 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

     

Advance tax payments 2.125 606 45.289 

 

2.170 895 63' 970 
Deferred amounts related tu pension liability 5.331.82-

 

2.245.451 

 

.577.278 916.166 
Deferred Amounts on other post-employnient benefits 5.-90.059 2.971.003 

 

5.761.062 987.3- 8 
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 13.24.492 5.261.-43 

 

lS.509.237; 2.57,6.514 

NET POSITION 

     

Net investment in capital assets 33,928 796 l 11.852.747 

 

145.781 543 4.4:3 4I5 
Restricted for 

     

Special !mime 59.572.036 

  

59.572.036 

 

Debt service 1 - .058.316 1443.784 

 

17.902.100 

 

Net pension asset 

 

2,044.982 

 

2.044 '082 - 
Book purchases 

   

- 2 846 
Endowment 

   

- 5 (k(1 
Unretneted (deficit) (Y..162.87c) r l0.05-.71- . 

 

(36.220.52,. 18,586.76 
TOTAL. NET POSITION S 84.139A.2 - 3 s 10-1 6-3.-7.1,". 1 1'19.080 069 $ 23.01:,  0, 

The acc,impanyuig notes arc an integral part of this financial statement. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Funcllon1Prograins 

 

Primary Govet amen( 

  

1 xpense, 

  

Program RrITulles 

 

Gi mils and 
C outributious 

Fees and 
( barges for 

Services 
Operating Grauts 
and Contributions 

Capital 

      

Priinary Government 
Governmental activities: 

General govenunent S 26.741.44 $ 2,944.557 S 835,454 S 1.973.254 
Culture and recreation 3.332.263 - 

 

- 

 

(414.864) 
Econoinic development 1.664.801 

  

16.064 

  

Health and welfare 9'Ai.877 - 

 

295.9112 

  

Public safety 10.282.167 177.533 

 

1.633.18S 

 

50.978 
Public works 31.607 197 - 

 

9 930.997 

 

409 427 
Tratisportatitm 10.484 354 

  

586.53' 

  

Interest on long-trim debt 2.-141.210 

  

- 

  

Total governmental activities ;„-.554.39-  3.222.09li 

 

13.298.137 

 

2.0111.795 

Business-type activities: 

      

Solid Waste 3.303.960 2.657.108 

    

Mosquito 814 889 365.649 

     

10.466.156 5.935,953 

    

Sewer 8.850.993 lx68.014 

    

Total business-type activities 23.435.99t4 12.S26.724 

    

Total primary government 110,990.3,)c 1 ,;,04S.bl4 

 

13.2,137 

 

'.018.79c 

( ompunent Unit: 

      

Library 3.7(.3.251 $ 13.823 

 

23,789 

  

General ievennes: 
Ad valorem taxes 
Sales taxes 
Fraiichise laxes 
Beer taxes 
Severance taxes 
Video poke' 
State revenue shanng t unrestricted) 
GrAits and coin Minions uot restricted 
Investmelit earnutus 
other general reveiiiies 
Insurance ploceeds 
Loss Oil sale of capital assets 
Tiansfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in Het positii 

Net positton. beginning of yew 

Net position. December 31. 2022 

The ack.umpanying notes 312 ail integral rut of du,. finoncial 

- - 



Primary Government ( ffinpollent Unit 

Net (£xpense) Revenue end Chenges in Net Position 

Governmental Busiuess-lype 

Activities Activities Tool Library 

(20 988.2331 

 

s (20 qt18,233) 

(3.7-17.127) 

  

L3.747.1271 

(1.648..737) 

  

(1.648.7371 

(702.975) 

  

(702.975i 

0,32(1.4(:8) 

  

(8.320.468) 

i21,266.773) 

  

(21 266.773) 

(9 897.822) 

  

(9 897.822) 

(2.443.240.i 

  

i2.443.240) 
L 69 015.3 , 5, 

  

i6.0.015 37S, 

 

1,646 852) 

 

(64A.852) 

 

(449,2401 

 

(449.240) 

 

(4.53(1.203) 

 

14.530.203) 

 

0.982.9- 9) 

 

'4.982.479) 

 

110.60').2 74) 

 

0).609.274) 

(69 015.375) (10.609 274) 

 

(79.624.649) 

     

(3.725,639) 

24 158.828 360,890 

 

24 519.718 7 641.779 

27.520.042 

  

27.420.042 

 

329.036 

  

329.036 

 

34..914 

  

34.914 

 

22.-105 

  

22,405 

 

847.834 

  

847.834 

 

105.961 

  

105.961 29.560 

 

67.167 

 

67.167 

 

745.373 39.225 

 

784.598 68.373 

2.363.280 136.083 

 

2.499.363 1(+-1.643 

3 846.658 

  

3 846.658 

     

k3.105) 

(5.107.856) 5.1ii7  856 

   

54.866.4'5 5.711.221 

 

60.577.606 7.901.250 

(14.148.9(N)) (4.898.0531 

 

(19.046.953 i 4.175.611 

98 545.173 109.581 849 

 

208 127.022 18 842.426 

A4.396.273 104.683 - )6 b 1S0 080.060 S 23 018.037 



sT JOHN THE P.APT1ST PARISH ( OUSUIL 
L APL A( E. 1.O1_1SLAN,A  

BALAM E SHEET  
GOVE RS M Ets I M. I  

DE( EMBER 31, 2022  

        

2022 lieneral 

      

1992 General 

   

Obligation Non-Major Tool 

  

Sales Tax Road and Obligation 

 

Aunris au Levee Baud Goveromeotal GM ,•rumentn1 

 

General I)btnrl Bridges Bands Sinking Hui mane Ida RPCCIser Plan Pro...Moil Construction Funds Funds 

Assets. 

          

Cash and cash equivalents S 591,676 S 6 947.449 S S 6 74.1.073 S S 81.41.947 S 2.608 1.11.1 S 15 471.80' S 34.983 4.2 S 75.o83.522 
Resenables net: 

          

Accounts 62.881. 

 

- 

   

- 

 

193 114 256,a94 
Ail salorem (axes 3.51:9.1 At) 

 

11.991 7.966 122 

  

.1 925.243 

 

6.175.712 22 678.224 
Sales loxes 11.332 l.805.h12 747.921 

   

- 

 

1 741.155 4.316.260 
Odle! Tay. es „OA-us 

 

2.005 

 

1 (324.969 

 

- 

 

121.'2' L796.16-

 

Due lrom other hinds 4 541 y42 1 829.69-  9.071 405 2 ,,,,,,,036 

  

t_I.sot, oh) 1- .!!,! 1.393 iskil 33.474.933 
Due holu.lthet governments 

  

42 112 - 7.95' 4.13 

   

1.'01 262 o 700 777 

11 epic! items 121.2,-  

 

0159 

     

Al.; 3- ," 499 - ,6 
Total assets 

 

s 582.90:-. S93 S I t. mr...26` S 9.18: 192 S 1- '4.4 - 22.04 1 1'1 S 1 1  `0'..1116 

 

S _itIo 

Liabllines 

          

Cash iu excess of hank halance S 

 

S 494 S - 3 711.038 S - S 

 

S 1 15.'12 
Accounts payable 5 76,1515 7. 001 7.968 463 possis,,,, 5.267 991 3,0'5 I 414 

 

2,713 2.11.. 17.413.2.d. 
Accmed expenses and Mho hatuldies 4'2,616 

 

28' 12.1 

 

130 993 

 

(3, 

 

5(>9 139 1.459.1P It 

Due tc. other flinch 1.599.277 64 761 ill! 64 25.224 088 

  

401 3.994 75.1 .11 5.76,718 
Unean ied Cows - 

 

- 

 

- X.320.5X5 

 

- - 8 329.181 
Tool habihnes 

 

7,lis 9..07.088 665.217 31 336.110 6.323 660 271.547 

 

2 7.097 4q.41O.9F3 

Dere ri ed Orions or resouires 

          

Advance ux payments 324.126 

  

'91.988 

  

445 713 

 

cc,) 739 2 125,606 
Una% adahle rei mines 28,5.36 

 

100 .3.182 

  

..4.) 

 

4 - 4 IS: 608,534 

Total defened inflows uriasources 2 

 

.1 I Crt, 131!,  1- 0 

  

S. 

 

I I (., 2 2." .4.140 

Fond balances. 

          

Nonspendahle 121.21.7 

 

1 19 

     

308 37, 3 499,736 

Restncted 

 

It, 5'5,75:4 2.41; 15 

 

47,28- 21.28G 731. 

 

29,428 '7.1 77 3'1,615 
Committed 

       

Is surt..25 9,869 322 25.3782.47 
l'nsssigned A1106.012 

   

(21 755.716) 

   

II 123.792, 

 

Total fund halanses A.927.219 10.575..713 21.4r5 1!.11160,. 121.7:M.718) 47.267 21 2/91.738 l!.508 725 38.462.673 86.179.900 

Total liabilities. defeired inflous of iesources 
and fund halsikes S 8.'1.25.639 S ll1.582.911s c...41.1c3 I A.- 66.201 $ 4 i N2..“12 S h.37(i 9_17 S 22..143.351 l 1.509.126 S 46 _33.1362 S U11.406.023 

The as.companying notes ale an integral part .01 this financial statement 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH C OUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Total fund balance at December 31. 2022 - govenunental funds $ 86,179,900 

Amounts iepoited foi governmental activities in the statement of net 
position are diffeient because: 

Capital assets used in goveinmental activities ale not fmancial 

iesources and, therefore. are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Cost of capital assets at December 31, 2022 327,946.096 
Less: accumulated depieciation as of December 31. 2022 (.217.1(+7.893) 

Unavailable revenues are deferred in governmental funds but not 
111 aovernmental activities 

Differences between expected and actual experiences. assumption 
changes and net differences between projected anal actual earnings 

and contributions subsequent to the measurement date for the 
postreurement benefits (pension and OPEB) aie recomized 
defeired outflows of iesources and defeired inflows of iesources on 

the Statement of Net Position 
Net pension asset 
Defened outflows - pension ielated 

Deferred outflows - OPEB related 
Defened infkiws - pension related 
Defened mflows - OPEB ielated 

Long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefoe. aie not reported in the go% ernuiental funds. 

fund liabilities: 
Bonds payable 
Loans payable 

Lease liability 

Accrued interest pyable 
Net pension liability 

Total OPEB liability 

110.778.203 

608.534 

5,597.508 
4.148.819 

5,235,646 
(5.331.827) 
(5.790.059) 

ts8,165.000) 
(777.(00) 

(674,843) 
((,37.000) 

(6.609.437) 
(19,405,883) 

Governmental limas ieport the effect of premiums. discounts, and 

iefundings and sundin items when debt is fiist issued. whereas these 
amounts are defened and amortized in the Stateinent of Activities. 

Defened loss on ieliinding 833.108 

Premiums (1,594,496) 

Total net position at December 31, 2022 - govenunental activities $ 84,396,273 

The accompanying notes are all integral part of this financial statement. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNC. IL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR TELE YEAR ENDED DE( ENIBER .31. 2022  

Revenues: 
Taxes 

General 
Sales Tax 
Milne! 

Roail and 
Midges 

1992 Gelleral 
Obligation 

Bonds Sinking Hui ricane Ida 

An-alkali 
Recos et y 

Plan 
Les ee 

I'll:lied-ion 

2II22 Genet al 
Obligation 

Bond 
( inhtl tic (ion 

NIMI -Nlajot 
Gosei mental 

hind% 

Iola! 
Gosei mental 

hind% 

             

Ad valorem $ 3.811 283 $ S 48.203 I. 8.4-17 849 $ 

 

1, 6  223 6 —S 

 

1. t..555 753 24 086.76t. 
Sales 

 

11.708.537 4.743.452 

        

11.068 053 r 520.042 
N.:it leo poker 

           

847.834 847.834 
Licenses anti permits 
bitergoventniental revenues: 

1935.558 

           

1.935.5š8 

Federal giants 22 356 

 

7.353 

   

:s.1 

    

4.323 663 17 628.'26 
State funds: 

             

Parish transportation funds 

  

56.532 

         

586.531 
State reveliue 58.658 

          

47.303 105.961 
Other 57.319 

 

350.000 

        

838.423 1.245;742 
Local 

           

50.978 50.978 
Fces. charges. and commissions for services 168 542 

 

24.374 

        

1.093 616 1 286.532 
Fuies and tiyPetttuY. 

  

11.644 

        

1.044 238 1 055.882 
Invesiment earnings 20 280 t..2 71.4 9.1166 

 

73 240 

  

53 '4 1110 92.074 

 

360 160 745.373 
Oiher revenues 61.925 

 

171(.242 

        

677.761 917.928 
Tolal revenues 6.135.921 

 

i.958.866 

 

S.521.0:49 

 

13.275.354 53.669 5:19778 92.074 

 

26.9o7.782 '8.013.854 

(continue& 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNi. IL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEr., EMBER 31, 2022  

Expenditures 
General 

Sales Tax 
DisIncl 

Roail and 
Bridges 

1992 Gelleral 
Obligation 

Bonds Sinking Hurricane Ida 

Ainei iCall 

Recal ery 
Plan 

Lel ee 
Protection 

2022 General 
Obligation 

Bond 
( a ust rue tion 

Non-Nlajfit 
Goveinmenial 

Funds 

i Ohl 

Goveinmenial 
Funds 

            

General govenunent 8.555.113 244.357 138.554 

 

347.317 11.882 385 

 

8.28ai 214.263 214.769 4.'29 031 26 .',";4,069 
Culture and recreation 

  

- 

 

- 1.240.791 

    

1.342 478 2 583.269 
Economic tlevelopment - 

    

64 604 

    

1.6-11 '92 1 'ir6.396 
Health anti welfare 371.613 

    

64.936 

    

520.4- 1 957.020 
Piiblic safety L971.462 

    

61.964 

    

7.108.233 9.141.659 
Public works - 

 

- 

  

29.396.651 

     

29.396.651 
Transponation - 

 

9,728.802 

       

1.052 861 10 - 81.663 
Capital outlay 266 211 

 

1.806.208 

  

1.368 153 

   

573.247 5.949 962 9 963.781 
Debi service 

            

Piiimpal 

    

5,0[0.000 

     

1.3- 0.090 6.380.090 
Interesi 

    

1,37.111 495.833 

    

306.834 2.1"9„7"S 
Lea..e imansilig. 

            

Pnncipal 103 310 

 

101.962 

 

- 

     

25 296 230.568 
'Hides! 12.115 

 

8.6l2 

  

- 

    

1 519 22.246 
Total expenditures 11.279 824 244 :,-., 11 -!.4.138 

 

6.T34 42:s 44.5-5.31-  

 

f• 280 214 263 -i!.8.iii 6 24.i i4)!. 56-  99 6'- .190 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over model) expenditures 15143.9(r3) 11.526.964 (5.825.272) 

 

L7146.661 (31.209.963) 

 

45.389 5.083.515 1695,942) 2.859.215 121.663.336) 

Othei !Insuring sources (usesi: 

            

Transfers out (788 553) (12 725.5731 (875.686) 

  

(SIII 756) 

    

(8.94A 610) r 23 849.178) 
Transfers in 7,799 570 

 

5.360.161 

  

1.907 900 

   

254,315 3.419 376 1E - 41.322 
Issuance of long-term debt 

     

30.000 000 

   

15,000.000 

 

45 0410.00 
Premium on delu issiian,:e 

         

1.011.'33 

 

1.011.733 
litsiiraillt proceeds 

     

3.846.658 

     

3.({46.6ix 
Lea.e finantilig prrkeeds 266.211 

 

24.505 

       

90.1 380.834 
Total other financing sources (uses) 7.277.225 (12.725.5'31 4.508.980 

  

35.243 502 

   

16.266414£; t 5.439 116) 45 131.369 

Net change in fund balance -7.133.315 (1.195.6•10) ( I.316.292) 

 

1786.661 3,943 539 

 

45.389 5.083.515 15.5'0.106 (2.579 qui ) 23 468.033 

Fund balance. beginning 3.793.$9-1 11.77-1.362 2.241.69-  

 

13.395.15-  (25,609.557) 

 

1.89R 16.203.223 (61.3811 41.062.574 62.711.867 

Fund balance, ending .92-7.21' $10.575.753 92.40c 5 15.1S1.SH $ (21.755  71S) I, 4 -7.2r $21.286.738 S 15.5f i8.725 3S.48' 673 $ 86 179.900 

(consluded) 
The mompanying notes are an integral part of this finant.ial statement 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, I WE IsI AN A  

RE( ONCILIATION OF THE STATEM EN F OF REN ENUES, EXPENDIT1 RES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FI NDs  

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIN I TIEs  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC'EAIBER 31, 2022  

Net change ill fund bahmces - governmental funds 

The change in net position reporred for govenimental acrivities in the statement 
of activities is different because 

Governmental fimds report capital outlay as expenditui es However. in the 
statement of activities the cosi of those assets is allocated over their estuuated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay and other capitalized pui chases 
Depreciation expense 

S 23.468,u33 

9.963.781 
(6,145.075) 3,813,706 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current tinancial 
resources are not ieported as revenues in the funds. 

The issuance of long-tern) delg provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the curreut 
fmancial resouces of governmental funds. Repayment of bond and other debt are 
not reported as expenditures in the governmental fimds. hut recoided as a payout 
of a liability in the governmental activity. Also. govermuental funds report the 
effect of premiums, discount. and similar items when debt is issued, whereas these 
amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. 

Bond piincipal payuieuts 
Long-term debt issued 
Premium on debt issuance 
Finance purchase payment 
Proceeds from lease financing 
Lease financing payments 

(3,736,629) 

6,294.000 
(45,0011.000) 
(1,011.733) 

86.090 
osii,834) 
230.568 

  

(39,781,909) 

Some expenses reigwted in the Statement of Activites do not iequile rhe use of 
current financial resources and. therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

  

Accrued interest payable on long-tenn debt 1229.657) 

 

Amortization of bond premiums and discounts 127.310 

 

Amortization of deferred outflow ot iesouices on refunding (138.869) 

 

Changes in pension liabilities and ielared defened ourflowsIntlows of resources 2,055.157 

 

Changes in OPEB liabilities and related deferred outflows inflows of resources 268.958 2,052,899 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

 

S (14.148,900) 

The accompanying notes aie an integral pait of this financial statement. 
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sT. JOHN THE BAPTIsT P ARISH C 01 Nc IL 
LAPLAC E. LOUISIANA  

sTATEMENT OF NET POSITION  
PROPRLETARY FUNDs  

DECEMBER 31. 21122 

3SsLTS 

I tilitles 
.teui Selserage 

Non Nlajoi 

Total 
Lnter pi t 

, oltd 
NS Asti 

Nlosquilo 

      

Current assets: 

      

Cash aud sad, equis Menu!, S i;07,44 I S .:65.2l6 $ 1.3n2 ¶ 4,575 S 1.045.614 
Recertahles. net 1 017,1CI ic.flii2 462.14 air..,4S7 

 

:..c25.7ab 
Inventory 451.70 

  

- 

 

-151."92 
Doe Irani other funds 2.Ifib.n24 -1.73c.lf.1 2.73. 402. 310.014 

 

0.05o 401 
Due lawn other ei.seminetit• 14.711 

  

- 

 

14 "22 
Prep...1114UL, 

fatal ran rut assets 

1/5.4.334 1O.46E 

   

Ja..4..t02 

4 64.3.264 t •Ki,a,i1.47 !,111,1!.1 72:iim6 

 

14,42 l.I 29 

Restrkted assets 

Cash aud r..isl, opus alents 3 954.4S I 

    

'3.454,481 
Total restricted assets .4  954.4SI 

    

,,554.41I1 

Noorurrent assets 

      

Capital as•et•. 

      

Not being demeciated 6 020.312 LEW 

   

it.c53.492 
Capital asset, net of demei.ration 56 905.ise4 56.155.775 

   

I IL t.151.459 
Net pension asset S22.ft51 1.222!)11 

    

Total noncurrent assets Q3:1O3.047 co.or I 

    

TOTAL ASsETS 

  

3.2l0.13.1 

  

42.1 i,c43 

PEFERRED O1, ILl1NS OF RESOURC. ES - 

      

Deferred amounts related to ',onion liability .14,3J+10 

    

7b0,0.11.l 
Deterred amounts related to OPEB bablhry 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

l.343.076 1.33). 30 

   

43e, 

 

Lc.% 32 

   

3.4t,3,416 

LIABILITIES 

      

C urrent 

      

Acconob. payable 405.670 

 

J40.*81 l4.4uft 

 

1,472.44a 
Accnied expenses and calm habiliiies C4;I. 29.: 164 

    

Due to other funds 04t, .3.14'1.33 414 4- 41 t7.oln 

 

1 LS': I 7n 
Bond- mut loans payable. cantor portion sno unQ 50a 344% 

   

I.2"c 4-46 
Total OPEB Latd,ry, current portion 

 

472.515 

   

94R,I1t6 
Lease Lability, current portion 0.4..510 niVlutt, 

   

144.214 
Cunent ItyFtlrors payable trout restricted 

      

Assets 

      

Customer deposit,. I .00.%(.4 

    

ic,4 
Total oun rut It:011111,es I I .7.1t..4tic c. 13 I 009 754 J59 "2.411 

 

17.096 'Ci7 

Long.term 

      

Total other p•st-en,p1..yuteta betiefit liaLdity 4 .t0c..5') 4.461.5711 

   

961. t IF/ 
Bonds anrl loan-- payable ft.i- 6.75F 

    

S.576." 4ft 

Lease liability 

 

3riri.0 I 4 

    

Yowl long it-nu liabilities B17:1.209 4.70i.3S4 

   

r.446,o3 

TOTAL LEA BILITIES 14 911".2c4 

 

754.!.00 

   

DEFERRED PiELOWS OF RESOURCES - 

      

AJN WIC!' 15Y V.Valentb 

   

3.3.560 

 

4c.2b9 
Deferred amounts related to pension habil" I fl,) , .15.S 1.1 

   

2.24c 4c1 
Deferred named,  telated to OPTIC liability I .18?3.2,,i 

     

Total defet ied inflows of I esources 2 60',.1 ;0 4,h3 1,041 

 

sti.ton 

 

c,At,743 

NET POSITION 

      

Nei ins esiment in capital ascot C3.(Sil 238 tS. I ttv) 

   

11 [JO.: ".r 
Restricted 

      

Debt WIN ice 

     

S-15.7h4 
Net pension asset 82.1.ar I 

    

2.0-14,q1l2 
Unmoncted (ileticift V 625.0-0 4-1.c12.62to 2,455,773 irr,. 

 

i16J157.717i 
TOTAL NET POSITION S 46 "lo.for .54.1M2LItt S S 

 

s I 

The assompanyinn notes ate An iiitenral part al this financial .tatement 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THiE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022  

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Utilities 

System 

 

Sesserage 

Non Jte ior 

Total 

Enterpi ise Funds 

solid 

Waste 

Niosquito 

Abatement 

      

Charges tor seivices S 5.775.350 1. 1.494.696 48.753 S .505 .t.-49 5, 7 684.448 

Fees, charges. and conunissions 160.603 

 

2373.31E: 2.608.355 - 5 142.276 

Oilier munne 38.079 

 

'.08.004 - 

 

I 36.1/83 

Total operating res roues 52174.03' 

 

3.966.01S 2.657.108 365.649 12.962.8417 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

      

Genet al administration 1.593.40 

 

3(.0.413 3.100 205 1 957.127 

Pinificatimi 2.689.132 

    

2.689.132 

Distribution 1.171.375 

 

..44.520 

  

1.267.894 

Sales and opetations 1.795.-183 

 

3 035.994 

 

- 4.831.477 

Plant - 

 

2.058.82A 63 64 2 058,953 

In()irect costs - 

  

192.000 - 192.000 

Contract services 121.213 

 

43 020 3 108.797 814 620 4.087 650 

Depretaittimi 2.918.026 

 

3.143.571 - 

 

6.061.597 

Total operating expenses 10.29(/.638 

 

8.736.344 .".: .31)3 .9(,i r N14.s89 23.145.831 

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (4.316.606) 

 

(4.770.32A) (646.852) 1449.240) (10 183.024) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

      

Bond issuance costs 

  

(105.900) 

 

- (105.9410i 

Ad valotem tax - 

 

- 

 

3641.890 360.890 

Grant revenue t.7.14;7 

 

- 

 

- 67.167 

Intetest revenue 33.6463 

 

3.289 1.296 977 39."5 

Interest expeitse t 175.518) 

 

(5.749) 

  

(184.267 ( 

Total nonoperating res runes (espenses) (74.688) 

 

(111.3601 1.2. h5 361.S67 17 —.11c 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (4.391.29.1i 

 

(4.881 686) (6-15.55() (87.373) (10.0115.909) 

Transfeis in 4.407.088 

 

3.038.5'2 

 

45.(i0() 7.490.610 

Traiisfeis mit t1.191.077 t 

 

(1.107.9801 (5 7.102) (26.59Si C.382.754) 

Total transfers 3.216.011 

 

1.93(O42 (5 7.102) 18.406 5.10- .s54". 

CHANGE LN NET POSITION (1.175.2Hr 

 

i2.951 144 (702.6581 468.968) (4.84.053) 

NET POSITION 

      

Balance, beginning of yeat 4 - .5s5.350 

 

5 7.843.964 3.15s.431 ,;94.074 1(1,-).CS1.s49 

Balance, end or year 1 46.710.097 

 

54.892 520 S 2,455.7'3 62c.106 S 101.6S3.7,45 

The accompallyi11_ notes ore an intemul pan of tins financial statement 
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4.40' .158 
(1.191.0"7, 

2S3.176 

6"..1n7 

360$90 

490.611) 

(2..., S2.744) 

360.1'O0 

3 038.52' 
(I.10- .0x0) (57.162i (26.5951 

45J3013 

1.930 '542 (c".102t 379.294 

 

ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOLISIANA  

STATEMENT OF C ASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEI) DECEMBER 31, 2U22 

      

  

Non Major  

Utilities solid Sin-manna [(nal 

System Sem erage Waste .thamaneut Eutea pa use Funds 

f.AsH FLOWS FRONI OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

Receipt, frinia custanir1S awl (Mem 

Payments to supplier, tur g<xKla •Ilui 

Payinent,  to employees loa sers-ice. 

Other receapG 
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

          

 

S as.721 512 S 4 .111.7)4 S 3.164 375 S 419.65" S 14 924.3.58 
15 619.56Y, (3.434 45(0 1.? 201.363, 160.,„1361 t13.05S.'11%1 
(2.6)x.002) i 2.541.29X I - - (5.140.390) 

45 ntig 95.004 143.56"  
(1.450.464i (1.258.9%) (35.988i O143.4791 (3.139.9011            

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTWITIES: 
SulKisly from Irderal pants 

rslolein taxes 

.Advances front &Met hind.; 

TInnsfeiS to ocher funds 
Net cash provided by (used in) nolicapital financing activities 

CASH FLOSS s FROM t \MAL AND RELA TED FIN.ANCENG 

 

O.229 331) (1 422.'64i 

   

11 052.145 ) 

.t( TII. FIIES: 

%,:. i"intiou anal c, nsituction of capital asset. 

Noce...4k horn capital dela 

 

5us.895 506.-t4t; 

   

1.115.341 

Proceeds from leases 

 

- 375 73C 

   

375.714 

PI invipal payments on .zapital debt 

 

(743 Milli 

    

O43110(r) 

BMA is,tlance Costs 

 

- i 105 'Am) 

   

1105.9001 
interest paid on capital debt 

 

(149.545) - 

   

(14"..545 i 

Plincipal payment.; on kasti 

 

110' 312) knn.188i 

   

(107.5(n) 

Interest p.uvl on leases 

 

(25.9- 3i (R.740.1 

   

(34.7221 

Net cash provided h) lased in) capital and related financing activities 

 

O.646 31w, t,715.420) 

   

(2 3o1."36) 

1: AsH FLOW FROM INVESTING .14. TII.ITI Es: 

       

Inlereif 

 

3.3 nri3 3.289 I 29,s 

  

39.225 

Net cash provided by tin esrine activities 

  

3.2sq 1.2q0 

  

39,224 

Net iorrease (decrease t in nub and c:isli 

 

210 ,141 

   

(3.21r) "3.501 

C.i.vh and cash equiv.:debts. lvegutinh? ut the V•nr 

 

4.551.811 s 1c6 

 

7..7S" 1,466,494 

Cash and cash equivalents. end of the year S I 922 S 2,s 5.2q, ai 3,2 c 4. 5 - 5 s 

t( ',Humped) 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOLISIANA  

STATEMENT OF C A'41 FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FENDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEI) DECEMBER 31, 2U22 

Retockediauuo a upet ming income rtr net east' provided by 
(used in) operating activities: 

System Sem erage 

Non-Mljor 

Eutel pa Ise Fllulls 

Nolid Slum-Nilo 

Abatement 

      

()periwig los: s (4 3 l &CAS, i O.7% 326) S 046.8521 S (449.240) S t I u.ls....021) 

Adiu‘Inients to iecuncile operating loss tu net cash 
used in , peratnig activities 

      

Depieciarion 2.918.026 3.143.571 

   

61161.A97 

Loss on disposal uf assets 8.718 

    

8.718 

Chamres in assets and liabilines 

      

Ascot's& reseis side 2 779.493 (838 394) (396.16'i 156.1.911 

 

1.600,031. 

Insentorj 72.953) 

    

(72,943) 
Due &am othet tunas (1.604 .s17) on.264) 2ri? 120.1Z5 

 

11 021.42.0) 
Due froin other goverinnesits (4-18 

    

(44N) 

Prepaid items 

 

(125 3941 

   

U."3.8111 
Net pension asset (334 )SSI CA3.790, 

   

t I or.048) 
Deferred L. payments 7.586 

  

115.2831 

 

1- .6971 

Deferred muffin, s ol resolirses 56.381 137.1r2 

    

.Aromuts payable ISl nit7 41.1.500 85 349 100.5°7 / 

  

.At.criweti expense...ma other l.9g8i (170.883) 

 

14.49N 

 

(568.31.31 

Due to,  °dim limas t3hh.869; 1.437  438 413.415 57.S42 

 

1.519.Si6 

Net OPEB (041 555i t941.5551 

   

(1 SS3.110) 

Crimuniers* (294.Y94, 

    

(29-1,99Sw 

Deferred inflows of resooices 62.840 

     

Total adjustments 233cl. 122 511.., 't , 6o) 

   

Net (Alb Wgell III operating Aftisilies (I, S .256.'1,5111 3 (36.968 

  

(3 1.3O:)O( 

Cash and cash equivalents Include 

      

Cash and cash equivalents S 807.441 S 265236 s 8.362 S 4.574 S l.085.tila 
Restricted sash and ..ssli equivalents :O44.461 

    

3,954.-0.1 

 

S 4.761.922 S 265.236 $ S 4.i7i S '.(140.09I 

fusncludetil 

The 3.:..unipan)u(2 istre,i pal t o1 fursiknal stntertienr. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLA( E. LO1 ISIANA  

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
FID1. CIARY FUNDs  
DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Assets 

 

Custodial Funds 

 

ARC Maintenance Senior Citizens 
Total Custodial 

Funds 

   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.115.312 $ 22,554 $ 1.137.866 
Recewables 

Ad ValnieinTaxes 683,985 760,234 1,444.219 
Prepaid ¡ions 1,977 16.737 19,714 

Total assets s 1,802,274 S 799. :2:, 2 6(1 1 .709 

    

Cunent liabilities: 

Accomus payable 115.nx8 4 92.114 k 20 7.80' 

Total ourent habilities 115.n8S 92 114 20 7.SW 

NonouTent 

   

Advance tax payments 61,769 (11 0.12 124 811 

Unavailahle revenues 5,448 (1.1 3 (1 69 80F. 

Total noncurrent liabilities (,7. 217 127.-102 194.619 

Net Position 
1,619,369 5 S( 1,0( 2,199,378 Restricted 

Total net position 1,619,369 5 S( 1,0( 2,199,378 

Total liabilities and net position 1.802.274 $ 799.525 $ 2.601.799 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
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ST..IOHN THE BAPTIST PARISII COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION  

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DE( EMBER 31, 2022  

Additions 
Contributions: 

  

Custodial Funds 

 

ARC Maintenance 

 

Senior Citizens 
Total Custodial 

Funds 

    

Ad valoreiu tax collections 726,315 $ 741.291 $ 1.467,606 
Investnient earnings 10.543 

 

4,684 15.227 
Total additions 736.858 

 

7-15.975 1.482.833 

Deductions 

    

Ad valorem tax distributed 339.838 

 

820,721 1.160.559 

Othei expentlitures 

  

30.289 30,289 
Total expenditures 339.83N 

 

851.010 1.190.8.48 

Change in net position 397,010 

 

(105.035) 291,985 

Net position, beginning of year 1.222.349 

 

685.04-1 1.907.393 

Net position. ending 1.619.369 S 580.009 $ 2.199,378 

The accompanying notes ale all integral part of this financial statement. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31. 2022  

1. SUNLMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 

The tinancial statements of the Parish of St. John the Baptist (the "Parish") have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard-setting hody for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Parish's accounting policies are 
described below. 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 

The St. John the Baptist Parish Council (the "Councir) is the governing authority for the Parish of St. John 
the Baptist. a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana as authorized hy the State Constitution. The Council 
consists of nine members, two of whom are elected from two divisions of the Parish consisting of 50% of the 
Parish's population and seven members elected to represent each of the seven districts. The Parish President, 
elected by the voters of the Parish, is the chief executive officer of the Parish and is responsible for carrying 
out the policies adopted by the Council and for the administration of all Parish departments, offices. agencies 
and special districts. 

Louisiana Revised Statutes ("LSA-R.S."). at LSA-R.S. 33: 1236. e the Council various powers ui regulating 
and directing the affairs of the Parish and its inhabitants. The more notable of these are the power to make 
regulations for its own government: to regulate the construction and maintenance of roads. bridges. and its 
drainage system: to regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages: and to provide for the health and welfare of the 
poor, disadvantaged, and unemployed in the Parish. Funding to accomplish these tasks is provided by ad 
valorem taxes, sales taxes, beer and alcoholic beverage permits, fees and licensing, state revenue sharing, and 
various state and federal grants. 

The Parish occupies 219 square miles with a population of approximately 43,000. Council offices are located 
in the Pansh office building at 1811 West Airline Highway, LaPlace. 

As the governing authority of the Parish, for financial reporting purposes. the St. Jolm the Baptist Parish 
Council is the reporting entity for St. John the Baptist Parish. Generally accepted accounting principles require 
the fuiancial statements of the reporting entity to present the primary government (the Council) and its 
component units. Component uiuts are defined as legally separate organizations for which the elected 
officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The criteria used in determining whether 
financial accountability exists include the appointinent of a voting majority of an organization's govenung 
board, the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that organization or whether there is a 
potential for the organization to prol, ide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary government. 
Fiscal dependency may also play a part in determining financial accountability. 

In addition, a component unit can be another organization for which the nature and significance of its 
relationship with a primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
I)ECEMBER 31. 2t)22  

1. sin DIARY OF SIGNIFICANT AC ( OUNTING POLICES (continued) 

A. REPORTING ENTITY (continued) 

The component units discussed below are included in the Council's basic financial statements either as a 
blended component unit or as a discretely presented component unit because of the siglificance of its 
operational or financial relationship with the Council. 

a. Blended ( 'omponent Unit 

Criminal Court Fund: The Criminal Court Fund accounts for a portion of the annual cost of the 
courts. The annual revenues are derived from fines, forfeitures, court fees, etc. The Criminal 
Court Fund is a legally separate entity from the Parish. However. the Criminal Court Fund 
provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the Parish The Crmunal Court Fund is governed 
by the same elected Council that governs the Parish and is therefore included in the Parish's 
financial report as a blended component unit. 

b. Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Library: St. John the Baptist Parish Library (the "Library") was established by the Parish 
moverning authority under the provisions of LSA-R S. 25:211. The Library provides citizens of 
the parish access to library materials. boolcs, magazines, records and films. The Library is governed 
by a board of control that is appointed by the Council. The Library is considered to be fiscally 
dependent on the Council because it cannot levy taxes or issue bonded debt without approval by 
the Council. The Library is considered to be a financial burden to the Parish, because the Parish 
issued debt to pay for a new library building, and the Parish pays the insurance premiums on behalf 
of the Libraiy. These premiums are reimbunied to the Parish from the Library. The Library issues 
separate fmancial statements and has a year end of December 31st. Coniplete financial statements 
may be obtained directly from the admmistrative office of St. John the Baptist Pansh Library, 1334 
West Airline Highway, LaPlace, Louisiana 70068. 

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial smtements t i.e. the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) 
report inthrmation on all of the activities of the primary government and its cmnponent units. For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Interfund services provided and 
used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. Governmental activities, which normally are supported 
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. are reported separately from husiness-ttpe activities, which rely to a 
siglificant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately 
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary governnient is financially accountable. 
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1. sin LN IARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (contmued) 

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degee to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment 
is offset by prop-am re% enues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specitic function 
or segment. Program revenues include charges to custoiners or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or prn ileges provided by a given function or seDnent and grants and contribution.s 
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes 
and other items not properly included among progarn revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided tor governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds 
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterpnse funds arc reported as separate columns 
in the fund financial statetnents. 

C'. MEASUREMENT FOCUS. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION 

The government-wide financial statements are reported usuig the economic measurement fiicus and the accrual 
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred. regardless of timing of related cash flows. Property taxes 
are recopized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recopized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fiind financial statements are reported using the current financial resmirces measurement fiicus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues arc recogiized as soon as they are hoth measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereaflter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Parish considers revenues 
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as 
well as expenditures related to compensated ahsences and claims and judgments are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Those revenues considered susceptible to accrual include sales and use tax revenues, federal and state grants. 
and certain tianchise fees Sales taxes are recognized when collected by vendors. Interest on time deposits is 
recorded when earned. Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received. 

Transfers between funds which are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as other financing sources (uses) 
and are recorded at the time of transfer. Bank loans are recognized when the loan IN authorized. Indirect cost 
reimbursements are the amounts the General Fund charges to several other funds based on the level of services 
provided to these funds by the General Fund. 

The Pansh reports the following major go‘ ernrnental funds: 

The General Fund is the Parish's primary operating fund. It is used to account for and report all financial 
resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. 

- 32 - 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31. 2t)22  

1. suNDIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (continued) 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FLNANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION (continued) 

The Sales Tax District Fund accounts for the re% enues derived from the 1% sales tax passed by the residents 
of St. John Parish for capital improvements of infrastructure The revenue is used to repay the annual principal 
and interest payrnents for sewer improvement bonds. 

The Roads and Br7dger Fund accounts for revenues generated from a sales ta.x and some state-generated 
revenues. such as Parish Transportation and Department of Public Safety fees. 

Thr 1992 Genend Obligation Bonds Sinking Fund accounts for the payrnent of principal and interest on the 
general obligation deht of the Parish. The general obligation deht is secured by property tax levies. 

The Hurricane Ida Fund accounts for erant revenues received for disaster recovery efforts related to 
Hurricane Ida. Revenue is generated from federal grant programs. 

The American Recovery Plan Fund accounts for grant revenues received from funding to be used to support 
the local governments and their response to and recovery from the COVID-19 puhhc health emergency. 

The Levee Protection Fund is used to fund the Parish's portion of a hurricane•flood protection levee which 
extends 18 miles from the Bonnet Carre Spillway from Montz to Mt. Airy, which includes parish-wide 
drainage and future maintenance of the levee system. The revenue is based on a 7.00 mill ad valorem tax 
for flood protection. 

The 2022 General Obligation Bond Construction Fund was created by a 2022 bond issuance for the purpose 
of funding construction of various capital projects. 

The Parish reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Utilities System Fund accounts for the annual operations of the water sen ices supplied to the residents of 
the Parish Revenue is generated from user tees for services provided. 

The Sewerage Fund accounts for the annual operation of the Wastewater Department. Revenue is generated 
from water consumption user charges on thr utility bill along with charges for permits. The expenditures are 
the cost for the annual operations of the wastewater plants alone with other costs associated with operations ot 
this department. This department is currently beuig subsidized with a transfer from the Sales Tax Distnct to 
meet its annual operating responsibilities. 

Amounts reported as pivgram revenues Include charges to customers or applicants for goods, services. or 
privileges provided, operating grants and contributions, and capital gants and contributions. Internallv 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general 
revenues include all taxes. 

- 33 - 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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1. SUNLMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (continued) 

C:. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION (continued) 

Proprietary, or enterprise, funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nanoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and dehvering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
tJtilities System„Sewerage, Solid Waste, and Mosquito Ahatement Funds are charges to customers for services 
Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of services. admmistrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this detinition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Additionally, the government reports the following fiduciary funds. 

The ARC Maintenance Fund assists in the annual maintenance thr the ARC Center. The revenue is 
generated from a .97 mill Ad valorem Tax. 

The Senior Citizens Fund assists in the mutual maintenance of the two Council on Aging C'enters. The 
revenue is generated from a .99 mill ad valorem tax. 

Fiduciary funds included custodial funds and are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, 
including other governments. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Parish's policy to use restricted 
resources fust, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control device and budgets are legally adopted for 
the General Fund, Special Revenue, and Enterpnse Funds. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds 
are adopted on the modified accnial basis of accounting. Enterprise Fund budgets are adopted on the accrual 
basis of accounting. Budgetary data for the Capital Project and Debt Service funds are not presented since 
these funds are budgeted over the life of the respective project and not on an annual basis: however, any 
transfers to:from Capital Project and Debt Service Fund.s are included in the adopted budgets of the other funds 
These fluids are administratively budgeted for management use only. 

The level of budgetary control is at the fund department level and expenditures may not exceed hudgeted 
appropriations. Appropriations which are not expended lapse at year end. Additional details on the hudgetary 
process mav be found at Note 2. 

E. ENCUMBRANCES 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure 
of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation. is employed as an 
extension of formal budgetary accounting in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds. and Capital Project 
Funds. Encumbrances lapse at year-end, however. it is the Parish's intention to honor these encumbrances 
under authority provided in the suhsequent year's budget There were no significant encumbrances at 
December 31, 2022. 
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I. SEM 'ARV OF SIGNIFICAN'T ACCOUNTING POLICES (contmued) 

F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and mmey market accounts. 
Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with oriOnal maturities of 90 days 
or less For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Enterprise Funds consider these same items to be 
cash. 

LSA-R.S. 33:2955 authorizes the Council to invest in (1) direct obligations of the United States Treasury. the 
principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the federal government: (2) bonds, debentures. notes, or 
other evidence of indebtedness ksued or guaranteed by federal agencies or U.S. Government instrumentalities: 
(3) direct security repurcliase agreements of any federal book-entry-only securities: (4) thne certificates of 
deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal oftices 
in the State of Louisiana. savings accounts or shares of savuigs and loan associations: (5) in mutual or trust 
fund institutions which are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act 
of 1933 and the Investment Act of 1940, and which have underlying investments consisting solely of and 
limited to securities of the U.S. Government or its agencies: or (6) guaranteed investment contracts issued by a 
bank, financial institution, insurance company, or other entity having one of the two highest short-term rating 
categones of either Standard & Poor's Corporation or Moody's Investors Service. provided that no such 
investment may be made except in connection with a financing program approved by the State Bond 
Commission. 

In addition, local governments in Louisiana are authorized to in% est in the Louisiana Asset Management 
Pool, Inc. (LAMP), a non-protit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. 

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market. LSA-R.S. 39:1225 provides that the 
amount of the pledged securities shall at all times be equal to 100% of the amount on deposit to the credit of 
each depositing authority, except that portion of the deposits insured by any go% ernmental agency insuring 
hank deposits, which is organized under the laws of the United States. 

G. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 

During the course of operations. numerous transactions occur between individual fiinds for goods provided or 
services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due fiom other funds"' or "due to other 
funds" on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as into-fund receri ables:payables. 
Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the 
Statement of Net Position. Any residual balances outstanding between the gol, ernmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the governrnent-wide financial statements as "internal balances.-
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I. SUNDIARY OF SIGNIFICAN'T AC ( MINTING POLICES (contmuech 

H. ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS 

Advances hetween funds, as reported in the fund tinancial statements, are offset by a nonspendahle fUnd 
balance account in applicable governmental funds to indicate they are not mailable for appropriation and are 
not available tinancial resources that are expendahle. 

I. INVENTORY 

The cost of materials and supplies acquired by the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time 
of consumption Proprietary fund type inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, determined hy the 
first-in, first-out method. 

J. PREPAID ITEMS 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to fitture accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items, using the consumption method, in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

K. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, 
are classified as restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position because their use is limited by the governing 
bond col, enants. Additionally, customer deposits held by the Utilities System, an Enterprise Fund, are restricted 
for use in paying outstanding hills to he refunded when customers discontinue service. 

L. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets. which include land, buildings and building improvements, vehicles, fUrniture fixtures and 
equipment, and infrastructure assets (streets, roads, canals, water and sewer systems, and drainage systems), 
are reported in the applicable governmental or husiness-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Parish as assets with an initial. individual cost of 
$5,000 or more. Such assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if not purchased or 
constructed. except for intangible right-to-use lease assets, the measurement of which is discussed in note 
10 below. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Major additions 
are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets 
of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed 

In the fund financial smtements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as 
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary 
fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide financial statements. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 
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I. SUNLNIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (contmued) 

L. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

Depreciation on all capital assets, excluding land and construction in progress, is calculated on the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives. 

Asset Descri tion Asset Life (Years)  

Buildings and Building Improvements 40 
Infrastructure 20 to 40 
Drainage System 25 
Office Equipment 5 to 12 
Machinery and Equipment 10 
Right-to-use Leased Equipment and Vehicles 4 to 6 
Vehicles 5 
Systems - Water and Sewer 10 to 50 

M. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

The Council has the following policies relating to vacation and sick leave: 

Employees earn from 5 to 30 days of vacation leave each year, depending on their length of service. Vacation 
leave must be taken in the year earned and cannot be accumulated. Also. employees earn 6 to 18 days of sick 
leave per year which can be accumulated and is paid out only in accordance with Parish C)rdinance MM-67 
Parish Ordinance MN1-67 states. "Any employee who has not used more than ten percent (10%) of their annual 
accnted sick days shall have the option of being paid four (4) to five (5) days after the year end.-  Upon 
retirement, all accumulated unused and unpaid sick leave days, from 15 to 90 days based upon years of service, 
are forwarded to the retirement system for conversion upon application for normal retirement. 

The accumulation of sick leave is nominal at December 31, 2022. Therefore, a liability for compensated 
absences due to employees has not been included in the basic financial statements. 

N. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements. 
long-term debt and other long term oblieations are reported as liahilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and 
discounts are amortized over the life of the honds using the effective interest method. Pension and C)PEB 
liabilities are liquidated from the fiind in which the related salaries and benefits are paid. 

Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount Bond issuance costs are reported 
as an expense in the period incurred. 
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1. suNDIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (continued) 

N. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs. dunng the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other tinancing sources while discounts on 
debt issuance are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual 
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

O. NET POSITION 

In the government-wide financial statements. equity is classified as net position and displayed in three 
components: 

a. Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstandinL,  halances of any bonds, 
mortgages. notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted net position - consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments, or law through constitutional pro% isions or enahling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position - all other net position that do not meet the definition of "restncted" 
or "net investment in capital assets." 

P. FUND BALANCE 

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for govenunental funds is reported in classifications that 
cornprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Parish is hound to honor constraints on the 
specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can he spent. Fund balance is reported in five components 
— nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. 

l. Nonspendable - This compi-nient includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 
not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted - This component consists of amounts that have constraints placed on them either 
externally by third-parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments) or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling 
legislation authorizes the Parish to assess, levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of 
resources (from external resource proi, iders) and includes a legally enforceable requirement 
(compelled by external parties) that those resources be used only for the specific purposes 
stipulated in the legislation. 

3. Committed - This component consists of amounts that can only he used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Parish's highest level of decision 
making authority which includes an ordinance of the Parish Council. Those committed amounts 
cannot be used for anv other purpose unless the Parish Council removes or changes the 
specified use by takinii the same type of action it employed previously to commit those 
amounts. 
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I. SUNBURY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (continued) 

P. FUND BALANCE (continued) 

4. Assigned - This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the Parish Council's 
intent to he used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. 

5 Unassigned — This classification represents amounts that have not been restricted, committed 
or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. Only the General Fund will report a 
positive unassigned fund balance. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use. it is the Council's intention to use 
restricted resources first. then unrestricted resources (committed, assigned, and unassiened) as they are 
needed. When unrestricted resources (committed, assined. and unassigted) are available for use. it is the 
Council's intention to use committed resources first, then assigned. and then unassigned as they are needed. 

Q. INTERFUND TRANSAC:TIONS 

1nterfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues or expenditures. Transactions that 
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expendituresiexpenses initially made from it that are properly 
applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures. expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of 
expenditures 'expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 

All other interfund transactions, except interfund services provided and used and reimbursements, are reported 
as transfers. 

For the purposes of the Statetnent of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds 
have been eliminated. 

R. LEASES 

The Parish is a lessee for noncancellable leases of equipment and vehicles. The Parish recognizes a lease 
liability and an intangible nght-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the government-wide financial statements. 
The Parish recognizes lease liabilities with an initial, individual value of $5,000 or more 

At the commencement of a lease, the Parish initially measures the lease liability at the present value of payments 
expected to be made dunng the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion 
oflease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liahility. adjusted 
for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs. 
Subsequently, thr lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life. 
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1. sinkL\ IARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (contmued) 

R. LEASES (continued) 

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the Parish determines (1) the discount rate it uses 
to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease paytnents. 

The Parish uses the interest rate charged hy the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest rate charged by 
the lessor is not provided, the Pansh generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount 
rate for leases 

The lease term includes the noncancellable penod of the lease. Lease payments included in the rneasurement 
of the lease liability are composed of fixed payments and purchase option price that the Parish is reasonably 
certain to exercise. 

The Parish inonitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will 
rerneasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to sipificantly affect the 
amount of the lease liability 

Lease assets are reported with other capital assets and lease liabilities are reported with long-term debt on the 
Statement of Net Position. 

S. AD VALOREIII TAXES 

Ad valorem taxes are levied each Novernber 15th on the assessed alue listed as of the prior January 1st for all 
real property located in the Parish. The ad valorem tax is due and becomes an enforceable lien on property on 
the first day of the month following the filing of the tax rolls by the Assessor with the Louisiana Tax 
Commissions (December 1st). The tax is dehnquent thirty days after the due date. The ad valorern tax 
assessment tbr fiscal 2022 was formally levied in November 2022 hased on property values determined by the 
Assessor's Office. The tax is billed and collected by the Sheriff s Office. 

The following is a summaiy of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes for 2022: 

Parishwide Taxes 
Authorized Levied Expiration 

Date 
Parishwide 4.09 4.09 Permanent 
Courthouse and Jail 1.00 1.00 12:31;25 
Library 9.94 9.94 12'31.27 
Council on Aging (1.99 0.99 12'31;23 
Road Lighting District No.l 3.83 3.83 12 31.31 
Mosquito Abatement District 0.48 0.48 12/31:28 
Juvenile Detention Center 1.00 1.00 12.31'29 
Health Unit 0.96 0.96 12131,27 
Public Buildings ARC Maintenance 0.97 0.97 1 1 31',1* 
Animal Control Facilities 0.75 0.75 04 30 31 
General Obligation Bonds 12.50 12.50 03/01:24 
Recreation Facilities 2.25 2.25 04 3U 31 
Flood Protection Levee 7.00 7.00 12:31146 

* The Public Buildings ARC' Maintenance millage was renewed on November 8, 2022 and set to expire on 
12:3132. 
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1. SUNLMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (continued) 

T. SALES TAXES 

The St. John the Baptist Pansh School Board (the "School Boarc), a separate entitv, collects five percent 
(5%) in sales and use tax. The sales and use tax is collected hv an independent contractor, who is contracted 
through the School Board and sen es as the sales tax department. Two and one-quarter percent (2.25%) of 
the taxes collected are remitted to the Parish Council. One-half percent (.5%) of the taxes collected are 
remitted to the St. John the Baptist Parish Sheriff s Office (the "Sheriff s Office). The School Board's 
costs of collecting the funds are shared proportionally by the Council. Sheriff s Office and the School 
Board. 

U.AC:COUNTING ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in coMbrmity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of Arnenca requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions. Those estimates 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements. They may also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses of pmprietary funds 
and the government-wide fmancial statements during  the reporting penod. Actual results could differ from 
these estimates. 

V. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Outflows of Resources — In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement clement represents 
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense until 
then. The Parish has several items that meet this criterion, including cwitributions made to the pension plans, 
deferrals of pension anJ OPEB expense, and deferrals related to debt refunding. 

Deferred Inflows of Resources — In addition to liahilities. the statement of financial position will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate fmancial statement element represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. 
The Parish has several items that meets the critenon for this category. including deferrals of pension and OPEB 
expense and advance tax payments received before the year they are assessed. 

Unavailable revenue, which arises onlv under a modified accrual basis of accounting, is reported only in the 
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from two sources: 
property taxes and grants. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period 
that the amounts become available. 
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I. SUNDIARY OF SIGNIFICANT AC C OUNTING POLICES (continued) 

W. PENSIONS 

The Parish is a participating employer in four defined benefit pension plans as described in Note 10 For 
purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the tiduciary net position of each of 
the plans. and additions to/deductions from each plans' fiduciary net position have been detennined on the 
same basis as they are reported by each of the plans. For this purpose, benetit payments (including refunds 
of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payahle in accordance with the henetit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value within each plan. 

X.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the fmancial statements were available 
to be issued, September 29, 2023. See Note 20 for relevant disclosure. No subsequent events occurring after 
this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these financial statements. 

Y.REC:ENTLY ISSUED AND LMPLEMENTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The Parish has implemented GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The implementation of this 
statement did not result in any change in the Parish's fmancial statements. GASB Statement No. 91 clarities 
the existing detinition of a conduit debt obligation; establishes that a conduit debt ohligation is not a liability of 
the issuer; establishes standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and 
voluntary commitments extended hy issuers and arraneements associated with conduit debt oblieations; and 
improves required note disclosures. 

The Parish has implemented GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component 1.)Mt Criteria, and Accounting and 
Financial Report:I:O6r Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Dekred Compensation Plans—an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and No 84, and a supose.ssion qf GASB Statement No. 32 The implementation of 
this statement did not result in any change in the Parish's financial statements. For purposes of determining 
whether a primary gm ernment is financially accountable for a potential component unit, the requirements of 
GASB Statement No. 97 provides that for all other arrangements, the absence of a governing board be treated 
the same as the appomtment of a voting majonty of a governing board if the primary government perfomis the 
duties that a governing board typically would perform. 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued statements that will hecome effective in future 
years. These statements are as follows: 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31. 2022  

1. sin L\ IA RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (continued) 

Y. RECENTLY ISM IED AND IMPLEMENTED ACCOIINTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued) 

In May 2020, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 96, Subsenprion-Based Infinmation Technology 
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-
based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users ( go% ernments). This 
Statement (1) defines a SBITA: (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an 
intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability: (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays 
other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA: and (4) requires note disclosures 
reL,arding a SBITA. To the extent relevant. the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards estahlished in 
Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The requirements of this Statement are elective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2(122, and all reporting periods thereafter. Assets and liabilities resulting from SBITAs 
should be recognized and measured using the facts and circumstances that existed at the beginning of the fiscal 
year in which this Statement is implemented. Governments are permitted, but are not required, to include in the 
measurement of the subscription asset capitahzable outlays associated with the initial implementation stage and 
the operation and additional implementation stage incurred prior to the implementation of this Statement. 

The Parish is evaluating the requirements of the above statement and the irnpact on reportine 

2. STEWARDSHIP, CONIPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Budget 

The procedures used by the Parish in establishing the budfletary clata reflected in the required supplernentaiN 
information are as follows. 

(1) At least sixty (60) days hefore the beginning of the fiscal year, the President submits a line item 
operating budget and a capital budget in accordance with accepted accounting procedure in a format 
estahlished by the Council. The budget submitted shall be halanced. The President submits with the 
budget a message containing reconunendations concerning the fiscal policy of the Parish. a description 
of the important features of the budget, and an explanation of all major increases or decreases in budget 
recommendations as compared with expenditures of the prior year. 

(2) The Council pubfishes the proposed budget in the official journal two (2) weeks before the meeting at 
which the budget is to be adopted. The budget as adopted constitutes an appropriation of funds for all 
purposes contained therein. A budget ordinance becomes effective the first day of the fiscal year, unless 
otherwise provided therein. 

(3) The Council may arnend the budgets before adoption except that no items for debt service may be 
reduced below the aniount certified by the President as necessary. In no event should the Council cause 
the total expenditures to exceed anticipated revenues. If the Council fails to act on either budget within 
the time limit provided, it shall he adopted as submitted by the President. 
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2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY  (continued) 

Deficit Fund Balances /Net Position 

The following funds had a deficit in fund balance at December 31, 2022: 

Special Revenue Funds 
Hurricane Ida Fund $_(21,255,,11S) 
Criminal Court Fund $__(M911) 
RESTORE Fund $__(19,769) 

LASAFE Fund $ (77,850) 
Hurricane Isaac Fund $ (409,175) 
Hurricane Isaac CDBG Fund $__(40,415) 
LCDBG — CV Public Facilities Fund $ (22,642) 

The deficit fund balance in the identified funds is primarily the result of unrecognized revenues resulting from 
Federal programs. Replenishment of the deficit in these funds is contingent upon collection of revenues as 
reimbursement of claimed costs. 

• Hurricane IDA Fund - The deficit fund balance is predominantly the result of federal expenditures that 
were not obligated by grantors at year end and unrecognized revenues from Federal receivables. If 
federal disaster recovery program disallows the claim receivable for cost recovery, the notes borrowed 
by the Parish for financing the Hurricane Ida repairs will be reimbursed by FEMA funding. To the 
extent that FEMA disallows any such claims, the repayment of the note (i.e. deficit in the fund) will 
be repaid by any revenues from any funds that do not have a prior legal restriction upon them. 

• Criminal Court Fund - If additional revenues are not obtained from other external sources, the deficit 
fund balance will be ultimately absorbed by the General Fund. 

• RESTORE Fund, Hurricane Isaac Fund, Hurricane Isaac CDBG Fund, LCDBG — CV Public Facilities 
Fund, and LASAFE Fund - The deficit fund balances for these funds are predominantly the result of 
unrecognized revenues resulting from Federal receivables. The deficit in these funds will be resolved 
when receivables are collected and revenues are recognized. If federal disaster recovery programs 
disallow the claim receivables for cost recovery, the general fund will need to absorb the deficit. 

Expenditures with Unfavorable Appropriations 

For the year ended December 31, 2022, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following funds: 

Fund Budget Actual 
Unfavorable 

Variance 
Road and Bridges $ 10,784,901 $ 11,784,138 $ 999,237 
Hurricane Ida - 44,575,317 44,575,317 
Non-major Special Revenue Funds: 

   

Economic Development 1,457,831 1,513,530 55,699 
Fire Services 5,836,265 6,206,834 370,569 
LASAFE 889,810 2,393,772 1,503,962 
Hurricane Isaac - 1,103 1,103 
LCDBG — CV Public Facilities Fund - 22,642 22,642 
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3. CASH, CASH EOUIVALENTS AND INVESTMINTS  

At December 31, 2022, the Parish had cash and cash equivalents as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents accounts per Statement of Net Position c; 80,7,3,017 

Of the total cash and cash equivalents, shown above. 576,769,136 is unrestricted and $3,954,481 is 
restricted assets. Restricted cash is included with restncted assets on the combined Statement of Net 
Position. In the proprietary ftmds, restricted cash equals $3.954,48 I and unrestricted cash equals $1,085,614 
for total cash of $5,040,095 

Under State law, the hank balances of these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the 
pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The fair value of the pledged securities plus the federal 
deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. 

At year-end, the bank balance of deposits totaled $83,858,859. 

The bank balance is categonzed as follows: 
Amount insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance C'orporation, or collateralized with securities 
held by the Parish's agent in the Parish's name. 83,858,859 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Investments can be exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities underlying the investment are uninsured, 
not registered in the name of the entity, and are either held by the counterparty or the counterparty's trust 
department or agent but not in the entity's name. 

The Parish does not have an investment policy custodial credit risk. However. the Parish does not 
maintain any investments and is, therefore not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

Credit Risk of Debt Investments 

The Parish does not maintain any debt mvestments and is, theretbre. not exposed to credit risk of debt 
investments. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Parish does not rnaintain any iris estments and is, therefore, not exposed to concentration of credit risk. 

Interest Rate Risk 

The Parish does not maintain any investments and is. therefore, not exposed to interest rate risk. 
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4. RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at December 31, 2022 for the Parish's individual major funds and nonmajor funds. including the applicable allowances tbr 
unc(►llectible accounts, are as follows: 

Taxes: 

   

Governmental Activities 

   

Genual 
Fimr1 

Sales Tax 
District 

Road,. :IDE 
Bribes 

I , ), /1 O.O. 
Bonds 

Sinking 
American 

Humcane lila Recuveiv Plan 
Levee 

Piotecnon 
Nou-majoi 

Fmk 

Total 
Governmental 

Activities 

         

Ad Valorem $ 3,589,156 $ $ 11,991 $ 7,966.132 $ - $ $ 4935.243 $ 6.175.712 $ r ),67S,23-1 
Sales and Use 11,332 1,805.852 7 47.921 

    

1,745.155 4,310,260 

Intergovernmental 

  

42,112 

  

7,957,41)3 

 

1.701.262 9,7041,777 

Accounts 

         

Receivable (net ) 

       

193.514 256.394 

Other Taxes 37.416 

 

i5 

  

1.6'4.989 

 

131.727 1.7116.167 

Tutal Receivables 1,7nn,814 $ 1 805 852 1804,029 $ 

 

9.sS7,3,97 4.91s,243 $ 9 947  7, 70 $ 1S.7-11,S12 
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4. RECEIVABLES (continued) 

Taxes: 

   

Business-Nre Activities 

 

Mosquito 
Abateinent 

 

Utilities 
System Seweraile Solid Waste 

Total Business-

 

Type Activities 

      

Ad Valorem $ 340.123 S - $ 

  

$ 340,123 

Accounts 

      

Receivable 338,946 

 

5,789,671 3.819.261 2.469.956 12.417.834 

Gross Receivahles 679,069 

 

5,789,671 3.819.261 2.469.956 12.757.957 
Less: Allowance 

      

For Estimated 
Uncollectable (271,612) 

 

(4,772,420) (3,180,399) (2,007,788) O0.232.2191 

Net Receivables $ 407.457 $ 1,017.251 S 638.S62 S 462.168 S ',515,738 

An allowance for estimated uncollectible receivables is established based on historical collection experience 
and other relevant circumstances. The allowance for estimated uncollectible receivables at December 31. 2022, 
consisted of the following: 

Governmental Funds. 

 

Ambulance Fund S 154.799 
Total Governmental Funds $ 154.799 

Enterprise Funds: 

 

Mosquito Abatement $ 271,612 
Utilities System 4,772,420 
Sewerage 3.180,399 
Solid Waste 2,0(17,788 

Total Enterprise Funds S 10,232,219 

Total allowance for uncollectible accounts 10,387,018 

Upon further analysis of the tJtilities System accounts receivable at December 31, 2022, an allowance was 
established for all aged account balances. An allowance for estimated uncollectible receivahles on the 
remaining account balances is based on historical collection experience. 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the vear ended Decernber 31, 2022 was as follows. 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

December 31. 
2021 Additions Reductions 

December 3 I, 
10)1 

    

Land $ 4,493.876 $ 

 

$ 4,493,876 
Construction-in-prop-ess 10.155,563 7,946.873 (2,308.479) 15.793,957 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 14.649,439 7,946.873 (2,308.479) 10.'87,833 

Capital assets heing 
depreciated:amortized: 

    

Buildings and huilding 
improvements 62,643,332 2,558,945 (28,224) 65,174,053 

Infrastructure 177.493,008 5,£►01 

 

177.498,809 
Drainage systein 31,260,961 13,596 

 

31,274.557 
Furniture, tixtures, and equipment 17,345,348 841,248 

 

18, I 86,596 
Right-of-use leased equiprnent 

and vehicles 822,700 380,834 (36,400) 1,167,134 
Vehicles 13.831,151 524.963 

 

14.357,114 
Total capital assets heing 

depreciate& amortized 303,397,500 4,325.387 (64,(?2-1) 307.658,163 

Less: accumulated depreciation 
amortization: 

    

Buildings and building 
improvements 21,073,249 1,921,592 (28,224) 22,966,617 

In£rastructure 158.316,110 1,298,141 

 

159,614,361 
Drainage system 11,656,697 1,076,051 

 

12,732,748 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 9.220,822 850,361 

 

10,071,183 
Right-of-use leased equiprnent 

and vehicles 318,403 1 26,582 (36,400) 508,585 
Vehicles 10.5(11,051 771.348 

 

11.274,399 
Total accumulated depreciation 

amortization 211,087.442 6,145.075 (64.624) 217,167.893 

Total capital assets being depreciated 
: amortized, net 92,310,058 (1,819.688) 

 

90.490,370 

Total governmental activiucs capital 
assets. net $106,959,497 $ 6,127,185 $ (2.308,479) $ 110,778,203 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

Business-type Activities: 

C'apital assets not being depreciated: 

December 3 
2021 Additions Reductions 

I)zcember 31, 
)0, 

    

Land $ 1.719,347 S $ - $ 1,719,347 
C'onstruct ion-in-progress 6.97'347 1,788,443 1 920.045) 6.834,145 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 8,691,694 1,788,443 t 1,926,645) 8,553,492 

Capital assets being 
depreciatediamortized: 

    

Buildines and building 
improvernents 14.567,(i42 77.687 

 

14.645,329 
Systems — water and sewer 237,626,889 2,304,054 

 

239,930,943 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 5.358,665 

  

5,358,665 
Right-of-use leased equipment 

and vehicles 556,999 408,607 

 

965.606 
Vehicles 1.179,854 

 

(34,874) 1.144,980 
Total capital assets being 

depreciate& amortized 1 59.19(O49 2,790,348 (34,874) 162.045,5/3 

Less: accumulated depreciation ; 
amortization: 

    

Buildings and building 
improvements 5,391,091 398,950 

 

5,790,041 
Systems — water and sewer 133.451,247 5,371,675 

 

138,822,922 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 2,825,368 1 )9,275 

 

3,054,643 
Right-of-use leased equiprnent 

and vehicles 182,289 

  

182.289 
Vehicles 1,008,628 61,697 (26,156) 1,044,169 

Total accumulated depreciation 
arnortization 142.858,623 6,061.597 (26,156) 148.894,064 

Total capital assets being depreciated 
• amortized, net 110,431.426 (3,271.249) (8,718) 113.151,459 

Total business-type activities capital 
assets. net $125.123,120 $ (1,482,806) $ 1.935,363) $ 121,704,951 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

Deprecianorramortization expense was charged to functions!programs of the Pansh as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

 

General government $ 1.107.533 
Public safety 1,122,435 
Public works 3,021,171 
Culture and recreation 820.229 
Economic development 5.460 
Health & welfare 68.247 

Total $ 6,145,O5 

Business-type activities: 

 

Utilities Operations K 1,918.1P6 
Sewcrage Operations 3.143,571 

Total $ 6,061,597 

'onstniction in progress is comprised of the followin: 

Governniental Actkities: 

Expended to 
December 31, 2022 

 

Streetscape Project LaSAFE) 13 3,101,976 
Eastbank Miss Trail Phase IV 2,601.523 
HMGP — Electrical Components 1,600,466 
Belle Pointe Sewer Reroute 1,304.618 
Carrohvood Drive Rehah 1.263,486 
Engineering-Lake Pontchartrain 748,971 
WWC Pemi Generator 496.959 
Lucy Levee Trail 404,686 
Vieknair Canal 395.534 
RESTORE (Belle Terre Streetscape) 348,225 
Theater Building Repairs 321,034 
HMGP Bar Screen Cleaners 289.419 
Sheriffs Office Disaster 243.031 
WB Multi-Purpose Complex 200.846 
Other Upgrades 2.473.183 

Total Governmental Activities $ 15,793,957 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

 

Business-type Activities: 
Water Meters $ 5,876,375 
Waste water consolidation 314.)03 
Other putnps and maintenance 633.567 

Total Business-Type Activities 6,834.145 

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS $ 22,628,102 

The Parish has committed to spending approximately $21.5 million to complete the ahove projects. 

6. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES  

The following is a summary of accrued expenses and other liabilities as of December 31, 2022: 

   

Class of Payable 

  

Salarles 1,Vithholdiris Contracts Other Total 

General Fund 119,882 $ 352,734 $ $ - $ 472,616 

Road & Bridges 9,0'71 149,998 38,051 

 

287,120 

Hurricane Ida 

  

130,993 

 

130,993 

Levee Protection 

  

60,050 

 

60,050 

Non-major funds 154,333 

 

353,131 1,675 509,139 

Utilities 92,470 81348 284,162 202,129 660,109 

Sewerage 96,374 87,744 

 

108,046 292,164 

Total $ 562,130 $ 671,824 $ 866,387 $ 311,850 $ 2,412,191 

7, PAYABLE FRO11I RESTRICTED ASSETS 

A summary of enterpnse funds' current liabihties payable from restncted assets by account follows: 

Utilities 
System 

Customer deposits $ 1,005,564 
Current portion of bonds payable 769.000 

Total $ 1.774.564 
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8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a sumrnary of long-term liability transactions of the Parish for the N.  car ended December 31. 
11171. 

Governmental Activities 
General Obli9tion Bonds - 

Balance 
January 1. 202? 

Issues 
Additions 

Adjustments 

Payments 
Expenditures Balance 
Adjustments I)ecemher 31. 2027 

Due 
Within 

One Year 

     

Public Offerings $ 21.775,000 $ 15,0(10.0O) $ (2.535.000) s 34240,000 $ 5585,000 
General Obligation Bonds - 

Direct Placements 18,310.000 

 

(2,475,000) 15,835.000 ) ,560,000 
Public Improvement 

Bonds 7,580,000 

 

(800.00)) 6,780,000 835.000 
Sales Tax & 

Revenue Bonds 1,720,000 30,000,000 (410.0(0) 31,310,000 425,(N)0 
State Revolving 

Fund Loan 851,000 

 

(74.000) 777,000 74,000 
Finance Purchase 

Obligation 86,090 

 

(86.090) 

  

Lease Liability 524,577 380,834 (230,568) 674,843 257,385 
Premium 710,073 1,011,733 (127,310) 1,594,496 279,913 

Total Governmental 
Activities 51,556.740 46,391,567 (6,737,968) 91,211.339 10,016.298 

Business-Type Acti‘ ities 

     

Revenue Bonds 2.300,000 

 

(300,0(10) 2.000,000 310.000 
State Revolving 

Fund Loans 7,179,862 1.115.342 (443,000) 7,852,204 965,446 
Lease Liahility 384,765 375,735 (167.5(10) 593.000 184.214 

Total Business-type 

     

Activities 9,864,627 1,491,1)77 (910.500) 10,445,204 1,459,660 

Total Long-Term 
Liahihties $ 61,421,367 $ 47,883,644 $ (7,648,468) $ 101,656,543 S 11,475,958 
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8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  (continued) 

General Obligation Bonds, Revenue Bonds, and other lung-temi debt are compnsed uf the ibllowing 
individual issues. 

Date of Authorized 
Bond Tviv Issuance and Issued 

Interest 
Rate °o 

Nlaturitv 
Date 

Principal 
Outstandin2 

Intert,t 
to Maturity 

Government Activities: 
General 0blieation Bonds 

    

General Obligation Refunding Bonds - 
Series 2014 06'10 14 18.000,000 2 0-3 0 031)1.34 S 10,800.00(1 $ 2.190.375 

General Obligation Bonds 
- Series 2015 08:26 15 12.000,000 2 0-4 0 03111.35 8,44(1.00(1 2.185.781 

General Obligation Bonds 

    

- Series 2022 08'10 22 5.000,000 5 0 03111.32 15.000.000 2.647.'50 
Total General Obligati( in Bonds - Public Offenngs 

  

34.24i1.000 7,023.406 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
Series 2013 1113 13 6.050,000 ?.15 03:01.24 1,405.00(1 31.893 

Refunding Bonds 

    

- Series 2016 05'03 16 20.390,000 -I 1 03 01 '9 14.430.000 1.098.615 
Total General Obligati( in Bonds - Direct Placements 

  

13.835.000 1.130.508 

Total General Obligation Bonds 

  

50,075,000 8.153.914 

Public Improvement Bonds 

    

Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, 
Series ST-2020 1201:20 8.350,000 3 0-4 0 12 01:29 6.780.0lK) 904.850 
Total Puhlic 1mpnwement Bonds 

  

6,780.00(1 904.850 

Revenue Bonds and Notes - Direct Placement 

    

Revenue Bonds Series 2015 07'30 15 3.000,000 ?.39 02:01. ?5 1.310.000 47.561 
Hurricane Recovery — Revenue 

    

Notes Series 2022 01'11:22 30.00(1,000 1 7 01 '01:25 30.00(O00 1,275.000 
Total Revenue Bonds and Notes — Direct Placement 

  

31.31(O00 1,322.561 

Loan — Direct Borrowing 

    

State Revolving Fluid Loan 10.1912 1.359,000 0.95 1'01:31 777,0li0 19.512 
Total Loan — Direct Borrowing 

  

777,m)0 19.512 

Total Governmental 

  

88,942,000 10,400,837 

Business-type Activities: 

    

Revenue Bonds — Direct Placement 

    

Water Revenue Utility Bonds 

    

Series 2012 03:20:12 4.870.000 1 2-2.95 12;01:28 " 1)00,0011 1 07.181 
Total Revenue Bonds — Direct Placement 

  

" (100,00(1 1 07.181 
Loans 

    

State Revolving Fund Loan 05:16-22 15.000.000 0.05 05;16:42 506.446 6.06-1 
State Revolving Fund 1-4 iart 01'16.19 6.000,000 0.95 12.01'39 4.939,868 204.931 
State Revolving Fund Limn 09'18.B 5.500,000 3.45 12.01'32 2.405,890 37.052 

Total Loans 

  

7.852,204 248.047 
Total Business-type 

  

S 9.852,204 $ 455.230 
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Annual debt service to matunty on bonds. including interest, are as follows: 

Year Ending 
December 31. 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds - 
Public 

Offerings 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds - 
Direct 

Placements 

Public 
Improvement 

Bonds 

Revenue 
Bonds - 
Direct 

Placement 

Loan - 
Direct 

Borrowing 

Total 
Governmental 

Activities 

Revenue 
Bonds - 
Direct 

Placement 

Loans - 
Direct 

Borrowin2,-, 

Total 
Business-

 

Type 
Activities 

1023 $6.894.833 $2.867.245 S1,064.750 $961.230 $77.496 $11.865.554 $367.068 51.029.405 $1.396,473 
1024 6.885.582 2.901.487 1,071.350 960.953 78.164 11.897.536 363.543 487.735 851,278 
1025 1.835.308 2.197.178 1,086.350 30.710.378 78.826 36.008.040 364.723 493.894 858,617 
2026 2.794,507 2.214,653 1,094.350 

 

79,484 6,182.994 370,460 502.048 S72,508 
2027 2.781,807 1.140,762 1,110.250 

 

79,138 6,211.957 370,770 510.414 S81,184 
2028-2032 14.755,119 4.544,183 2,257.8(10 

 

403A04 21,960.506 370,619 2,680.374 3.050,993 
2033-2037 4.316,250 

    

4.316,25(1 

 

1,611.259 1.611.259 
2038-2039 

       

785.122 785,122 
Total deht 
service to 
matunty $41.263,406 $16.965,508 S7,684.850 532,632.561 $ 796.512 $99.341,837 $1.107,183 S8,100.251 Si0.307,434 

Less amounts representing interest: 

        

/(O3 $1.309.833 $ 3117.245 s1,9.750 5536.130 53.496 52,386.554 557.068 S63,959 5121.027 
2024 1.010.582 251.487 196.350 515.953 3.164 1.987,536 48.543 1 3.111 71.754 
1 015 845.308 1 01.178 161.35() 2611.378 2.826 1.472.040 39.7'3 20.152 50.875 
/026 774.507 159.653 124.350 

 

2.484 1.060,994 30.460 18.862 40.3'1 
2027 701.807 115.762 95.150 

 

2.138 914,957 2ti.770 17.556 38.326 
1 O8-'031 2.175.119 94.183 97.800 

 

5.404 2,372.506 10.619 67.778 78,397 
21133-2037 206.250 

    

206,250 

 

33.'59 33.'59 
11138-'039 

     

- - 3 /70 3.2-'0 
Total Interest 7.023.406 1.130.50x 904.850 1.3'2.561 19,512 10.400.37 -)07.13 24,:(.047 455.130 
Total Principal i.+34,240.000 5.35.000 S6,780,000 $31.310.000 $777.000 $88.94 'M0 '.000.000 !;7.S52.204 S9.85'.'04 
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General Obligation Bonds are secured hy an annual ad valorem tax levy. In accordance with LSA-R S 39:562, 
the Council is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt in excess of 35 percent of the assessed 
value of property in the Parish. The statute also states the Parish is restncted from incurring long-term bonded 
debt in excess of 10 percent of assessed value for any one purpose. The statutory deht limit for the Parish is 
reported ui the Statistical Section of the Parish's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. The total 
indebtedness secured by ad valorem taxes totaled $50,075,000 as of December 31, 2022. 

Events of default include principal and interest delinquencies or failure to comply with the performance of any 
other of the covenants, agreements or conditions. A written notice of the default will be sent to the hondholder 
and if the failure shall continue for a period of 45 days after written notice is sent, the bondholder shall be 
entitled to exercise all nghts and powers for which provision is made under Louisiana law. 

The L,overnment-wide financial statements do not include any of the Industrial Revenue Bonds issued by the 
industrial districts of the Parish. Obligations of the industrial districts are payable solely from the income and 
revenues derived from the industrial districts. Although the name of the Council appears on the face of the 
bonds, the Council has not guaranteed payment of those bonds in the event of default by the issuing authority. 

All of the outstanding revenue bonds are subject to early redemption provisions. 

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures 

Pledged Revenues 

The Parish has pledged revenues of 12.5 mills of unlimited ad valorem taxes to secure $50,075,000 of 
General Obligation Bond.s issued for the purpose of constructing and improving public huildings and 
infrastructure. This debt service millage has been approved by the voters of the Parish through /vIarch 1, 
2024 Approximately $8.4 million of pledged ad valorem revenue was utilized for approximately $6 0 
million in principal and interest payments made in 2022 for General Obligation Bonds. 

The Parish has pledged revenues from the proceeds of one percent (1%) sales and use tax collected hy the 
St. John the Baptist Pansh School Board. of the total two and one quarter percent (2.25%) remitted to the 
Parish, for the purposes of constructing, maintaining, and improving the Parishwide Waterworks Treatment 
and Distribution System. These revenues secure $8,350,000 in Public Improvement Bonds issued for the 
purpose of constructing, acquiring, extending and improving the sewers and sewerage disposal facilities of 
the Parish. This one percent tax levy was approved and rededicated in perpetuity hy the N oters of the Parish 
in 2010. Approximately $11.7 million of this dedicated tax was recognized in 2022, with approximately 
S1.1 nullion utilized fbr debt sen ice payments made in 2022 for Public Improvement Bonds. 

The Parish has pledged revenues from the proceeds of one-quarter percent (0.25%) sales and use tax 
collected by the St. John the Baptist Parish School Board, of the total two and one quarter percent (2.251!.0 
remitted to the Parish, for the purposes of providing fire protection throughout the Parish. These revenues 
secure $3,000.000 in Sales Tax Bonds issued for the purpose of acquiring fife-fighting equipment. lands, 
and machinery for the Volunteer Fire Departments of the Parish. This one-quarter percent tax levy was 
approved perpetuity hy the voters of the Parish in 1984. Approximately 56.3 milhon of this dedicated tax 
was recognized in 2022, with approximately $446,000 utilized for debt service payments made in 2022 for 
Sales Tax Bonds. 
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The Parish has pledged revenues for a portion of income and revenues derived by the Parish from the 
operation of the waterworks system of the Parish. These revenues secure $2,590,000 in Revenue Bonds 
issued for the purpose of constructing, maintainine. and improving the waterworks system of the Parish. 
These bonds mature on December 1, 2028, at which point, the revenues of the waterworks system will no 
longer be pledged for debt service. Approximately $6.0 million was recognized as operating revenue for 
the waterworks system in 2022, with approximatdy $365,000 utilized for debt service payments made in 
2022 for Revenue Bonds. 

In January 2022, the Parish issued $30,000.000 Hurricane Recovery Revenue Notes, Series 2022 (the 
Notes). The Notes were issued for the purpose of (a) paying any costs associated with debris removal or 
the demolition. rehabilitation, repair. reconstruction, renovation, restoration and improvement of the 
Parish's facilities resulting from or related to Hurricane Ida, including purchasing any furnishings, fixtures 
and equipment incidental or necessary in connection therewith, and (b) paying the cost of issuance of the 
Notes The Notes are secured and payable from a pledge of all funds or revenue received or to be received 
by the Parish to the extent legally available for the payment of debt service on the Notes. 

9. LEASES 

The Parish entered into multiple ageements as lessee for the acquisition and use of equipment and vehicles, 
including copiers, GPS trackers, and generators. As of December 31, 2022, the value of the lease liabilities 
were $674,843 for eovernmental activities and $593,0110 for business-type activities. The Parish is required 
to make monthly pnncipal and interest payments totaling $40.000. The leases have interest rates ranging 
from 3.24% to 4.8%. 

The future principal and interest lease payments as of December 31, 2022, were as follows: 

Year Ending 
Decemher 31. 

Governmental Acti \ ities Business-Type Activities 

Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 

/013 $ 257,385 $ 20,62/ $ 278,007 $ 184.214 $ 17,773 $ 201,987 
2024 211,787 11,055 222,842 167,603 10,920 178,523 
/015 96,681 5,911 102,592 105,999 5,908 111.907 
/016 108,990 2,830 1 11,820 135,184 

 

137.951 

Totals $ 674,843 40.418 715.261 $ 593,000 S S 630.368 

10. PENSION PLAN 

Substantially all employees of the Pansh are members of one of the following statewide retirement systems. 
Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana ("FRS"), Parochial Employees' Retireinent System of 
Louisiana ("PERS"). Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana ("RVERS"). or the 
District Attorneys' Retirement System ("DARS") These systems are cost-sharing multiple-employer, 
defined benefit pension plans administered by separate board.s of trustees. 
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General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions 

FRS 
The Firefighters' Retirement System is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. 
Membership in the system is a condition of employment for any full-time firefighters who earn at least 
$375 per month, excluding state supplemental pay, and are employed by a fire department of any 
municipality, parish, or fire protection district of the State of Louisiana, excepting Orleans and Lafayette 
Parishes, in addition to employees of the FRS. The system provides retirement, disability, and death benefits 
for its members. 

The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to 
be provided to current active and inactive employees through the system in accordance with benefit terms 
and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 

PERS  
Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit pension plan. The System was established and provided for by R.S.11:1901 of 
the Louisiana Revised Statute ("LRS"). 

The System provides retirement benefits to employees of taxing districts of a parish or any branch or section 
of a parish within the State which does not have their own retirement system and which elects to become 
members of the System. 

All permanent parish government employees (except those employed by Orleans, Lafourche, and East 
Baton Rouge Parishes) who work at least 28 hours a week shall become members on the date of 
employment. New employees meeting the age and Social Security criteria have up to 90 days from the date 
of hire to elect to participate. 

As of January 1997, elected officials, except coroners, justices of the peace, and parish presidents may no 
longer join the Parochial System. 

RVERS  
The Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plan established in accordance by Act 215 of 1954, under Revised Statute 11:2032 to provide 
retirement allowances and other benefits for registrars of voters, their deputies, and their permanent 
employees in each parish of the State of Louisiana. 

The System was established on January 1, 1955 for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and 
other benefits as stated under the provisions of R.S. Title 11:2032, as amended, for registrars of voters, their 
deputies, and their permanent employees in each parish. The projection of benefit payments in the 
calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive 
employees through the System in accordance with the benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to 
provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 
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Plan Descriptions (continued) 

I)AR5 
The District Attorneys' Retirement System, State of Louisiana is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The System was established on August I, 1956 and was 
placed under the management of the board of trustees for the purpose of providing retirement allowances 
and other benefits as stated under the provisions of R.S. 11, Chapter 3 fbr district attorneys and their 
assistants in each parish. 

All persons who are district attorneys of the State of Lommana, assistant district attorneys in any parish of 
the State of Louisiana, or employed hy this retirement system and the Louisiana District Attorneys' 
Association except for elected or appointed officials who have retired from service under any publicly 
funded retirement system within the state and who are currently receiving benefits, shall become members 
as a condition of their employment: provided, however, that in the case of assistant district attorneys, they 
must be paid an amount not less than the minimum salary specified by the board for assistant district 
attorneys, currently S18.000 per year. The projection of benefit payinents in the calculation of the total 
pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through the 
System in accordance with the benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that 
are in force at the measurement date. 

Benefits Provided 

FRS 
Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 434 of 1979 and amended by LRS 11:2251-11:2272. The 
following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information purposes only. 
Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Any person who becomes an employee as defined in LRS 11:2252 on and after January 1, 1980 shall 
become a member as a condition of employment. Members may retire 1) at any age with 25 years or more 
of creditable service, or .2) at age 50 with at least 20 vears of creditable service. 

No person who has attained age 50 or over shall become a member of the System, unless the person becomes 
a member by reason of a merger or unless the System received an application for membership before the 
applicant attained the age of 50. No person who has not attained the age of eighteen years shall become a 
member of the System. 

Any person who has retired from service under any retirement system or pension fund maintained basically 
for public officers and employees of the state, its agencies or political subdivisions. and who is receiving 
retirement benefits therefrom may become a member of this System. provided the person meets all other 
requirements for membership Service credit from the retirement system or pension plan from which the 
member is retired shall not he used for reciprocal recognition of service with this System. or for any other 
purpose in order to attain eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in this System. 

- 58 - 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31, 2022  

10. PENSION PLAN  (continued) 

Benefits Provided (continued) 

PERS  

Any member of Plan A can retire providing he/she meets one of the following criteria: 
For employees hired prior to January 1, 2007: 

1. Any age with 30 or more years of creditable service. 
2. Age 55 with 25 years of creditable service. 
3. Age 60 with a minimum of 10 years of creditable service. 
4. Age 65 with a minimum of 7 years of creditable service. 

For employees hired after January 1, 2007: 
1. Age 55 with 30 years of service. 
2. Age 62 with 10 years of service. 
3. Age 67 with 7 years of service. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance of any member of Plan A shall consist of an 
amount equal to three percent of the member's five year final average compensation multiplied by his/her 
years of creditable service. However, under certain conditions, as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are 
limited to specified amounts. 

RVERS  
Any member hired prior to January 1, 2013 is eligible for normal retirement after he has 20 years of 
creditable service and is age 55 or has 10 years of creditable service and is age 60. Any member with 30 
years of creditable service regardless of age may retire. Regular retirement benefits for members hired prior 
to January 1, 2013 are calculated at 3.33% of the average annual earned compensation for the highest 
consecutive 60 months multiplied by the number of years of creditable service, not to exceed 100% of 
average annual compensation. 

Any member hired on or after January 1, 2013 is eligible for normal retirement after he has attained 30 
years of creditable service and is age 55; has attained 20 years of creditable service and is age 60; or has 
attained 10 years of creditable service and is age 62. Regular retirement benefits for members hired on or 
after January 1, 2013 are calculated at 3.00% of the average annual earned compensation for the highest 
consecutive 60 months multiplied by the number of years of creditable service, not to exceed 100% of 
average annual compensation. Retirement benefits for members hired on or after January 1, 2013 that have 
attained 30 years of creditable service with at least 20 years of creditable service in the System are calculated 
at 3.33% of the average annual compensation for the highest consecutive 60 months multiplied by the 
number of years of creditable service, not to exceed 100% of average annual compensation. 

Any member whose withdrawal from service occurs prior to attaining the age of 60 years, who shall have 
completed 10 or more years of creditable service and shall not have received a refund of his accumulated 
contributions, shall become eligible for a deferred allowance beginning upon his attaining the age of 60 
years. 
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Benefits Provided (continued) 

I)ARS 
Members who joined the DARS before July 1, 1990, and who have elected not to be covered by the new 
provisions. are eligible to recene a nonnal retirement benefit if they have 10 or more years of creditable 
service and are at least age 62, or if they have 18 or more years of service and are at least age 60, or if they 
have 23 or more years of service and are at least age 55, or if they have 30 years of service regardless of 
age. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 3% of the member's aierage final compensation for each 
year of creditable service. Members are eligible for early retirement at aee 60 if they have at least 10 years 
of creditable service or at age 55 with at least 18 years of creditable service. Members who retire prior to 
age 60 with, less than 23 year of service credit. receive a retirement benefit reduced 3% for each year of 
age below 60. Members who retire prior to age 62 who have less than 18 years of service receive a 
retirement benefit reduced 3'!.'o for each year of age below 62. Retirement benefits may not exceed 100% of 
final averaee compensation. 

Members who joined the DARS after July 1, 1990, or who elected to be covered hy the new provisions, are 
eligible to receive nornial retirement benefits if they are age 60 and have 10 years of service credit, are age 
55 and have 24 years of service credit, or have 30 years of service credit regardless of age The normal 
retirement benefit is equal to 3.5% of the member's final average compensation multiplied by years of 
membership service. A member is eligible for an early retirement benefit if he is age 55 and has 18 years 
of service credit The early retirement henetit is equal to the normal retirement benefit reduced 3% for each 
year the member retires in advance of nornial retirement age. Benefits may not exceed 100% of average 
final compensation 

Disability Benefits 

FRS 
A member who acquires a disability, and who tiles for disahility benefits while in service, and who upon 
medical examination and certification as provided for in Title 11. » foimd to have a total disability solely 
as the result of injuries sustained in the performance of his official duties, or for any cause, provided the 
member has at least five years of creditable service and provided that the disability was incurred while the 
member was an active contributine member in active service, shall be entitled to disabihty  benefits under 
the provisions of R S. 11 .2258(8). 

PERS 
For Plan A, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if they were hired prior to 
January 1, 2007 and has at least five years of creditable service or if hired after January 1, 2007, has seven 
years of creditable service. and is not eligihle for normal retirement and has been officially certified as 
disabled by the State Medical Disahility Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a member of Plan A 
shall he paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of an amount equal to ≥ 00% of the member's final 
aierage compensation multiplied by his years of service, not to he less than 15, or 3.00% multiplied by 
years of service assuming continued service to age 60. 
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I)isability Benefits (continued) 

RVERS  
Disability benetits are provided to active contributing members with at least 10 )iears of service established 
in the System and who ha% e been officially certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. The 
disabled member who has attained the age of 60 years shall be entitled to a regular retirement allowance. 
The disabled member who has not yet attained age 60 shall be entitled to a disability benefit equal to the 
lesser of 3.00% of his average final compensation multiplied hy the number of creditable years of service 
(not to be less than 15 years) or 3 1.31!iii of averaee final compensation multiplied by the years of service 
assuming continued service to age 60. Disability benefits may not exceed two-thirds of earnable 
compensation. 

DARS 
Disability benefits are awarded to active contributing members with at least 10 years of service who are 
found to be totally disabled as a result of injuries incurred while in active service. The member receives a 
benefit equal to three percent (:3!• for members covered under the new retirement benefit provisions) of 
his average fmal compensation muluphed by the lesser of his actual service mot to he less than 15 years) 
or projected continued service to age 60. 

Survivor Benefits 

FRS 
Benefits shall be payable to the surviving eligible spouse or designated beneficiary of a deceased member 
as specified in R.S. 11 .2256(8) & (C). 

PERS  
Upon the death of any member of Plan A with five (5) or more years of creditable service who is not eligible 
for retirement, the plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children, as outlined in the 
statutes. 

Any member of Plan A. who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death, the surviving spouse shall 
receive an automatic Option 2 benefit, as outlined in the statutes. 

A surviving spouse who is not eligible for Social Security survivorship or retirement benefits. and married 
not less than twelve (12) months inunediately preceding death of the member, shall he paid an Option 2 
benefit beginning at age 50. 

RVERS 
If a member who has less than tive years of credited service dies due to any cause other than mjuries 
sustained in the performance of his official duties, his accumulated contributions are paid to his designated 
beneficiary. If the member has five (5) or more years of credited service. and is not eligihle to retire, 
automatic option 2 benefits are payahle to the surviving spouse. These benefits are based on the retirement 
benefits accrued at the member's date of death with option 2 factors used as if the member had continued 
in service to earliest normal retirement age. 
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Survivor Benefits (continued) 

If a member has no surviving spouse and the member has five or rnore years of creditahle service, the 
surviving minor children under 18 or disabled children thall he paid 80% of the accrued retirement benefit 
in equal shares until the age of majority or for the duration of the handicap for a handicapped child. Upon 
the death of any former memher with 10 or more years of service. automatic option 2 benefits are payahle 
to the surviving spouse. In lieu of periodic payments, the surviving spouse or children niay receive a refttnd 
of the member's accumulated contributions. 

DARS  
Upon the death of a member with less than five (5) years of creditable service, his accumulated contributions 
and interest thereon are paid to his surviving spouse, if he is manied, or to his designated beneficiary, if he 
is not married. Upon the death of any active, contributing member with five (5) or more years of service or 
any member with 23 years of service who has not retired, automatic option 2 benefits are payable to the 
surviving spouse. These benefits are hased on the retirement benefits accrued at the member's date of death 
with the option factors used as if the member had continued in service to earliest normal retirement age. If 
a member has no surviving spouse, the surviving minor children under 18 or disabled children are paid 80% 
of the member's accrued retirement benefit divided into equal shares. If a member has no surviving spouse 
or children, his accumulated contributions and interest are paid to his designated beneficiary. In lieu of 
periodic payments, the surviving spouse or children may receive a refttnd of the member's accumulated 
contributions with interest. 

Upon withdrawal from service, memhers not entitled to a retirement allowance are paid a refund of 
accumulated contributions upon request. Receipt of such a refund cancels all accrued rights in DARS. 

The Board of Trustees is authorized to grant retired members and widows of members who have retired an 
annual cost of living increase of 3°..;. of their original benefit, (not to exceed sixty dollars per month) and all 
retired members and widows who are sixty-five years of age and older a 1% increase in their original 
benefit. In lieu of other cost of living increases the board may punt an increase to retirees in the form of 
"Xx(A&Br where "A" is equal to the number of years of credited service accrued at retirement or death of 
the member or retiree and "B" is equal to the number of years since death of the member or retiree to June 
30 of the initial year of increase and "X" is equal to any amount available for funding such increase up to a 
maximum of $1.00 In order for the board to grant any of these increases, the System must meet certain 
criteria detailed in the statute related to funding status and interest earnings. 
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I)eferred Retirement Option Plau benefits (I1ROP) 

FRS 
After completing 20 years of creditable service and age 50, or 25 years at any age, a member may elect to 
participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 36 months. 

Upon commencement of participation in DROP, employer and employee contributions to the system cease. 
The monthly retirement benefit that would have been payahle is paid into the member's DROP account. 
Upon termination of employment, a participant in the program has several options to receive their DR()P 
benefit. A member may (1) elect to roll over all or a portion of their DROP halance into another elOble 
qualified plan, (2) receive a lump-sum payment from the account, (3) receive single withdrawals at the 
discretion of the member, (4) receive rnonthly or annual withdrawals, or (5) receive an annuity based on 
the DROP account balance. These withdrawals are in addition to his regular monthly benefit. If employment 
is not terminated at the end of the 36 months, the participant resumes regular contributions to the s)istem. 
No payrnents may be made fi-om the DROP account until the participant retires. 

PERS 
Act 338 of 1990 established the DROP for the Retirement System. DROP is an option for that member who 
is eligible for normal retirement. 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement, any member of Plan A who is eligible 
to retire may elect to participate in the DROP in which they are enrolled for three years and defer the receipt 
of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are payable but employee contributions 
cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would be payable. had the person elected to cease employment 
and receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP Fund. 

Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant 
in the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payments into the 
account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or roll over the fund to an Individual 
Retirement Account Interest is accrued on the DROP benefits for the period between the end of DROP 
participation and thr member's retirement date. 

For individuals who become eligible to participate in the DROP on or after January 1, 2004, all amounts 
which remain credited to the individual's subaccount after termination in the Plan will be placed in liquid 
asset money market investments at the discretion of the board of tnistees. These subaccounts may be 
credited with interest based on money market rates of return or, at the option of the System. the funds may 
be credited to self-directed subaccounts. The participant in the self-directed portion of this Plan must agree 
that the benefits payable to the participant are not the obligations of the state or the System, and that any 
returns and other rights of the Plan are the sole liability and responsibility of the participant and the 
designated provider to which contributions have been made. 
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I)eferred Retirement Option Plau benefits (I1RC)P) (confirmed) 

RVERS 
In lieu of terminatine employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member with 10 or 
more years of service at aL,e 60, 20 or more years of service at age 55. or 30 or more years of service at any 
age may elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) for up to three years and defer 
the receipt of benefits. Upon commencement of participation in the plan, membership in the System 
terminates. During participation in the plan. employer contributions are payable, but employee 
contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable, had the person elected 
to cease employment and receive a sell ice retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP fund. This fund 
does not earn interest. In addition, no cost of living increases are payable to participants until employment 
which rnade them eligible to become members of the System has been terminated for at least one full year. 

Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant 
in the plan may receive. at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payments into the account, 
a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or any other method of payment if approved hy 
the Board of Tnistees. The monthly benefits that were being paid into the Deferred Retirement ()ption Plan 
fund will begin to be paid to the retiree. If the participant dies during participation in the plan, a lump sum 
equal to his account balance in the plan fund shall be paid to his named beneficiary or, if none, to his estate. 
If employment is not terminated at the end of the 3 years, payments into the plan fund cease and the person 
resumes active contrihuting membership in the System. 

DARS  
In lieu of receising a service retirement allowance, any member who has more years of service than are 
required for a normal retirement may elect to receive a Back-Deferred Retirement Option Prograni (Back-
DROP) benefit. 

The Back-DROP benefit is based upon the Back-DROP period selected and the final average compensation 
prior to the period sdected. The Back-DROP period is the lesser of three years or the service accrued 
between the time a member first becomes eligible air retirement and his actual date of retirement. At 
retirement, the member's maximum monthly retirement benefit is based upon his service, final average 
compensation, and plan provisions in effect on the last day of creditable service immediately prior to the 
commencement of the Back-DROP period. In addition to the monthly benefit at retirement, the member 
receives a lump-sum payment equal to the maximum monthly benefit as calculated above multiplied by the 
number of months in the Back-DROP period. In lieu of receiving die lump-sum payment, the member may 
leave the funds on deposit with the system in an interest hearing account. 
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Deferred Retirement Option Plan benefits (DROP) (continued) 

Prior to January 1. 2009, ehgible members could elect to participate in the DROP for up to three years in 
lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service henetit. During participation in the DR()P, 
employer contnbutions were payable and employee contributions were reduced to 1."2 of 1%. The monthly 
retirement benefits that would have been payable to the member were paid into a DROP account, which 
did not earn interest while the member was participating in the DROP. Upon termination of participation, 
the participant in the plan received. at his option. a lump sum from the account equal to die payments into 
the account or systematic disbursements from his account in any manner approved by the board of trustees. 
The monthly benefits that were being paid into the DROP would then be paid to the retiree. All amounts 
which remain credited to the individual's sub-account after termination of participation in the plan were 
invested in liquid money market fimds. Interest was credited thereon as actually earned. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan 

FRS 
Effective June 16. 1999, members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may 
elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit option (IBU) in an amount up to 36 months of 
benefits. with an actuarial reduction of their finure benefits. Such amounts may be withdrawn or remain in 
the IBO account earning interest at the same rate as the DROP account 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

FRS 
Under the provisions of R.S. 11:246 and 11.2260(A)(7), the board of tmstees is authorized to grant retired 
members and widows of members who have retired an ammal cost of living increase of up to 3?-6 of their 
current benefit, and all retired members and widows who are 65 years of age and okler a 2°..;. increase in 
their original benefit. In order for the hoard to grant either of these increases., the System must meet certain 
criteria detailed in the statute related to funding status and interest earnings (R.S. 11:243). In lieu of these 
COLAs, pursuant to R S. II:241, the board may also grant an increase in the form of "Xx A+B)," where 
"V is any amount up to $1 per month, and "A" is equal to the number of years of credited service accrued 
at retirement or at death of the member of retiree, and "B" is equal to the number of years since retirement 
or since death of the member or retiree to June 30th of the initial year of such increase. 

PERS 
The Board is authorized to provide a cost of living allowance for those retirees who retired prior to July 
1973. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original henetit for each full calendar year since 
retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available from investment income in excess of 
normal requirements. 
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Cost of Living Adjustments (continued) 

In addition, the Board may provide an additional cost of lning increase to all retirees and beneficiaries who 
are over age sixty-five equal to 2% of the member's benetit paid on October 1. 1977, (or the member's 
retirement date, if later). Also, the Board may provide a cost of living increase up to 2.5% for retirees 62 
and older (LRS 11.1937). Lastly, Act 270 of 2009 provided for further reduced actuarial payments to 
provide an annual 2.5% cost of living adjustment commencing at age 55. 

RVERS 
Cost of living pro% isions for the System allows the board of trustees to provide an annual cost of living 
increase of 2.0% of the eligible retirees original benefit if certain funding criteria are met. Members are 
eligible to receive a cost of livmg adjustment once they have reached the age of sixty and have been retired 
at least one year. Funding critena for granting cost of living adjustments is dependent on the funded ratio. 

DARS  
The Board of Trustees is authorized to grant retired members and surviving beneficiaries of members who 
have retired an annual cost of living increase of 3% of their original benefit, (not to exceed sixty dollars per 
month) and all retired members and surviving beneficiaries who are sixty-tive years of age and older a 2% 
increase in their original benefit. In lieu of other cost of living increases the board mav grant an mcrease to 
retirees in the tbrm of "Xx(A&B)" where "A" is equal to the number of years of credited service accrued at 
retirement or death of the member or retiree and "B" is equal to the number of years since death of the 
memher or retiree to June 30 of the initial year of increase and "X" is equal to any amount available for 
fiinding such increase up to a maximum of $1.00. In order for the board to grant any of these increases, the 
DA System must meet certain criteria detailed in the statute related to funding status and interest earnings. 

C:ontributions 

FRS 
Contributions for all members are established by statute at 10.0% tor wages above poverty and 8.0% for 
wages below poverty for the years ending:ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. The contributions are deducted 
from the member's salary and remitted by the Pansh. 

According to state statute, employer contributions are actuarially determined each year. For the year ended 
June 30, 2022, the employer contributions were 33.75% of covered payroll above poverty and 35.75% of 
covered payroll helow poverty, respectively. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the employer contribution 
rates were 32.25% of covered payroll ahove poverty and 34.25% of covered payroll below pm erty, 
respectively. The actual rates differ from the actuarially  required rate due to state statutes that require the 
contnbution rate be calculated and set two years prior to the year effective. Contnbutions to the pension 
plan from the Parish were S768,101 for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
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Contributions (continued) 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. The tax is 
considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year hased on 
an actuarial study. Non-employer contnbutions are recognized as revenue during the year ended December 
31, 2022, and were excluded from pension expense. 

PERS 
Contributions for all members are estahlished by statute at 9.50% of compensation air the ),•ear ended 
December 31, 2022. The contributions are deducted from the member's salary and remitted by the Parish. 

According to state statute, contributions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. For the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31. 2020, the employer contribution rates were 12.25% and 
7 5Mos respectively for Plan A. The actual rate differs from the actuarially required rate due to state statutes 
that require the contribution rate be calculated and set two years prior to the year effective. Contributions 
to the pension plan from the Parish were $1.215,732 for the year ended December 31. 2022. 

According to state statute, the System also receives 1/4  of I% of ad valorem taxes collected within the 
respective panshes, except for Orleans and East Baton Rouge parishes. The System also recen es revenue 
sharing funds each year as appropriated by the Legislature. Tax nionies and revenue sharing monies are 
apportioned between Plan A and Plan B in proportion to the member's compensation These additional 
sources of income are used as additional employer contributions and are considered support from non-
employer contributing entities. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue and excluded from 
pension expense for the year ended December 31. 2022. 

RVERS 
Contributions for all members are established by statute at 7.0% of compensation for the years ending ended 
June 30, 2022 and 2021. The contributions are deducted from the member's salary and remitted by the 
Parish. 

According to state statute. contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the employer contribution rates were 18.00%. The actual rate 
differs from the actuarially required rate due to state statutes that require the contribution rate he calculated 
and set two years prior to the year effective. Contributions to the pension plan from the Parish were $19,357 
for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
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Contributions (continued) 

In accordance with state statute, the System also receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharine funds. 
These additional sources of inc(-)me are used as employer contributions and are considered support from 
non-employer contributing entities, but are not considered special funding situations. Non-employer 
contrihutions are recognized as revenue and excluded from pension expense for the year ended December 
31, 2022. 

DARS 
Contributions for all members are established by statute at 8.0% of compensation for the years ending ended 
June 30. 2022 and 2021. The contributions are deducted from the member's salary and renutted hy the 
Parish. 

According to state statute, contribution requirements air all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the employer contnbution rates were 9.50% and 4.00%. 
respectively. The actual rate differs from the actuarially required rate due to state statutes that require the 
contribution rate be calculated and set two years prior to the year effective. Contributions to the pension 
plan from the District Attorney were $3,396 for the year ended December 31, 2022. 

In accordance with state statute, DARS receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These 
additional sources of income are used as employer contributions and are considered support from non-
employer contributing entities. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue and excluded £rom 
pension expense for the year ended December 31, 2022. 

Pension I.iabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions  

At December 31, 2022, the Parish reported a combined liability of $6,609,437 and an asset of $7,642,490 
for its proportionate share of the Net Pension Liabilities (NPLyNet Pension Asset (NPA). The NPL for 
FRS, RVERS, and DARS was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the NPA for PERS was measured as of 
December 31. 2021. The total pension liabihty used to calculate the NPL was determined based on an 
actuarial valuatim as of those dates The Parish's proportion of the NPL was based on a projection of the 
Parish's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contribution of all 
participating employers. actuarially determined. 
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Pension Liabilities, Peusion Expense, and Deferred OutfloNss of Resources and 1)eferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions  (continued) 

The following table reflects the Parish's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability.Net Pension Asset 
for each of the pension plans. the proportion at June 30, 2022 (December 31. 2021 for PERS) and the change 
compared to the June 30. 2021 (December 31. 2020 for PERS) proportion. 

Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) at 
December 31, 2022 

Proportion 
at 

Measurement 
Date 

Increase 
(Decrease) to 

Prior 
Measurement 

Date 
FRS S 6,372.951 il.903799% 0.022562% 
PERS (7.642.490) 1.622460% (0.013663%) 
RVERS 176,976 0.721750% 0.191370% 
DARS 59.510 0.055244% 0.002429)% 

(1,033,053 ) 

I -he following table reflects the Parish's reco2nized pension expense for the year ended December 31. 2022. 

 

Pension 
Expense 

FRS $ 1,038,259 
PERS (1,324,561) 
RVERS 25,578 
DARS 17.353 

 

S (243,371) 

At Decemher 31, 2022, thr Parish reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources. 

FRS Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

 

Differences between expected and actual expenence 38,090 $ (300.387) 
Changes in assumptions 525,49( 

 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 1.4-43.641 

 

Changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 227,738 (43.668) 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 389.378 

 

Total FRS 2,624,343 (344,055) 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 1)eferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions  (continued) 

Deferred 
Outflows of Deferred Inflows 

PERS Resources of Resources  
Differences hetween expected and actual experience S 461.748 S (553.903) 
Changes in assumptions 398.571 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension plan investments 6,610.(i23) 
Changes in proportion and differences hetween employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 69.416 (52.339) 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 

date 1.215.732 
Total PERS $ 2,145,467 $ (7,216,865) 

RVERS Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

DefelTed Inflows 
of Resources 

 

Differences hetween expected and actual experience $ 7,913 (13.226) 
Changes in assumptions 14.7(i4 

 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 61.373 

 

Changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contrihutions 35,344 (235) 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 0.737 

 

Total RVERS S 129,131 S (13..461) 

DARS Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

 

Differences between expected and actual experience S 4.-)09 

 

1.862) 
C'hanges in assumptions 12,908 

  

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 17,765 

  

Changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions -)78 

 

(1,035) 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 

date 1,698 

  

Total DARS $ 36.858 S I 2.897) 
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Pension Liabilities, Peusion Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions  (continued) 

Summary totals of deterred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources by pension plarr 

 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources 
FRS S 2,624.343 $ (344,055) 
PERS 2.145,467 (7,216,865) 
RVERS 129,131 (13.461) 
DARS 36,858 (2,897) 

 

$ 4,935.799 $ t 7.577,278) 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Parish's contributions subsequent to 
the measurernent date will be recognized as a reduction of net pension liability in the year ending December 
31, 2023 

The following tahle lists the pension contribution,' made subsequent to the measurement period for each 
pension plan: 

 

Subsequent 
Contrihutions 

FRS $ 389,378 
PERS 1.215,732 
EWERS 9.737 
DARS 1.698 

 

$ 1,616,545 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year endinit 
December 31: FRS PERS RVERS DARS Total 

2023 $ 437.397 $ (1,249,169) $ 20,974 S 9,717 $ (781,081) 
2024 355,326 (2,578,996) 26,323 6,794 (2.19(1,553) 
/015 231,877 (1,750,399) 17,869 5,956 (1,494,697) 
2026 821.657 (708,566) 40,767 9,796 163,654 
2027 45.160 

   

45.160 
2028 (507) 

   

(507) 

 

1.890,910 6 287.130) 105,933 32,263 $ (4,258,0241 
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Actuarial Assumptions  

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liabihty as of 
December 31, 2022 are as follows. 

FRS PERS 

Valuation Date June 30. 1011 December 31, 21)21 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Nonnal Cost Entry Age Nonnal Cost 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 

Investment Rate of 
Return 

Inflation Rate 

Salary Increases 

7 years, closed period 

6.900. (I per annum (net of investment expenses. 
including intlatinn) 

2.5(HP 'I) per annum 

Vary from 14 f0% in the tirst two years of 
service to 5.200 0 with 3 nr more years of 
service, includes intlation and ment increases. 

For the purpose of determining the present 
value of benefits, COLAs were deemed not to 
he substantively automatic and only those 
previously granted were included. 

For active members, mortality was set equal to 
the Pub-20111 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median 
Employees. For annuitants and beneficiaries. 
mortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality Tahle for Safety 
Below-Median Healthy Retirees. For disabled 
retirees, mortality x% as set equal to the Pub-
2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tahle 
for Safety Disahled Retirees. In all cases the 
base table was multiplied by 1115°0 for males 
and 115"0 for females. each with full 
generational projection using the appropriate 
MP-2019 scale. 

Termination, disability. and retirement 
assumptions were proiected hased on a 
five-year (2009-2014) experience study on 
plan data. 

4 years 

6.40%. net of investment expense, including 
inflation 

2.3l P O per annum. 

4.75% 

The present value of future retirement benefits is 
based on benefits currently being paid by the 
System and includes previously granted cost of 
living increases. The present values do not 
include provisions for potential future increases 
not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Tahle for Health Retirees multiplied by 130°0 for 
rnales and 125°0 for fernales using MP2018 scale 
for annuitant and beneficial). mortality. For 
employees, the Pub-2010 Puhlic Retirement 
Plans Mortality Table for General Employees 
multiplied by 130% for males and 125C'o for 
females using MP2018 scale Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality Table for Cieneral 
Disabled Retirees multiplied by 130% for males 
and 125% for females using MP2018 scale for 
disabled annuitants. 

Termination. disability. and retirement 
assumptions were projected based on a five-
year (2013-21)17) experience study on plan data 

Cost of Lis ing 
Adjustments 

Nlortality 

Termination, Disability, 
and Retirement 

- 71  - 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31. 2022  

10. PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Act uarial Ass um ptions (continued) 

RVERS DA RS 

Valuation Date June 30, 1012 June 30, 1011 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Age Normal Cost 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 

Investment Rate of 
Return 

Inflation Rate 

Salary Increases 

Cost of Livi n g 
Adjustments 

5 years 

6.25%, net of investment expense 

2.30% per annum 

5.25% 

The present value of future retirement benefits 
is based on benefits currently being paid by the 
System and includes previously granted cost of 
living increases. The present values do not 
include provisions for potential future 
increases not yet authonzed hy the Board (if 
Trustees as they were deemed not to he 
substantivel), automatic. 

RP-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for general employees multiplied by 
1201?.0 for males and 120% tor females each 
with full generational projection usuie the 
appropriate MP-2019 improvement scale - 
Employees. Annuitant and Beneficiaries. RP-
2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table 
for general disabled retirees multiplied by 
1201?.0 for males and 120% tor females each 
with full generational projection usuie the 
appropriate MP-2019 improvement scale - 
Disabled Annuitants 

Termination. disability, and retirement 
assumptions were projected based on a 
five-year (2009-2014) experience study on 
plan data. 

5 years 

6.10"0. net of Investment expeni.,e 

2.211°0 per annum 

5.00% 

Only those previously granted 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for General Above-
Median Employees multiplied by 115% 
tor males and females for current 
employees. each with full generational 
projection using the MP2019 scale Pub-
2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for General Above-Median Healthy 
Retirees multiplied by 1151?.0 for males and 
temales for annuitants and beneficiaries, 
each with full eenerational projection 
using the MP2019 scale. Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality Table for 
General Disabled Renrees multiplied by 
115% for rnales and females for disabled 
retirees. each with full generational 
projectu ni using the MP2019 scale. 

Termination. disability. and retirement 
assumptions were projected based on 
a five-year (2014-21)19) experience study 
on plan data. 

Nlortality 

Termination. Disability, 
and Retirement 
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Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

The following table lists the methods used by each of the pension plans in determining the long term rate 
of return on pension plan investments: 

FRS PERS RVERS BARS 
The long-tenn expected rare of 
return on pensimi plan 
investments Was cleternimed by 
the System's actuary using the 
System's target asset allocation 
as of January 2022 and the 
Curran Actuanal Consulting 
average study foi 2022. The 
COnstilldrirs average ,tititly 
'Belittled projected nominal rates 
..f return. standard deviations of 
returns. and correlations of 
returns foi H list of common asset 
classes collected fosiii 3 number 
of investment consultants and 
investment management films. 
Each LonsUllaili's response 
included nonunal txpected king 
term rates of renun In order tu 
wive at lolig-iertll expected 
arithmetic real rates of return. the 
actuary normalized the data 
received from the consultant's 
responses in the following ways. 
Where uouuual returns received 
were arithmetic. the actuary 
simply reduced the return 
assiunption by the long-terni 
fanatical assunipt toil Where 
nominal tentnis were geometric. 
the actuary coarverted the return 
to arithinenc by adjustuig for the 
long-term standard deviation and 
then reduced the assumption by 
the long-terui infianon 
assmiiptiim. Using the target 
asset allocation for the System 
and the average values for 
expected real rates of retuni. 
standard cleviaton of I etuf lis. arld 
correla non of returns. an 
arithmetic expected nominal rate 
of return and standard devunon 
for the pontolio was deternuned 
The System's long-term assiuned 
rate 'if inflation of 2 50°0 was 
used in this process tot the fiscal 
year ended !WIC 34 4  2022  

The long-tenu expected late of 
return On pension plan investments 
was deternuneil using a 
Illaiigulation metlioll which 
integrated the capital asset pricing 
model ttop-downi a treasury yield 
curve approach thottom-up) and an 
equity building-block mixtel 
t bottom-up) Risk remin and 
cotrelations are projected on a 
forwaol looking basis al 
equilibnuni. in which best estunates 
of expected fumre real tates nf 
tenni (expected returns. net of 
penston plan investment expense 
and inflationl we developed for 
Mk Major usSet .13%s. These iates 
are combined to produce the long-
term expected tate of return by 
weighting the expected (mitre real 
rates of return by the target asset 
allocation peicentage and by adding 
expected mnanon of 2 10°0 and an 
adjustment fin the effect of 
tebalancingidiversificatioli It le 
resulting expected long-term rate of 
return is ' OW.0 for the year ended 
December 3 I. 2021. 

The long-tenu expected rate of 
return on prils1011 plan 
investments was cleteniiineil 
using 3 ()Inkling-block meth, id in 
which best-estimate rangcs uf 
expected future real rates of 
renun (expected returns. net of 
pension plan iirvesmient expense 
and inflation) arc developed fur 
each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce 
the long-trrni expected rate of 
retuni by weighting the expected 
tunne real Bees of tendril by the 
target asset allosat1011 percentage 
and by adding expected inflation 
The resulting long-terni rate of 
retuni is 7 0°0 for the year endeil 
June 30. 24122 

The long-term expected tate of 
retimi on pensuin plan 
investments was detentimeil 
using a building-block method ui 
which best-esnmate Binges of 
expected future teal rates tit' rerun] 
(expected returns. net of pensii.n 
plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each 
majot asset class These ranges 
are conibinell to pr..duce the long-
tern) expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected tuture real 
rates of !Min by the target aster 

allocauou percentage and by 
adding expected inflation The 
resulting long-terni rate ut tetuni 

8.25% for the year ended June 
30 2022 
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10. PENSION PLAN  (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the PERS' target 
asset allocation as of December 31. 2021 is summarized in the following table: 

PERS 
Long-Term Expected 

Asset Class Target _Allocation Rate of Return  
Fixed Income 33o 0 0 85°0 
Equity 51uo 3.13°0 
Alternatives 14°0 0.71% 
Real assets 0.1Pa 

Totals  100°;, 4.90°0 
Inflation 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal 
Retum 

    2.10% 

           

Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in each of the pension 
plans' target asset allocations as ofJune 30. 2022 is summarized in the following tahle: 

  

Target Allocation 

 

Long-Term Expected Portfolio 
Real Rate uf Return 

Asset C'lass FRS RVERS DARS FRS RVERS DARS 
U S. Equity '17.5°0 37.5".o 

 

5.64n ta 7.50°0 

 

Nun-U.S. Equity 11.5°0 20JPA 

 

5.89nb s.5ont, 

 

GI+ ihal Equity 10.0°0 

  

5.99'0 

  

Emerging Market Equity 

   

7.75"o 

  

U S. Core Fixed Income 18.0°0 

  

0.84"o 

  

U S. TIPS 3.0°0 

  

0.51 n 0 

  

Emerging Market Debt 

   

7
.
99I1.0 

  

GI+ ihal Tactical Asset 
Allocation 

   

3.14°0 

  

Risk Parity 

   

3.14°0 

  

Private Equity 9.0'0 

  

8.99°11 

  

Real Estate 6.0'0 10.0°4 

 

4.57°,0 4.50°6 

 

Real Assets 3.0'0 

  

4.89°.0 

  

Fixed Income 

  

30.19°0 

  

2.95°0 
Equity 

  

57.11% 

  

10 570.0 
Alternatives 

 

10O'0 12.6710 

 

6.33% 6.00°0 
Domestic Fixed Income 

 

12.5°6 

  

2.50°6 

 

International Fixed Income 

    

3.50°6 

 

Cash 

  

0 03') 

  

u.03 
Total l00.0°0 100 0°0 100.0°Q 54 34°0 32 83'u 19 55°r, 

Inflation 

   

2 5(?°0 

 

'.6S°0 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

   

56.4u0 35 33')u ?3') u 
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10. PENSION PLAN  (continued) 

Discount Rate 

The prgjection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers 
will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the 
recommendation of each of the system's actuary. Based on those assumptions, each of the system's fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability The discount rate used to 
measure the total pension asset for PERS was 6.40% for the year ended December 31. 2021. The discount 
rate used to measure the total pension liability for FRS was 6.90%, for DARS was 6.10%, and for RVERS 
was 6.25% for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the NPL to Changes in the Discount Rate. 

The following presents the Parish's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability using the discount rate, 
as well as what the Parish's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability would he if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate• 

FRS 

1.0% Decrease 
(:urrent 

Discount Rate 1.0% 
Increase 

   

Discount rate 5 90% 6.90% 7.90% 

Parish's proportionate share of NPL $9,428,073 $6,372,951 $3,824,763 

PERS 

   

Discount rate 5.401!.0 6.401!.b. 7.40% 

Parish's proportionate share of NPL $1,362,509 ($7,642,490) (515.185,827) 

RVERS 

   

Discount rate 5.25% 6.25% 7.25% 

Parish's proportionate share of NPL S286,125 $176,976 S84,135 

DARS 

   

Discount rate 5.10% 6.10% 7.10% 

Parish's proportionate share of NPL $99,803 $59,510 S25,711 
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10. PENSION PLAN  (continued) 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

At December 31, 2022, the Parish had payables to the pension plans totaling $583,535 for the December 
2022 employee and employer legally required contributions. Outstanding balances will be applied to the 
Parish's required monthly contribution. The amounts due are included in liabilities under the amounts 
reported as accounts payable or accrued expenses and other liabilities. 

The balance due to each of the pension plans is as follows: 

Payables 

FRS 
PERS 
RVERS 
DARS 

583,535 

 583.535 

11. OTHER POST -ENIPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

General Information about the OPEB Plan  

Plan description — The Parish provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its 
retired employees. The Parish's OPEB Plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered 
by the Parish. The authority to establish anifor amend the obligation of the employer, employees and 
retirees rests with the Council. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section P52 Postemplorment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions—Reporting For Benefits Not Provided Through Trusts That Meet Specified Criteria—Defined 
Benefit. 

Benefits Provided — Medical benefits are provided through a comprehensive medical plan and are made 
availahle to employees upon actual retirement. Most employees are covered hy the Parochial Employees' 
Retirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 
30 years of service at any age, age 55 and 25 years of service, age 60 and 10 years of service; or, age (i5 
and 7 years of sen ice. For employees hired on and after January 1, 2007, retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. 
entry) provisions are as follows: age 55 and 30 years of service; age 62 and 10 years of service; or, age 67 
and 7 years of service. 

Life insurance coverage is available to retirees based on a blended rate (active and retired). The employer 
"cost" of the retiree life insurance, hut it is based on the blended rate. Life insurance for firefighters' ceases 
at retirement. Retiree insurance coverage amounts are reduced to 50% at age 70. 

£mplryces covered by benefit terms — At December 31, 2022, the following employees were covered hv 
the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 17o 
Inacthe employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 

 

Active employees 247 

 

417 
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11. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS  (continued) 

Total OPEB Liability 

The Parish's total OPEB liabihty of 5?9,315.17£ was measured as of December 31, 2022 and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions and other Inputs - The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2022 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included 
in the measurement. unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.5% 
Salary increases 4 0%, including inflation 
Discount rate 2.06% annually (Beginning of Year to Determine ADC) 

3.72%. annually (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 
Healthcare cost trend rates 5 5% annually for ten years, 4 5% thereafter 
Mortality SOA RP-2014 Table 

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation municipal 
bond index as of December 31, 2022, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2022 valuation were based on the results of ongoing 
evaluations of the assumptions from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2022. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at December 31, 2021 S34,853,739 

Changes for the vear: 

 

Service cost 624,964 

Interest 702,252 

Differences between expected and actual experience 2,143 ,448 

Changes in assumptions (7,481,54 H 

Benefit payments and net transfers (1,527,684) 

Net changes (5,538.561) 

Balance at December 31, )0" S29,315,178 
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IL OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS  (continued) 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liabiluv to chairges in the discount hue - The following presents the total 
C)PEB liability of the Parish, as well as what the Parish's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.710•0 or 1-percentage-poun higher (4.72%) than 
the current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(2.72%) Rate (3.72%) (4.72%) 

Total OPEB liability $35,42 K95.2 S19.315.17 S24.596.128 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The following presents 
the total OPEB liahility of the Parish, as well as what the Parish's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.5%) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (6.5%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Decrease Current Trend 1.0% Increase 
(4.5%) (5.5%) (6.5%) 

Total OPEB liability $25,189,737 $/9,315,178 $34,708,448 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Parish recognized OPEB expense of $1,120,172. At Decemher 
31, 2022. the Parish reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
C)PEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

DItICIVIlees between expected and actual experience 3,068.271 S (1.439.662) 
Changes in assumptions 4,843,811 (7,321,400) 
Total 7.912.082 S (8.7(;1.062) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in C)PEB expense as follows. 

Years ending December 31: 

 

2023 $ (207,(>44) 
/014 (207.(►44) 
107'5 (318,23(I) 
/016 (674.465) 
2027 393.153 

Thereafter 164.650 
Total S (848.980) 
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12. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

At I)ecemher 31, 2022. the Parish has deferred inflows of resources as ibllows: 

Governmental Activities 
Federal Grant 
Ad Valorem 
Advance tax payments 

Total Governmental Funds 

Grant and ad valorem recognized as revenue on the 
Government-wide in 2022 

Deferred amounts related to pension liahility 
Deferred amounts related to OPEB liahihh 
Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities 
Advance tax payments 
Deferred arnounts related to pension liability 
Deferred amounts related to OPEB liabihty 
Total Business-Type Activities 

Total Government-wide 

13. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS 

..¶ 1,120,760 
183.547 

2,125.606 
3,42913 

(1,304.307) 

5,331,827 
5,790,059 

$ 13.247.49'4'. 

45.289 
2,245,451 
2,971,003 
5,261,743 

¶ 18.509.235 

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2022, is as follows: 

Gus enanental Activities 

Recen able Fund) 

Puyable Fund, 
Geneial 

Ftli 
Sales tut Road:, Al id 

EttrIge. 

 

1992 03 
Sudoug 

 

Levee 
Pn deo ion 

2022 
cou.I mrdiuti 

 

,n-M.uoi 

 

Total 

Govertuirnta I Activates 
General Fund 

Sales Tax Distrwt 
Roads Sc. Bridges 
1992 GO sinking 

Hurricane Ida 

Levee Protects...in 
≥U?? CI) Construction 

Sul l-tirt al 

Busniess-Type 
Urihtirs 

Sewerage 
&did Waste 

Mosquito A bateirent 
Sub-tma I 

Tcdal 

la 
20351 

64 
2113.-k15 

63 

4, )I 

 

239.74c 

8,246308 

410.166 

$ 

2.1O().011) 

 

14.50000u 

,7 31 

 

7913.3 

.4:1036 

53 012 

I T0 3 f, 

S IJ)31.44X 

534.1:47 
64 

25.0(.2.725 
63 

3 714.480 
3.505.837 

   

2.000! N X? 

 

14:500.(H X) .473V) 

 

I ..1-14 

  

426.409 

609., ,74 
63 
6.4 

!00.000 

I 624.607 

55.147 
120 .60 

      

150.593 

 

S32.649 

2 355.725 
63 

I. ;6.1 15 I 75.1!,,, 

        

3191 . •c: , I 

 

I `'.u7 1 ICIT 

 

_ (.10 T I (IUM ' 7  .1 I. 

 

‘. - 17. 1.9 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31. 2022  

13. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS  (cominued) 

Business-Type Activities 
Reeei‘able Funds 

Pa‘ able Funds 

1.tilitles 

Fund 

Se wei age 

Fund 

 

Solid Waste 

Mosquito 
Abatement Total 

Governmental Actixines 

      

General Fund 11 382,278 $ 182,551 $ 

 

S $ 564.829 

Roads (V.: Baidges 172.747 54.077 

   

226.824 
HulTlcalle hla 109.289 112.074 

   

2 7'1,363 

Non-Major 2-14.835 35.435 

   

280.270 
Sub-total 909.149 384.137 

   

1 293.286 

Business-Type Actnities 

      

Utilities - 4,351.344 

 

2.739.602 316.054 7.407,000 
Sewerage 788.408 

    

788.40S 

Solid Waste 413.415 

  

- 

 

413.415 
Mosquito Abatement •S7 SS,  - 

   

57.852 
Sitb-total 1.259.675 4.351.344 

 

1 ,739,60/ 3 16,054 8,666,675 

Total $ 2,168.824 S 4,735.481 $ 2,739.602 $ 316,054 $ 9.959,961 

Due From Ihtz To Net Internal 
Other Funds Other Funds Balances 

Governmental Activities $ 33,474,933 (31.576,718) $ 1.898.215 
Business-Type Activities 9,959,961 (11,858,176) { 1,898,215) 
Total $ 43,434,894 (-13,434,894) 

The above due to from other funds were short-terrn receivables or payables in the normal course of the Parish's 
operations Sipiticant receivablespayables consist of collections of revenues hy one fund on behalf of another 
fluid which had not been transferred by year-end. 
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13. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS  (continued) 

A sununary of interfund transfers at December 31, 2022, are as follows: 

Goveiluilenial Activities 
Tiausfers Out 

Transferl In 
Ciencial 

Fund 
Lir; 

Diqi let 
Reiad,. and 
Brifice. 

HiuTisane Levee 2022 Go 
Ida Noiection Colisimetion Non-Major Total 

GoweumenlalALMIties 

      

General Fund 

  

812.744 

 

S 5.440.4% S 6.262.200 
Roads h Bndiees 

 

4.901000 

  

1 73 287 5 073.28' 
Hunicane Ida 

    

I.907 90n 1 907900 
21.i22 GO eosiiimei 

    

2c4.315 254.315 
Nod-Major -S8.553 1.42557i 62.9-12 

 

1.118652 3 39g 72r) 
Sub-total %88.SS.t 6,315,573 

  

8.9O.610 16.893.422 

Businesi-Type Aetivnies 

        

3,700,000 

 

440.269 

 

4.140.2t/9 
Sevitrage 

 

2.70000o 

 

70.487 

 

2 77i1 

N•losrainio Abatemeni 

     

4 SON, 

  

6.4'1(000 

 

510.'56 nun 9”.756 
Total S 7S2.1.553 

 

$ ?- 5.6S6 5I01.- co S.0 4S.o 0 $ 23.2.491 7 i3 

Busiuess-Type Activities 

Trath fel s Out: 

transfets 

itiliUcti 

1 mid 

St.I.setage 

F Ltd Solid Wd,Le 

Mosquito 

Abatement 

 

Gosernmental Activities 

     

Geueral RUM] s 759.642 S 694.03 l lu2 $ '6.595 I .537.370 

Roads & Bridges 143.437 143.437 

  

286,874 

Non-Major 19 963 3.693 

  

23.656 

Sub-total 923 lit'. 8-1 I 161 57.102 76.595 1.847.900 

Business-Type .A.tivittes 

       

266.819 

  

266,819 

Sesserage 268.035 

   

268.035 

Sub-total 268.035 26(:.819 

  

534.854 

Total $ 1,191.077 $ 1,107.'480 $ 57,102 S 76.595 S 2.3g2.754 

 

Transfers In Transfers Out Net Transfers 
Governmental Activities 18341,322 $ 123.849,17S) $ (5.107.8561 
Business-Type Activities 7,490,610 (2,382,754) 5,1()7.856 
Total `'; 26 231,932 $ (20.231.932) $ 
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LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31. 2022  

13. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS  (continued) 

Transfers are primanly used to mm e funds from: 

a) The Sales Tax District to other funds in connection with the operations, capital improvements and 
maintenance of the Parish's road and bridges and sewer district. 

1)) The Economic Development Fund to finance various prouams accounted for in other funds ui 
accordance with budgetary authorizations 

c) To transfer grant funding received to funds in which expenditures were recorded. 

All other transfers are also in accordance with budgetary authorizations 

14. CRIAIII\AI. COURT FUND 

LSA-R.S. 15:571.11 requires that one-half of any surpluses remaining in the Criminal Court Fund at year-end 
shall be transmitted to the Pansh's General Fund. At December 31, 2022, there was no surplus to transfer to 
the Cieneral Fund. 

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation 
The Parish is a named defendant in a number of claims and lawsuits resulting principally ti-om personal 
injury, property damage, assessments, and construction claims. The Parish Attorney has reviewed these 
claims and lawsuits in order to el, aluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the Parish and to arrive 
at an estimate, if any, of the amount or range of potential loss to the Parish. As a result of such review, the 
various claims and lawsuits have been categorized into "probable," "reasonably possible," and "remote" 
contingencies as defined m GASB Codification C50. All outstanding claims have been categorized as 
"reasonably possible' or "remote:" therefore, no accrual was required on the Parish's tinancial statements. 
Legal counsel's opinion on the ultimate resolution of these matters is that losses incurred by Parish could 
range from $0 to approximately $300,000. 

Federally Assisted Pr(►ffains 
The Parish receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal and state governmental agencies in 
the lion of grants and had approximately $9.7 million in outstanding receivables for these programs as of 
December 31, 2022. The disbursenient of funds generally requires compliance with terms and conditions 
specified in the gram ageements. The programs are audited in accordance with the audit requirements of Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, I:nifbrin Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. und 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and also subject to future audits by the gantor 
agency. Any disallowed claims or =collectible receivables resulting from such audits could become a liability 
of the General Fund or other applicable fiinds. 
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16. FUND BALANCE 

The killowing illustrates the specific purposes of each classification of fund balance at December 31, 
2022 in the financial statements: 

Fund Balance General Fund 

Sales Tax 
District 

Road & 
Bridges 

1992 General 
Obligation Bond 

Sinking, Hurricane Ida 
Nouspendable: 

Prepaids 

Total Nonspeudable 

Restricted 
Debt service 
Special revenue 

Total Restricted 

Committed 
Capital projects 

Total Conunitted 

Unassigned 

Total 

Fiuid Balance 

S 121.207 

 

$ 70.159 S s 
121.207 

 

71).159 

   

10.575.753 855.246 
15.181,818 

  

10.575.753 855,246 15.181,818 

           

5.8116.012 

   

(21.755.718) 

$ 5.977.1 19 S 10.575,753 $ 9'5.405 ti 15.181,818 $ (21.755.718) 

American 
Recovery Plan 

Levee 
Protection 

1 011  General 
Oblitzation 

Bond 
Construction 

Non-major 
l_iciverninentai 

Funds Total 
Nonspendable: 

Prepaids 
Total Nonspendable 

Restricted 
Debt service 

Special revenue 
Total Restricted 

Committed 
Capital projects 

Total Committed 

Unassiened 

Total 

   

308,370 $ 499.736 

   

308,370 499.736 

47.?87 1 1.'86.738 

 

1.876.498 
1 7.55'.775 

17.058.316 
60.317.299 

47.287 21.286,738 

 

79.4'8,773 77.375,615 

  

15 508,725 9 869 311 ' 5  178 047 

  

15 508,725 9 869 11' 25 378 047 

   

(1,123,792) (17,073,49S) 

47."87 ti 11.286,77,8 S 15.508.725 S 38.482.673 S 86.179,900 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31. 2022  

17. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Parish is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts. theft of, damage to. and destniction of assets: 
errors and omissions: injuries to employees: and natural disasters These risks are covered by commercial 
insurance purchased from independent third parties. The more significant insurance coverage Includes 
water and sewera,ge commercial general liahility. workers' compensation, business auto and commercial 
property. Settlernent payrnents have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three years. 

18. TAX ABATEMENTS 

Louisiana Economic Development (LED) is a Department of the State of Louisiana and administers many 
development oriented incentives, including the Industrial Tax Exemption Progam (ITEP). Under the ITEP, 
tax abatements are negotiated for a variety of economic development purposes. including job creation, business 
relocation, retenfion. and expansion. 

As of December 31, 2t 122. four industrial companies are currently under the ITEP. The typical term of these 
ageements are for ten years and provided Ad valorem tax abatement during the year of 2022 in the amount of 
$2,114,716 

The LED has not made any commitments as part of the agreements other than to reduce taxes. The Parish 
is not subject to any tax abatement agreements entered into by other governmental entities other than the 
LED. 

19. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR DIS( REILLY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

Financial reporting standards require footnote disclosure on discretely presented component units considering 
both the unit's significance relative to the total discretely presented component units and the nature and 
sigfificance of the unit'S rdationship to the primaiy government the Parish). AN such, the following disclosures 
are presented. 

A. CASH 

The Library's carrying amounts (book balances) of all cash totaled $15,087.074. Theses deposits are stated 
at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, the deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be 
secured by federal deposit Insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market 
value of the pledge securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on 
deposit with the tiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent in a holding 
or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. At December 31. 2022, the Library had 
$15,062,358 in deposits (collected hank balances). These deposits were secured from risk by $250,000 of 
federal deposit insurance and $14.812.358 of pledge secunties held by the custodial bank in the name of 
the fiscal agent bank. Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial 
bank to ad‘ertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the Library that the 
fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 
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19. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR I)ISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT  (continued) 

B. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets for the component unit at December 31, 2022 are as follows. 

 

Lihrary 

Land $ 471,487 
Construction in progess 2.088.595 
Equipment & furniture 1,056,897 
Library hooks 2.610.170 
Buildings 1 ,530,643 

Subtotal 8.757.792 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (4,334,377) 

Total 4.423.415 

C. ACCRUED ANNUAL LEAVE 

At December 31. 2022, employees of the Library have accumulated and vested amounts of Employee annual 
leave benefits, which are computed in accordance with CiASB Codification Section C60. This amount is 
recorded in the Statement of Net Position as a long-term liability, and the calculation is based on the number 
of hours each employee has earned and credited to their benefit times their individual hourly rate at the end of 
the year. 

D. PENSION PLAN 

Substantially all employees of the Library are mernbers of the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of 
Louisiana ("PERS"). This system is a cost-sharing multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan 
administered by a separate board of trustees. 

Contributions for all members are established by statute at 9.50% of compensation for the year ended 
December 31, 2022. The contributions are deducted from the member's salary and remitted by the Parish. 

According to state statute, contributions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. For the year 
ended December 31, 2022, the actuarially determined contribution rate was 7.10% of member's 
compensation for Plan A. However, the actual rate for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 was 11.50% 
ft)r Plan A The actual rate differs from the actuarially required rate due to state statutes that require the 
contribution rate be calculated and set two years prior to the year effective. Contributions to the pension 
plan from the Library were $142,675 for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31. 2022  

19. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR I)ISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT  (continued) 

D. PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Pension Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions  

At December 31, 2022. the Library reported an asset of $961.597 for its proportionate share of the Net 
Pension Asset (NPA) of PERS. The net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2021 and the total 
pension liabihty or asset used to calculate the NPA was determined based on an actuarial ‘aluation as of 
that date. The Library's proportion of the NPA was based on a projection of the Library's long-term share 
of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contribution of all participating employers. 
actuarially determined. At December 31, 2021, the Library's proportion was 0.204142%, which was an 
increase of 0.39316% front its proportion measured as of December 31, 2020. 

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Library recognized a pension henetit of $153,358 plus the 
Library's amortization of the chtTerence between employer contnbutions and proportionate share of 
contributions of $157,735. 

At year end, the Library reported deferred outflows of resources and deterred intlows of resources related 
to pensions trom the following sources: 

PERS 

Deferred 
Outflows 

of Resources 

 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources 

   

Differences between expected and actual experience 58,098 ti 69.693 
Net ditTerence between projected and actual earniniis 

on pension plan investments 

  

831,765 
Changes in assumptions 50,149 

  

Changes in proportion and differences between 
employer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 38,646 

 

14,708 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 

date 142.675 

  

Total PERS 289,568 

 

916.166 

I)efeireJ outflows of resources of $142.675 related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of net pension liability in the year ending December 31. 2023. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31. 2022  

19. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR I)ISC.:'RETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT (continued) 

D. PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Endine December 31, Amount of Amortization 
'013 (149,676) 
2024 (316,064) 
?0-~5 (214,380) 
2026 (89,153) 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the NPA to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Library's proportionate share of the Net Pension Asset using the discount rate 
of 6.40%, as well as what the Library's proportionate share of the Net Pension Asset would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (5.40%) or one percentage-point higher 
(7 40%) than the current rate: 

Current 
1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 

PERS - Library's proportionate share of 

the net pension asset 1'1,434 (961,597) (1,910,719) 

Support or Non-employer Contributing Entities 

Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contnbuting entities that are not in a special 
funding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. The Lihrary recognizes revenue 
in an amount equal to their proportionate share of the total contributions to the pension plan from these 
non-employer contributing entities. During the vear ended December 31, 2022, the Lihrary recognized 
revenue as a result of support received firom non-employer contributing entities of $16,887. 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

PERS issues publicly available financial reports that include tinancial statements and required 
supplementary information for the systems. Detailed information about the system's fiduciary net position 
is available in the issued financial report. The report may be ohtained by visiting the Louisiana Legislative 
Auditor's website at wwwila.la.gov and searching under the Reports section. 
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19. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR I)ISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT  (continued) 

E. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan description - St. John the Baptist Pansh Library provides certain continuing health care and life msurance 
benefits for its retired employees. The St. John the Baptist Parish Library's OPEB Plan (the "OPEB Plan) is a 
single-employer defined henetit OPEB plan administered by the Lihrary. The authority to establish and or 
amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees rests with the Lihrary. No assets are accumulated 
in a trust that meets the cnteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Section P52 
Postemployinent Benefits Other Than Pensions—Reporting For Benefits Not Provided Through Trusts That 
Meet Specified Criteria—Dcfined Benefit. 

Benefits ProWded — Medical benefits are provided through a comprehensive medical plan and are made 
availahle to employees upon actual retirement. Employees are covered by the Parochial Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 3() years of service 
at any age; age 55 and 25 years of service; age 60 and 10 years of service; or, age 65 and 7 years of service. 
For employees hired on and after January 1. 2007. Retirement eligibility (D.R.().P. entry) provisions are as 
follows. age 55 and 30 years of service: age 62 and 10 years of service; or, age 67 and 7 years of service. 

Lite insurance coverage is provided to retirees and 100% of the hlended rate (active and retired) is paid by the 
employer. The insurance coverage while active is continued afier retirement, but insurance coverage amounts 
are reduced by 50% of the onginal amount at age 70. 

Employees covered br benefit terms — At December 31, 2022. the following employees were covered by the 
benefit temis: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 18 
Active employees 26 

44 

Total OPEB Liability 

The Library's total OPEB liability is $3,056,821 as of the measurement date December 31, 2022, the end of 
the fiscal year 
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19. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR I)ISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT  (continued) 

E. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs -  The total OPEB liability in the December 31. 2022 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the tbllowing actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in 
the measurement, unkss otherwise specified: 

Inflation 3.0% 
Salary uicreases 3.0°.;., including inflation 
Discount rate 3.72% annuaHy (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 
Healthcare cost trend rates Medical: 5.5% annually for 5 years, decreasinL,  to 4.14% after 52 

years; Dental: 4.0% 
Mortality Pub-2010 2021 

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Oblieation municipal hond index as of 
I)ecembzr 31. 2022, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2022 valuation were based on the results of ongoim2 
evaluations of the assumptions from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2022. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at December 31, 2021 S 2,945,880 
Changes for the year: 

 

Service cost 144,705 
Interest 62,176 
Differences between expected and actual experience (,245(,9 
Changes in assumptions (612,713) 
Benetit payments and net transfers (107,796) 

Net changes 110,941 

Balance at December 31. l(P1 S 3,056.821 

Sensitivity cy the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the Library, as well aN what the Library's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentne-point lower (2 72%) or 1-percentage-point higher 
(4.72%) than the current discount rate. 

1.0% Decrease Current I)iscount 1.9% Increase 
(2.72%) Rate (3.72%) (4.72%) 

Total C)PEB liability 3,472,779 3.056,821 2.715.454 
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19. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR I)ISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT  (continued) 

E. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB lruhilrtti to changes in the healthcaiv cost trend rates - The following presents 
the total OPEB liability of the Library, as well as what the Library's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.5%) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (6.5%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Decrease Current Trend 1.0% Increase 
(4.5%) (5.5%) (6.5%) 

Total OPEB liahihtv S -),739.885 3.056,821 3.439.121 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred InfloIN s of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended December 31, 2022. the Parish recognized OPEB expense of $296,732 At December 
31, 2022, the Lihrary reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources ot Resources 

Differences between expected and actual expenence S 619,045 $ (408.575) 
Changes in assumptions 926,092 (578,803) 
Total ti 1,545,137 S (987,37S) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will he recognized in OPEB expense as follows. 

Years ending December 31: 

 

2073 $ 89,851 
2024 89,852 
2075 89,852 
'7016 89,852 
2027 89,853 

Thereafter 108.499 

 

$ 557,759 
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19. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR I)ISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT  (continued) 

F. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of long-teim liabilities of the Library at December 31, "2022: 

  

Balance 
December 31, 

2021 Additions Reductions 

Balance 
December 31, 

2022 
Accrued annual 

     

leave 5 71,839 N 84,525 $ 86,436 $ 69,928 
Total OPEB 
liability 

 

2,945,881 110,940 

 

3,056,811 
Total long-term 

 

3,017,720 S 195,465 $ 86.436 $ 3,126,749 

G. TAX ABATEMENTS 

Louisiana Economic Development (LED) is a Department of the State of Louisiana and administers many 
development oriented incentives, including the Industrial Tax Exemption Program (ITEP). Under the ITEP, 
tax abatements are negotiated tbr a variety of economic development purposes. including job creation, business 
relocation, retention, and expansion. 

As of December 31. 2022, five industrial companies are currently under the ITEP. The typical term of these 
ageements are for ten years and provided Ad valorem tax abatement during the year of 2022 in the amount of 
$48,725. 

The LED has not made any conunitments as part of the agreements other than to reduce taxes. The Library 
is not suhject to any tax abatement ageements entered into hy other gm. ernmental entities other than the 
LED. 
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19. SELECTED DISCLOSURES FOR I)ISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT (continued) 

H. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

During thr ordinary course ()fits operation, the Library is party to various claims. legal actions. and complamts. 
While the ultimate effect of such litigation cannot he ascertained at this time, in the opinion of counsel for the 
Library. the liabilities which may arise from such actions would not result in losses which would exceed the 
liability insurance limits in effect at the time the claim arose or otherwise materially affect the financial 
condition of the Lihrary or results of activities. 

I. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Library is exposed to risks of loss in the areas of general and auto liability and workers' compensation. 
Those rislcs are handled by purchasing commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in 
insurance coverage during thr current year, nor have there been any settlements which have exceeded the 
insurance coverage maintained for the past three years. 

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In Febmary 2023, the Parish issued $30,000,000 Hurricane Recovery Revenue Notes, Series 2023 (the 
Notes). The Notes were issued kir the purpose of (a) paying any costs associated with debris removal or 
the demolition, rehahilitation, repair, reconstruction, renovation, restoration and improvement of the 
Parish's facilities resulting from or related to Hurricane Ida, including purchasing any furnishings, fixtures 
and equipment incidental or necessary in connection therewith, and (b) paying the cost of issuance of the 
Notes. 

In Fehniary 2023, the Parish was a recipient of Water Sector Program (WSP) funds for approximately $7.5 
million to be used for the construction of water, sewer, andior storm water infrastructure improvements. 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the tinancial statements were availahle 
to be issued, September 29, 2023, and determined that no other events occurred that require disclosure. 
Events occurring after this date have not been evaluated for inclusion in the tinancial statements. 
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T. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EM)ENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAM TS 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Revenues: 

Taxes 

Original 
Budget 

Fival 
Budget Actual 

‘'ariance - 
Favorable 

(1 .nfas (wattle) 

    

Ad valoreiii S 3.958.7-10 $ 3.958.740 $ 3.811.283 $ (147.457) 

Licenses and permits 1 ,045,000 /,045,000 1,935,558 (109,442) 
Intergovernmental revenues 

    

Fedei al gants 47.569 47.569 22,356 (25.213) 

State funds: 

    

State revenue:sharing 60O10 60.000 58,658 (1,342) 

 

70.000 70.000 57,319 (12.681) 

Fees. charges. and coninussions for service 159.500 159,500 168,542 9,042 

earnings 12,5(i(i 12.500 

 

7,780 

Other revetaies 50.000 50.000 61,925 11.925 

Total revenues 6.403.31)9 6,403,309 6,135,921 (267,388) 

Expenditures: 

    

General government 9.279.589 9,279,589 8,555,113 724,-176 

Health and weltare 303932 303.931 371,613 (67,681) 

Public safety 1.780.600 1,780.600 1.971,462 (190.862) 

Capital uutlay 100,000 100,000 266,211 (166,211) 

Lease Financing 

  

115,425 (115,425) 

Total expenditures 11.464.121 ll.-I64.121 11.279,824 184,297 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures i 5.060.812 1 (5.060.812) (5.143,903) (83,091) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

    

Transfers out (688.000i (700.1001 (788,553) (88,453) 

Transfers in 5.765.749 5.765.749 7,799,570 2.033.821 

Lease financing prnceeds 

  

266 211 266..211 

Total other financing sources (uses) 5.077.749 5.065.649 7 277,118 2 '11.5'9 

Net change in fund balance 16,937 4.837 2 . 133 3/5 2 12).488 

Fund balance, beginning 1."12 1"" 3 960,491 3.793 894 (1(16.5971 

Fund balance. ending 'S 1.750.414 4 3.965.318 $ 5.927.219 'S 1.961.891 

See accompanying independent auchtors' reporl. 
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ST. JOI-EN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE. LOUISIANA  

SALES LA\ DISTRIC"T FUND 

`CHEI►IiLE OF REVENUES, EXPENI►ITPRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND AC"TUAL 

FOR THE YEAR EVDEI► DEC"EMBER 31, 2022  

Revenues: 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Valiance - 
Favoi able 

(Unfavoi able) 

    

Taxes 

Sale, tax $ 9.142.250 $ 9.142.250 S I 1.70Es.537 S 2.566.2S7 

Investment earnings (8 700 68.7i)t) 62.784 15.9161 

Total ierenues 9.210.950 9.211O50 11.771.321 2.560.371 

Expenditures: 

    

General govermitent 276.500 2%.400 244.357 32.143 

Total expenditures 276.50i! 276.500 244.357 32.143 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 8.934.450 8.934.450 11.526.964 2.592.514 

Other financing sources (uses): 

    

Transfers nut (11.)27.750) (11.927.750i O2.725.573) (797.823) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 111.927.75n) (11.927.750) (12 725.573) C07.823) 

Net change in fund balance (2.993 3011) (2.993.3110) (1 P/8.6091 1.794.691 

Fund balance, beginning , .11; .105 11.774.362 11,774.362 

 

Fund balance, ending J 9.140 105 $ 8,781.062 $ 10,575.753 1.794.691 

See accompanying independent michnirs' report. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLAC E. LOUISRNA 

ROAD AND BRIDGES FIEND  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANC ES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ErDEI) DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Revenues: 

Taxes 

Original 

Budget 

Final 

Budge( Actual 

Variance 

FAN orable 

(1 orable) 

    

Ad valuiem S 4(1.000 S 40 OW $ 48.21)3 S 8.203 

Sales 3.652.01i) 3..652.000 4.743.452 1.091.452 
Intereoverumenial revenues: 

    

Feeleial grau I., 11.210 11.210 7.353 (3.85/1 

Sinte fitsvls 

    

NUBI) II anvorl nth qt 551O00 550.000 586.51/ 36.532 

(ober - - 350.000 350.000 

Fees, elhuge,.. and cnnuntsmons fui 'service 70.500 70.ilio 2-1.374 (-16.126) 

Fines and forieinues 121.400 121.400 11.644 (109.756) 

hifestineut earnings 6.000 6 00ti ,.).( '6(t 3.066 

Other texennes 200.000 200 000 I - S.242 i21.758) 

Total revenues 4.651.110 4.651 I l() 5 95S./360 1.307.756 

Expenditures 

    

General government 135.168 135 168 138.554 3.386) 

Transportation 8.089.054 8A189 054 9.728.802 (1.539./48) 

Capital outlay '.554.879 2.554 879 1.806.24 748.67 l 

Lease FinanLina 5.800 5.800 110..574 (104.7/4) 

Total expenditures 10.7842.101 10.784.901 11.7144.13S (999.237) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (6.133.791i (6.133.791) (5 825.2721 308.519 

()thel financing sources (uses): 

    

Transfers nut (865.686) (865.6(,6) iM74.686) (10.0(a) 

Transfers in 6.860.101 6.860.161 5,360.161 i 1.500.000 l 

Lease financing pioceeds - 

 

24,505 24.505 

Total other linanctug sources (uses) 5.994.475 5.994.475 4,508.980 i 1.485.495i 

Net change in fund balance (139.316) (139.3161 (1.316.292) (1.176.976) 

Fund balance, beginning 1.602.055 2.241 697 2.241.697 

 

Iliu~l bHlauct•.rudmg, 

see acconipanying independent linintit,' reitort. 

S 1.462.739 $ 2.102.381 $ 925.405 S (1.176.976) 

    



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL  

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

HURRICANE IDA FUND  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Revenues: 

Intergoveilunental revenues: 

Feileral grants 

Total revenues 

 

Oricinal Final 

Budget Budget 

 

Actual 

Vuriance - 

Favorable 
(Unfasorable) 

  

b 13,175.354 '3.175.1 sl 

   

13:275.354 

 

Expenditures: 

     

General governtneilt 

   

11,881 .385 (11.882,3851 

Culture and recreation 

   

1.240.791 (1.240.7911 

Econonnc developnielit 

   

64.604 (64.6041 

Health and welfare 

   

64.936 (64,936) 

Public safety 

   

61.964 (61,964) 

Pubhc wi,rks 

   

29.396.651 (29.396.651) 

Capital outlay 

   

1.368.153 O.368.1531 

Interest 

   

495.833 (495.8331 

Total expenditures 

   

44,575.317 (44.575,3171 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

   

j 1799 . 00.1 (31.299.963) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfers out 

   

1510.756) (510.756) 

Transfers in 

   

1.907.900 1.907.900 

Issuance of long-term debt 

   

30,000.000 30.000,000 

Insitratice proceeds 

   

3,846.65g 3.846,658 

T.ktal *ober titiancing s.ouces (uses) 

    

35,2-13,502 

Net chunge in fund balance 

   

3.943.1539 3.943.839 

Fund balance. beginning 

   

(25 699.557) (25.699 557) 

Fund balance, ending 's S $ C 1.755.71S) $ i21.755,718 1 

See accompanymg independent auditors' report. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE. LOUISIANA  

AMERICAN RECOVERY PLAN FUND  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND C:HANGES IN FUND BALANC"ES 

BUDGET .kND ACTUAL 

FC)R THE YEAR ENDED DEC'EIIBER 31, 2022  

Ori?inal 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance - Favorable 
(Until\ orable) 

Revenues: 

   

Investment earnings S 8.320,585 S 53.669 $ (8.2G6.916) 

Total revenues 8 1'0.585 53.669 ( 4 2 ,, , r)( , 1( 

Expenditures: 

   

General goverrunent - i 0.773.800 S. -'80 Ift7(o.20 

Total expenditures - 10.773.800 8.'1/44) (0.765.570 

Excess of revenues over expenditures (2 453.215) 45.';89 2 498.604 

Other financing sources (uses): 

   

Transfeis tn 2.153.'15 

 

(2.45.3.215) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2.453,215 

 

(2.453.215) 

Net change in fund balance 5,867.370 45.389 2 498 604 

Fund balance, beginning 1.898 1.808 

 

Fund balance. ending (2 .151.317) 47 787 $ 2 .19:-4 60.1 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

LEVEE PROTECTION FUNI)  

SC'HEIIt'LE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR E\I)EI) DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Variance - 
Original Final Favorable 

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

Taxes 

Ail yak:Item and other $ 5,444.230 $ 5,444.230 $ 5,223.678 $ (220.552) 

Imeshilent eannilgs 50.000 50.000 74.100 24.100 

Total revenues 5.-194.230 5.-194.230 5."97. 778 (196.452) 

Expenditu res: 

    

General government 2.226.N61 2.226,8(.1 214.263 2.012.59N 

Tutal expenditures 2,226.861 2,226.861 214,263 1,012.598 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 3.267.369 3.267.369 5.083.515 1.816.146 

Net change in fund balance 3.267.369 3.'67.369 5.083.515 1.816.146 

Fund balance. beginning 16.3(,0.330 16.203.223 16.203.223 

 

Fund balance, ending $ 19.627.705 S 19.470,592 S 21.286.738 $ 1.816.1-16 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 



ST. JO1LN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
December 31, 2922  

Total OPEB 
Di ffereuLe hability as a 

between Changes of percentage 
Financial H ctual and assumptions Net change m Total OPEB Total OPEB of Lovered 
statement Measureinent expedeil or oilier Benefit tittal C)PEB liability - lialulit), - Covered einployee entployee 

reporling Lb te date Service c..si interest experience inputs pa5ments ltabiltty beginning ending PaYron payroll 

12131:2022 1231;2022 S 624.964 i 702.252 $2,143 448 5(7 481.541) $(1.527.684) S(5.98.5611 S34,853 739 5 29315.178 S 12.373,562 236 

12.31'2021 12131 2021 639.453 685.149 1.463.057 318.122 11.14(t.735) 1.965.046 32.888.693 34.853.739 10.932.595 318 8 l°0 
12.13112020 12/31:2020 427.585 864,167 12.9-1(t.789) 3.496.718 (1.195.841) 751.840 32.136.853 32.8814.693 10.512.111 312 86"n 
12131/2019 L231:2019 473395 1.022.469 792.1404 5.423.754 (1 027 662) 6 61,4.760 25.452.093 32.136.853 11.217.521 286 49`to 
1231;2018 12'31:101S 513.440 939.050 1451 4561 (2 290.573) 11.112.4142) (2.402.181i 27 854 274 25.452.093 10.421.555 244 23"h 

This s, &Wide is intended to shaw inlarinationfOr 10 yearA. Additional rears 'm ill be daplaved as din became availalde 

The' e are nit assets aLonnulatell m a trust that meets the u Ueda uf paragiaph 4 of GkSB 75 ft ir this OPEB plan 

Benefit Changes 
Mell.1111V111011 date 

12131:2(122 There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended Decentbet 31. 21122 

Changes Assumption.: 
The Lhanges iu assiunpnons hahmLe was a result of Lhanges helow used for in each measurement of total OPER hilnliry. 

 

11'31"2“18 12131'2(119 1131:20211 12/31'2021 12 31:2022 
DISCM1111 Rate -1.104 r, 2.7-P0 2.12°0 1 116' t, 3.7 2° M1 

Mortality Rate RP-20410 RP-2000 RP-21114 RP-2014 RP-2014 
Trent! 5.506i. 5.50'. 4.50 0 to 5.5" 0 4 Ph in 5 5' h 4.560 to 5.560 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability for the Retirement Systems 
Defined Benefit Cost Sharing Plans Only  

For the Year Ended December 3L 2(122 (*)  

  

Employer's 

  

Employer's 

   

Prnlortrunot Employer's 

 

Proportinuale Shat Plan Fiduciaiy Net 

  

the Net Proponinuate 

 

nf Ihr Net Pension Posinon as a 

  

Pc11,sion Share attic Net 

 

Liability (Asset) as Percentage nf the 
Pen,  ion 

 

LiaNtbty Peusiou Liability Employees a Percentage of Hs Total Peusiou 
Plan Yea' (Asset (Asset Cm eied Payroll Coveted Payroll Liahtbly 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana Plan A 

     

2021 I 122540 S (7fi42.490) $ 10.684.392 -71 5295% II05% 

 

2020 1.6361% i 2.1368 Stil) 10.979 635 -26 1284% 104.0% 

 

2014 l s6310b 73.582 9 541.424 0.7477% 99.90 0 

 

2018 1 6460% 7.305 379 10.070 232 72 5443% 88 940 

 

2017 I 701-10'0 (1.202.ii18) 10.472.456 -12 0584% 102.0% 

 

2016 1 77304  O 3.651 502 10.430,818 34 0717% v.1,100 

 

2015 1.7- 33% kho'.762 10.097.069 41 22b940 92 2% 

 

2014 1 74704  4 477 647 9.975,004 4.7884% 99 10 0 

 

2013 I 794040 127.459 9.682.178 1 3117°0 99 8°0 

MAI ict Attorneys' Retirement System 

      

2022 0 0552% C 59 510 S 35 75n VA 4015% 1O 70o 

 

2021 0 05.'7% 10.265 31.158 25.1976% 96 8°0 

 

2020 0 057640 45 658 55,- 5r) 12- - 147% 84.9% 

 

2014 0.0608% 19.56o 35.750 54 73u1°. 9.3 IN 

 

2018 0 0575°0 15 503 45,75b 51 7566°0 ,,i2 9°0 

 

201" 0 0539% 14.547 35.750 -10 690944 93 00 

 

2016 0.054"u in 366 55 75h 28.0958% 95  1% 

 

2015 0 0657°U 3.538 38.sn7 9.lb79% 9800 

 

2014 0 0548% 1 092 42 ow) 2 6000% 99 440 

Registrar of ‘ oters Employees' Retiretheut System of Louisiana 

     

2022 0.721840 S 176.47o S 103.288 171 3423% P.2 5% 

 

2021 0 5304% 16 825 70,454 21 1758% 97 70;i 

 

2020 0 4642% WI .t.i55 63.568 154 0187% 53 3°0 

 

2019 0.4264°4 79 - 45 58 568 136 1580% 84 Stu 

 

2018 0 4221% 44.645 58.568 170 1356°0 8000 

 

2017 0 81.43% 178 523 103 602 172 3162% 74 040 

 

2016 0 3191% 90.543 43.83I 206 57300  0 -.4 Olo 

 

2015 0 3208°0 78 574 43,521 150 5427% 763% 

 

2014 4.l1?CVu 72.48o 40.7E6 177 7227% 77 70-,, 

Fiiefighteis' Retirement Systein of Lniusiana 

     

2022 0.0038% 5 6.372 951 S 2.330 208 273 4028°O 74 7% 

 

2021 0 8124% 3.122.474 " 10.393 141 2859°0 86.8°0 

 

2020 0 8811% 6.10' 360 2.190 875 275 7635% 71 roio 

 

2019 0 8665% 5.426.208 1.097.593 258 6574% - 4 tro 

 

2015 0 8325% 4.758 305 I.95 I ,062 241 50bO4° 74.5% 

 

2017 4.M14CVo 4.8411.575 1.973.803 245 2410% 73 5% 

 

2016 0 872444 5.706 i 03 1.967,162 290 Ii723% 68 2% 

 

2015 0 8- 57% 4.726.241 1.557.698 254 4138% 72 4°0 

 

2014 0.7705% 3.428 - 83 1.587 749 215 9525% 76 0% 

Schedule o mended In :holt ulturnmucoi.li5r 10 ,lears Atihuondl ,tears Hd! dtsphtird as dun beeme anulahle 

(0) The amounts preseuted hare a liability weasuienieut date as follows 
Measurement Date Pension Plan 

December 1l+t the pnor year 
hine 30 of die year ended 
June 3n of the year euded 

Jnne 30 uf the year ended  

Parochial Employees' Ret irenieut Sysyteiu of Lniusiaua Plau A 
District Attorneys' Reim ement System 
Registmi of voters Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 
Firelighteis.  Retirement System of Louisiana 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Contributions to Each Retiretnent Ntem  

Defined Benefit Cost Sharing Plans Only  

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Con trilaiti ons in 
Relation tn 

Contractually Contractually Coninbutron 
Reepuied Retained Deficiency 

Per, 'lull PIM] t Cofetibutitm2 (EXCe44I  Covered Pa}iule  

Contnimuuns as 
a °o Ut t-uvered 

Pam oll 

Parochial Employees' Retirement Syctem of Lout- una Plan B         
2022 $ 1.215.732 S 1.215.732 S S lu..571.570 11 50°4 
2021 1.30b.838 1,308.535 

 

10.654.392 1"544 
2020 1.3453;0 1.345.005 

 

10.979.633. 12.254,,, 
2u19 1.131.764 1.131.764 

 

9.841.424 )1.50° i, 
2015 1.1583177 1.158.0'7 

 

104170.232 11 5m. 
2017 1.3c*.765 1.308.763 

 

10.472.456 12 50°,, 
2016 1.357.567 1.35".5o7 

 

10.439.615 13.0^, 
2015 1.464.0'1 1.4(14.071 

 

10.0973369 1-1.51N 
201-1 1.596.000 1.596.000 

 

9.975.003 lo no% 

Dianct Attorneys' Renrement System 
2022 S 3.396 S 3.306 $ S 35.7sn 9.50°i, 
2021 2.429 2.429 

 

36.1 cS o 7260 

2020 1A30 1.430 

 

3 c.750 4 00°0 
2019 938 936 

 

.c.-..sn 2.t.241, 
2015 223 72.% 

 

35.7sn 0.62°i, 
2017 - 

  

3%.7C0 0 on*o 
2016 626 026 

 

.tc.750 1 75°0 
2015 l .89s 1.545 

 

36.u0" 5.20%, 
2u14 3.413 3.413 

 

40.749 P,..45° i, 

Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

    

2022 S 19.357 S 19.357 S S 103.285 l5.4°,4 
2021 14.361 14.361 

 

95.016 )5.11% 
2020 12.3-12 12.342 

 

65.565 18 no*. 
2019 10.249 10.249 

 

55.568 17 500,, 
201S 9.957 9.957 

 

55.565 17.904,, 

2u17 22.737 '2.737 

 

110.293 20.62°i, 
2016 9.414 9.414 

 

44.3%0 21 23°o 
2015 10.45% 10.455 

 

44.705 '3 39°,, 
2u14 10.132 10.132 

 

41.780 24.25%, 

Firefightei, ' Retheinent System uf Louisiana 

     

2022 S 765.101 S 768.101 S S 2.292.967 33 5000 

2021 750.808 750.806 

 

2.272.686 33.03°,4 
2u2n nly...ty6 679,346 

 

2.262.192 30.03.i, 

2010 582.753 552.783 

 

2.151.624 `7 09a. 
2018 535.777 535.777 

 

2.021.795. 20 50°0 
2u17 515."1 t 515.713 

 

1.99 i.537 25.574, 
2u16 515.892 515.592 

 

1.963.959 2(..2"°i, 
2015 543.968 543.968 

 

1.922.3%6 28 3m. 
2014 489.256 459.286 

 

1.'4/0.30 25 7764 

Nehedide r.r intendeor tn %how inforimiormihr Ili srnrs Additional years br displayed thei heroine in tolable. 

For reference orgy. 

Emph4er contriknon tatc multiplied hi emplutvr.s emeredpiil iod 

2
.fetual e-oniriburiont remitted tu Retirement .5) ;tem, 

Cm ered µfcrull mooing for each oldie fiscoi rear ended Deeemher 31 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO REC)t'IREI) SUPPLENIENTARY INFORMATION 

NOTE A - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Budgets for the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund are adopted on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Therefore, GAAP serves as the budgetary basis of accounting. 

NOTE B - PENSION PLAN CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS 

Changes of Benefit Terms 
There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended December 31, 1022. 

Changes of Assumptions 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Plan A 
Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Plan A 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended December 31. 2015: 
• The investment rate of return decreased from 7 25" to to 7.00°U. 
• The prittected salary increases decreased from 5.75".0 to 5.25°0. 
• The intlation rate decreased from 3.00°6 to 2.50°6. 

There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended December 31. 2017: 
• The investment rate la- return decreased from 7 000 0 to 6.75° a. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended December 31, 2018: 
• The invesnnent rate of return decreased from 6 75°6 to (.i.50"0. 
• The projected salary increases decreased from 5.25".0 to 4.75°0. 
• The intlation rate decreased from 2.50°6 to 2 40°0. 

There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended December 31. 2019. 

There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended December 31, 2112it. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended December 31. 2021: 
• The investment rate of return decreased from 6 50°0 to 6.40°0. 
• The inflation rate decreased from 2.40°0 to 2.30410 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO REO('IREI) S('PPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NOTE B - PENSION PLAN CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS (continued) 

District Attorneys' Retirement System  
There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 21)16: 

• The expected remaining service lives were increased from 6 ).ears to 7 years. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2017: 
• The investment rate of return decreased from 7 00% to 6.75°0. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2018: 
• The investment rate of return decreased from 6 75°0 to 6.50°0. 

• The expected remaining service hves were decreased from 7 years to 6 vears. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 2019: 
• The investment rate of return decreased from 6 75°o to 6 50°.0. 
• The inflation rate decreased from 2.5II°4 to 2 40%. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 2020: 
• The investment rate I if return decreased from 6 50° s to 6.25uo. 
• The intlation rate decreased from 2.40% to 2 30%. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 2021 
• The mvesnnent rate of remrn decreased from 6 25°0 to 6.10%. 
• The inflation rate decreased from 2.30% to 2 211%. 

• The expected remaining service lives were decreased frorn 6vears to 5 years. 

There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended June 311. 2022. 

Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System uf Luuisiana  
There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30, 21115: 

• The expected remaining service lives were mcreased from 4 years to 5 years. 

There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 2016. 

There were changes of asstunptions for the year ended June 30, 21117: 
• The mvesnnent rate of return decreased from 7 II o to 6.75%. 

There were changes of asstunptions for the year ended Jtme 30. 2018: 
• The investment rate of return decreased from 6 75% to 6.50°0. 
• The inflation rate decreased from 2.50°0 to 2 40°0. 

There were no chances of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 2019. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
• The investment rate I if return changed from 6.500 0 to 6 40°0. 
• The inflation rate changed from 2 40% to 2.30°4. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 2021: 
• The investment rate of return changed from 6.40% to 6.25%. 

There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 2022 

- 1114 - 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO REO('IREI) SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NOTE B - PENSION PLAN CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS (continued) 

Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana  
There were changes or asstunptions fur the year ended June 30. 2015: 

• The inflation rate decreased frorn 3.00% to 2 875%. 

There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 2016. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2017: 
• The investment rate if return decreased from 7 50°0 to 7.400 0. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2018: 
• The investment rate of return decreased from 7 40% to 7.30u0. 
• The intlation rate decreased from 2.775° to 2.71r 0. 

There were changes of assumptions for the vear ended June 30, 2019: 
• The investment rate of return decreased from 7 300.0 to 7.15%. 
• The inflation rate decreased frorn 2.70°0 to 2 50%. 

There were changes of assumptions for Me year ended June 30. 2020: 
• The investment rate of return changed from 7.15°0 to 7 00%. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 2021 
• The investment rate of return changed from 7.00" o to 6 90° n. 

There were changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30. 20?2. 

NOTE C - OPEB CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended December 31, 2022. 

Changes of Assumptions 

Thc discount rate as of December 31, 2021 was 2.06% and it chanced to 3.72% as of December 31, '012. 

The discount rate as of December 31, 2020 was 2.12% and it chanced to 2.06% as of December 31, 2011. 

The discount rate as of December 31, 2019 was 2.74% and it changed to 2.1.21!.0 as of December 31, 2020. 

The discount rate as of December 31, 2018 was 4.10% and it changed to 2.74% as of December 31, 2019 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL  
LAPLAC'E, LOUISIANA  

S(:'HEI)t'LE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL MEMBERS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Parish C'ouncil 

 

Compensation Benefits Paid 

Lennix Madere. Jr. Division A $ 8.'30 $ 549 

Michael P. Wiight Division B 8,230 28.1O 

Kurt Hemel Disnict I 8,230 9,899 

Wairen Torres Dish ict II 8,230 1.304 

Tanuny Houston District III 8,230 264 

Tyia Duhe-Griffin District IV £.230 

 

Robert Alain District V 8,230 - 

Tonia Schnyder District VI 8.230 1.117 
Thomas Mahk Disnitt VII 8,230 549 

  

$ 74.070 $ -11.849 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL  

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS 

TO THE PARISH PRESIDENT  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022  

Parish President's Name: Jaclyn Hotard 

 

Salary S 143,398 
Benefits - retirement 16,491 

Car allowance 9 600 

 

S 169.489 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL  
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

.H'ST ICE SYSTEM FUNDLNG SCHEDULE - RECEIVING ENTITY 
CASH BASIS PRESENTA HON  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DE( EMBER 31,2022  

Second Six Month 
First Six Month Period Period Ended 

Ended 0W3012022 12/31P2022 

Receipts Primo 

St Jahn the Baptist Parish Sheriffs Wee, Criminal Court Costs Fees 15.529 5 12.285 

St John the Baptist Parish Sheres (Vice. Bond Surety Fees -2•,13 

  

Subtotal Receipts 4H-142 S 32.863 

Ending Bailance of Amounts Assessed but Not Received 

- - 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

FUND DESCRIPTIONS - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

SPECIAL REYLME FLNDS 

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenues (other than special assessments, 
expendable trusts, or revenues for major capital projects) that are legally restncted to expenditures for specific 
purposes 

Health Unit Tax Fund - The Health Unit Tax Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the two 
health units in the Parish. Revenue is generated from a .96 mill Ad Valorem Tax along with some state 
revenue sharing The expenditures include a portion of the annual operation of the health units, as well as 
the quarterly billing for personal and environmental health services performed in the Parish hy the State 
Department of Health & Hospitals. 

Juvenile Detention Center Fund - The Juvenile Detention Center Fund provides for the housinL,  of St. John 
the Baptist Parish juvenile offenders in juvenile detention facilities in other Parishes. The revenue is 
generated from a 1.00 mill Ad Valorem Tax. The major expenditure is the housing of juveniles outside St. 
John the Baptist Parish 

Ambulance Fund - The Arnbulance Fund accounts for annual emergency ambulance services for St. John 
the Baptist Parish. The revenue is generated from a service charge on residents' monthly utility bills. The 
rnajor expenditure for this fund is the private contract services for parish-wide ENIS. 

Convention Center Fund - Revenue is generated from a dedicated 2.971!-.3 sales tax charged on the 
hotel motel occupancy of lodging in St John the Baptist Parish. The revenue is dedicated to the construction 
and maintenance of a Civic Center. 

Economic Development Funcl - The Economic Development Fund accounts for the promotion of economic 
growth in St. John the Bapti:,t Paish. Revenue is generated from a 3 8% sales tax. 

911 Communications District Fund - The Communications District Fund accounts for the annual operation 
of the emergency 911 facility. Revenue is generated from the monthly 911 surcharge collected by local 
telephone companies along with interest income. 

Civil Defense Fund - The C'ivil Defense Fund provides the annual operations of the St. Jolm Parish 
Department of Public Safety. Revenues are generated from an annual grant by Entergy, Inc. as mandated 
by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC). In addition, funds are allocated by Economic Development 
to match grant funding per the sales tax proposition. 

Street Lighting Fund - The Street Lighting Fund accounts for the annual operations for parish-wide street 
lighting. The revenue is generated from 3.83 mills, along with some state re‘enue sharing funds. The 
expenditures consist of the cost for lighting public streets, as well as other annual operating expenditures. 

Fire Services Fund — The Fire Services Fund was created in May 2003 when the voters of St. Jolm the 
Baptist Parish passed a .25 cent sales tax for a partially paid tire department. This fund accounts for the cost 
associated with the paid personnel for the fire departinents. In 2015, the Parish combined the four Volunteer 
Fire Departments into the Fire Services Fund. The revenue of the Fire Departments is eenerated from a 1/4% 
sales tax for the tire departments along with a 2% fire insurance rebate. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

FUND DESCRIPTIONS - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Criminal Court Fund - The Criminal Court Fund accounts tbr a portion of the annual cost of the courts. 
The annual revenues are derived from fines. forfeitures. court fees, etc. 

Recreation Fund  - The Recreation Fund accounts for recreational expenses of the Parish which consist 
primarily of maintaining the park grounds and the summer youth programs. The revenue is generated 
primarily from video poker revenue collected by the State. 

RESTORE Fund — This fund is used to account for the grant funds received from the Federal RESTORE 
program. The expenses for approl, ed projects related to water mitigation will be tracked here. Currently, the 
Belle Terre Streetwater project is underway. 

LA SAFE Fund - This fund is used to account for grant funds received frorn the Louisiana Office of 
Community Development for the LA SAFE Airline and Main Complete Streets project. The project is a 
resilient infrastructure project along Airline Highway between Belle Terre and Main Street in LaPlace. 

CDBG Fund — This fund is used to account for the Federal CDBG progam. The revenue is generated from 
Federal grant funds. 

Hurricane Isaac Fund - The Hurricane Isaac Fund accounts for .s!rant revenues received for disaster 
recovery efforts related to Hurricane Isaac. Revenue is generated from federal 2rant programs. 

Hurricane Isaac (DBG Fund — This fund is used to account for the Federal Community Development 
Block Grant proaram related to Hurricane Isaac recovery projects. The revenue is generated from Federal 
2 Ca nt programs. 

LCDBG — CV Public Facilities Fund  - This fund is used to account for the LCDBG program. This program 
is a state grant, the funding of which is to replace the INA(' units in the two Council on Aging buildings. 

Animal Shelter Fund — This fund is used to account tbr the annual operation of the animal shelter facility. 
The revenue is generated from a .75 mill ad ‘alorem tax. 

GOMESA Fund - This fund accounts for the monies received from Phase II of the Gulf of Mexico Energy 
Security Act of 2006. The funds are to be used for Coastal conservation, restoration, and hurricane 
protection. 

IIealth and Human Services Fund — This fund is used to account for various grants and other revenues 
used to provide tbod, housing and utihtv assistance to needy residents in the Parish. 

DEBT SERt7CE HAW 

The Debt Service Funds are used to accumulate motues tbr the payment of principal, interest, and fiscal charges 
on the Parish's general obligation and special tax bonds. 

Parishwide Seweraffe Sales Tax Reserve Fund - This fund accounts for the reserving of funds as prescribed 
by law for any one year's principal and interest payments for sewer bonds. 

Parishwide Sewerage Sales Tax Sinking Fund - This fund accounts for the annual payment of principal 
and interest on sewer bond debt. The Sales Tax District transfers on a monthly basis the funds to cover these 
payments. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

FUND DESCRIPTIONS - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

WVFD Fire Protection Reserve Fund - This fund accounts for the reserving of funds as prescribed by law 
for any one year's principal and interest payments for the WVFD sales tax bonds. 

WVFD Fire Protection Sin kinu Fund - This fund accounts for the annual payment of principal and interest 
on the WVFD sales tax bond debt. The WVFD operating fUnd transfers on a monthly basis the funds to 
cover these payments. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FINDS 

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources and expenditures in connection with the 
acquisition, renovation, and improvements of capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

Bond Series 1990 Parishwide Seweraue Construction Phase II Fund - The fund was created in 1990 to fund 
sewer capital improvements. After the funds front the bond issues had been extinguished. the fund was kept 
pursuant to Council Resolution 98-28, which states that any revenues collected front the one-cent sewer sales 
tax in excess of S4 million should be escrowed for future use. Funds have been transferred into this fund from 
the Sales Tax District on an annual basis to complete various sewer improvement projects. 

2009 General Obligation Bond Construction Fund - The fund was created by a 2009 bond issuance for the 
purpose of funding construction of various capital projects. 

2010 Sewer Bond Construction Fund - The fund was created hy a 2010 bond issuance to titnd sewerage capital 
improvements throughout the Parish. 

2014 General Obligation Bond t 'onstruction Fund - The fund was created by a .2(114 bond issuance to fund 
St:Wel-age capital improvements throughout the Parish. 

2015 General Obligation Bond Construction Fund - The fund was created by a 2015 bond issuance for the 
purpose of funding construction of various capital projects. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

COMBINING B.ALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022  

   

Special Res Hine Funds 

  

Health Unit 

Jur enile 
Detention 

(. enter A M bulance 
Cons enliou 

( enler 
Economic 

Development 

911 
Cointounications 

Distrif 

ALIAS 

      

Caah and cash equis akin% S l.984.8.18 S I O.8.9.17 S 2.5:O S 1.21F...133 $ 2.779.007 $ 1.499.m-17 
Receisubles: 

      

Accounts 

  

42.72i 

 

4.000 92.924 
Ad Valorem Taxes 67h 933 705.138 - 

 

- 

 

Sales Tio.es - 

   

74 7  021 

 

Other 

  

- 

 

15 436 

 

Due from Inher funds l.400 48.540 151.944 329.036 iff.s25 

 

Dile Bum other governinents 

  

- 

 

- 

 

Prepaid items 3.09g 5.871 

  

2.1.0f/2 15.356 
Total assets 5 2.666.'69 S IA-528.496 S 1,./7.25u $ 1.547..169 $ 3,579.9-  I $ 1.60- .967 

Liabililie, 
S 45.195 S 32.494 S - S 16 0/2 i 32,277 $ 6410 Acsounts payable 

Accrued expenses and whet liabilities 977 

 

- 1.6-'5 4.179 

 

Dile tu othei funds 54.875 243.87 5 72.547 6.46" 420.968 8.529 
Total liabilities Ini.thr 276.369 '2.5-17 24.154 457.424 14,969 

Hefei red inflows of rewuice, 
61.132 

5.392 

63.6- 0 
5.616 

    

A4san...e plynona,  
Unavailable ievernies 

Total deleried inflows of iesoluces 66.524 h0.29 

    

Fund Balances 
Viol( 5.8" 

  

23,0g2 15..156 \onapend.thle 
Restiicted 2,496 100 I 476.961 124.703 1.523,215 3.099  465 I 577.1.42 
Committed 

      

Unassigned 

      

Total fund balances 2.499.I L-182.832 124.703 1.52.1.215 3.122.47 1.592.998 

Total liabahhes. deferred inflows. 
and fund balances S 2 666.769 S 1 528.496 S 197.250 S 1.5,-17  369 S 3.570,0'71 $ 1 607.967 

======= aaaaaa= 9000000000000, 

See accompanying independent auditors repull 

-112-

 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022  

   

Special Revenue Funds 

   

Street 

 

Chminil 

    

C is 41 Defense Lighting Fire tien kr% Cuutt Recreation RESTORE LASAFE 

Assets 

       

Cash and cash equivalents S 1.223.191 S 4.882,988 S 1.5 1 6.614 S 60.001 S 3.218.930 S 119.'42 S 186.127 

Receivables 

       

Accounts 

  

2.000 51.869 

   

Taxes 

 

2.6- 8.302 - 

 

1.586.5(Y4 

  

SalesTaxes 

  

yQ7.234 

    

()the, 47.445 

 

- 

 

68.846 

  

Due hum uthei funds 46.015 100.708 201.1 [7 84.395 39.483 

  

Due fium uthet guvenunents - 19.206 - 

 

50.038 

 

24.1.646 

Prepaid items l4.7un 4.729 208.670 

 

24.339 

  

Total assets S I 3.?1,351 S 7,o85.993 S 2,964.635 S I90.265 S 4.98i1.140 $ 119.- 42 S 429.7-3 

Liabilities 

       

At...omits payable $ 148.517 S 213.696 S 95.484 S 96 135 S 414.855 S S 409.267 
Accined expenses and othei liabilities 5.968 5.859 113.008 3.382 52.403 

 

41.876 

Due tu uthei funds 26o.583 261.426 12.19U 650.089 o99.Jol 139.511 6,480 

Total liabilities 42 L068 480.48I 220.682 750.206 L166.619 139.511 507.623 

Defen ed inflows of resources 

       

Advance tax payment-

  

2-43.891 

  

143.278 

  

Unavailable revenues 

 

21.10 

  

6g.g 19 

  

Total defened inflows ut re iources 

 

2oc 

  

:12.119-

   

Fund Balances 

       

Nouspendable 14.7ou 4.7'9 24.67A 

 

24.339 

  

Resit icted gi)5,5g3 6.934.882 2.535.283 

 

3.585.085 

  

Committed 

       

LInassigned 

   

(553.94 1 1 

 

(19.7691 (77.850i 

Total ftmd balances 910.283 o.939.611 2.- 43.053 c53.94 1 I 3.o09,424 O9.- 64) ( 77.8519 

Total liabiltlies deferred inflows. 
and fund lidlances S I 331..451 S 7.685.493 S 2.964.635 S 196  20c 1,9F s,.1 lo 5 119.- 42 S 429.773 

See accninp.nlying independent .111dItol± repnrt 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

OMBINING BALANCE SHEET  

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

DECENIBER 31, 2022  

131.4.1.4 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables: 
Ai:mints 

Taxes 
SalesTaxes 
1)Ilier 

Di le iSOM other kids 
Due from oilier governments 
Prepaid steins 

Total asseis 

Liabilities 

    

special Res rune Funds 

    

CDBG 
Hurricane 

Isaac 
Hurricane 

Isaac CHI% 

L(DBG CV 

Public 
Farilitie, 

Fund 
Animal 

'shelter CONIF.8.1 

Health & 
Human 

ices 
Total Special 

Revernie Funds 

$ - 

91.964 

1 16. 123 

- 
245.721 

- 

$ 16.053 

37.431 

S 4.o36 $ 1.005.56 1 

528 835 

10.(182 

8.525 

1 1.60 1.584 

34.835 

S 669.714 

- 

1 5.461 
24.534 

- 

S 23.07-.666 

193.514 
6 17 5  712 

1,- 45.155 

131 727 
1.115.6f 

710.007 
!MOW) 

5 91.964 b 26 I.S1-1 \ 5 (.4g4 1 1.(06 1.156.003 b 1.636,422 $ 769.714 S 33.45"."88 

S 

 

$ 59.490 

365.8u8 4 t .894 

$ - 
- 

27.275 

c 42 776 
6.021 

291).515 

$ 34.8313 S 1,0 I ti 
- 

16i.127 

$ 1 64S.486 
285.348 

3.754.12S 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses anthill-ler liabilities 

Due to other hinds 

Total liabilities 

Hefei red Moss c of i rsoin ces 

  

425.295 93.899 2".275 334.312 34.835 164.13" 5.717.962 

 

91.964 245.721 

  

- 
1.21: 

  

559.739 
143.2.4 4 

.AnIk ance 
Unavailable retenucs 

Total delayed inflows nf 

Fund Balances 

 

P1.964 245.721 

  

5 I 

     

(4(9.175) (4u 41.5i (22.042) 

8 525 
1.156,195 1 601.584 545 577 

30S.370 

27,552 275 

(1.123.792) 

Nonspcudablr 

Restricied 

Coninittiet1 

Total bind habiace, 

Total babilities, deferred inflows. 
and fund balances 

  

(409.175) (4() 4151 (22.0-12) 1.164.720 

 

54cc--

  

S 91 4164 $ 261.844 S 53,484 ¶ 1 

 

1 636.422 i "0,1 -14 ¶ 

See accompanying independent auditors' iepon 
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ST. JOEL'S THE BAPTIsT PARisH COUNCIL 
LAPLAC E. LOHMANA  

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Debt Nervke Funds 

Parishwitle Parishwide 
Sewerage Sewerage WVFD Fire INVFD File Tntal Debt 
Sales Tax Sales Tax Protection Protedion Service 
Reserve Sint:nig Reserve Sulking Funds 

Assell 
Cash and cash equivalents S 30 S 1.00.1.863 S 472.402 S 41.1..112 S 1,R89.607 

Receivables 
Accounts 
TaxCs 

SalesTaxes 
Other 

Due Mini uthei hind, 
Due rroni other government, 
Prepaid items 

Total assets i 30 S 1.00.4.863 S 4- 2.402 S 12 N 

Aci.ounts payable 
Acciued expense,  and othei liabilities 
Due to odiei funds 

      
S 13 046 5 13,046 

  63       
Tau] liabilities   63    I 3.04ti Li.l09 

Defer! ed inflows of resources 
Actvauc,. ta% payments 
Unavailable revenues 

Total defcned inflows of resources 
         
         

Fund Balances 
Nouspendable 
ResifILICll 30 I.003.800 472 4U2 400,266 1.876 4YS 

Comnutted 
linassigned 

Total fund balances 30 1.00.1.800 4'72.402 401).266 1.876.498 

Total liabilities. deferred inflows 
and fund balauces 5 30 S 1.003 863 5 472,402 S 413 312 5 1.880,607 

          

Sec ascninpanying independent auditor; report 



ST. JOILN THE BAPT1sT PAR1sH COUNCIL 

LAPLAC E, LOU18IANA  

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  

NON-MAJOR GO$TRNMENTAL FUNDS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022  

   

Capital Projects Funds 

   

Bond Series 

      

1990 PW 2009 Geueral 

 

2014 General 

  

Total 

 

Sewerage Obligation 201u Seir ei Obligation 2015 General 

 

Nonmajor 

 

Construction Bond Bond Bond Obligation Bond Total Capital Governmental 

 

Phase 11 Construction C (instruction Constiuction Consti uction Projects Funds Funds 

Assets 

       

Cash and cash equisalents S 2.482 S 18 S 1.678.025 S 4.556.2 IU S 3.7-9.454 S 10.016.189 S 34.983.4O 

Recenables 

       

Accounts 

      

193.514 

Taxes 

      

6.175 712 

SalesTaxes 

      

1.745 155 

Other 

      

111 727 

Due frum other fund: 

  

'43.54' 

 

l35.48I 379.023 1.494.660 

Due from other governments 

  

295.482 (195.- j 

 

991.255 1.701.262 

Prepsid items 

      

308.370 

Toial assets S 2.482 S IS $ 2.21".049 5 5.2c1.0.S? S 3.014.935 S 1.,,.6.4(1- S 46.1'33.662 

Lialnhtles 

       

Acsounts payable S s S S33 S 853.416 S 197 42' S 1.051 676 S 2.713 2U8 

Acclued expense: and whet liabilines 

  

- 3A09 126.401 23.921 223.701 509.139 

Due to tithe' fund: Lail 

 

62 172.98U 37.397 210.559 3.994.750 

Toial liabilme: 1.1n 

 

74.304 1.152.857 258.745 1.486.020 7.217.097 

Datil ed inflows of resources 

      

559 - 39 A.1% Anse tax payments 

ieveniies 

  

.11.1 I 0 

  

31.110 

 

Total deferred inflow, oi resunice, 

  

I . I I 

  

1.1 1 0 1 .11: 1 .0.12 

Fund Balances 

       

Nonspeudable 

      

30S 370 

Reshicted 

      

29.425 '73 

Committed 

  

2.1 I 1.6.16 4.000.12o 

 

9.809.322 9.8O.322 

Unassigned 

      

(1.123.7921 

Total film! balance: 

 

I 2. I I I.626 4.000.1 "70 3.656.100 9.809.322 3i1,4,S2.67 3 

Total liabilities defeired inflows 
and fuud balause. 4s12 IS S '21 —.1,4'+ 5.75 S 3.014 635 S 11,3s6 467 S. 40.- 11 q02 

Sec accompanying independent auditore report 
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ST. JC)HN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL  

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE  

SCHEDULE C)F REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCI:S 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL  

HEALTH UNIT FUND  

YEAR ENDED DEC'EMBER 31, 2022 

Variance - 

Original Final Fas orable 

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

Taxes        
Ad valorem 

Imergovenunenial revenues 

State funds: 

State ievenue sharing 

hwesrnient eaniings 

()diet revenues 

$ 746.645 

16O)0 

10.700 

10(1 

$ 746.645 

16.000 

10.700 

luti 

$ 716.390 $ 

15.261 

16.396 

93 

(30.255) 

(739) 

5.696 

(7) 

Total revenues 

  

7-3.4-15 

 

•74S.1-11.) t ^5.3o5) 

Expenditures: 

      

Health and welfare '41.c)3S 

 

2-11 938 

 

"09 . tSi 31.953 

Total expenditures 211.938 

 

"'41.9;5 

 

"09.0S5 31.953 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 531.507 

 

531,507 

 

538,155 6,648 

Other financing sources (uses): 

      

Transfets out (215.142) 

 

(235.142) 

 

(235.142) 

 

Total other financing sources (uses) (23c,1,12) 

 

(235.1.12i 

 

(235 142) 

 

Net change iu fund balance 296.365 

 

296.365 

 

303.013 6 

Fund balance. beginning 1.637.565 

 

2.196.185 

 

2.196.185 

 

Fund balance, einling 1,93 -1,93(1 5 1,19').5so y 2.199.19s 0.615 

See accompanying independent =Idols' report. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY C'OMPARISON SCHEDULE  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND ['HINGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

JUVENILE I)ETENTION CENTER FUND  

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Revenues: 

Taws 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

 

Valiance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

     

Ad va lot on S 777,760 $ 777,760 $ 748.778 $ (28.982) 

Into govennnewal revenues 

Fedo al i-rants 48,540 48,540 48.540 

  

Investment earnings 3,000 3.000 !).547 

 

6.547 

Total revenues 8.29,300 829,300 806.865 

 

(22,435) 

Expenditures: 

     

General government 174,836 174.836 189.233 

 

(14.397) 

Health ,md welfare 48,903 48.903 53,040 

 

(4,137) 

Public safery 152,670 l52.670 81.485 

 

71.185 

Total expenditures 376,409 376,409 323,758 

 

52,051 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 452.891 452.891 483,107 

 

30.216 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfers out (239,490) (239,490) (239.49(0 

  

Total other financing sources (uses) (239.490) (239.490) (239,490 ) 

  

Net change in fund balance 213.401 213.401 243.617 

 

30.216 

Fund balance, beginning 1.190,472 1.239.215 1.239.215 

  

Fund balance, ending 1.403,873 $ 1.452.616 $ 1.482.832 $ 30.216 

See accolupiulying iittlepetiden1 anclitors'lepot1. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL  

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUD(:;ET AND ACTUAL  

AMBULANCE FUND 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Revenues: 

Original 

Budget 

Final 

Budget Actual 

 

Variance - 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

     

Fees. charges. and commissions for services $ 418.000 $ 418.000 S '77.533 ); (140.467) 

hivesniteilt earaulgs 1,000 1 000 122 

 

(878) 

Other tevenues 2.000 7 .000 2.363 

 

363 

Total revenues 421.000 -121.000 280.(118 

 

1140,982) 

Expenditures: 

     

Public safety 193,500 393,500 370  287 

 

14,213 

Total expenditures 393.500 393.500 179.18 

 

14.213 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

uver (underi expenditures 27.500 27.500 (99.269) 

 

(126,760) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

TFoi4ei-, out (26.595) (26.595) t26,595) 

  

otal other financing sources (uses) (26,595) (26,595) (26,595) 

  

Net change in fund balance 905 905 1125,864) 

 

(126,769) 

Fund balance, beginning '3/.969 250.567 250.567 

  

Fund balance. eliding $ 231.8".1 $ 251.4/2 $ 124.701 $ 112(i,769) 

See accompanying independent auditors' ieport 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES„AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

CONA.ENTION CENTER Ft:ND 

YEAR ENDED DECEIIBER 31, 2022  

 

Original 

Budget  

Final 

Budget  Actual  

Valiance - 

Fas urable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

Inteigovennnemal reveilles. 

State funds.        
Other S 330.000 $ 330.000 $ 329.036 $ (964) 

Fees. di:times. and Lommissions fa setviLes 80.000 £+().(HM) 700 

 

(79300) 

Invesunent eumngs 9.000 9.0b0 9.853 

 

853 

Total revenues 410.000 410.000 339.589 

 

(70.4 1 

Expenditures: 

     

Economic development 296.200 296.200 180.507 

 

115.693 

Capital ouday 5.000 5.000 15. 350 

 

O3.350) 

Total expenditures 301.200 301.200 198.,; 5 7 

 

102.343 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 117.800 117.800 140,732 

 

22.932 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfers out (110.129) 116.129) (I16.129) 

  

Total other financing sources (uses) (110.129) O16,129) (116.12,1) 

  

Net change in fund balance 1.071 1,671 2-1.003 

 

1 ,  97,1 

Fund babinee, beginning l 1, 1,090 1.-08.012 1.498.012 

  

Fund balance, ending S 1.222.761 $ .500.283 $ 1.523.215 $ 22.932 

See accompanying independent andittW ieort 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL  

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGL LARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND  

YEAR ENDED DEC UMBER 31, 2022  

Revenues: 

Taxes 

Original 

Budget 

Final 

Budget Actual 

Variance - 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

    

Sales 

hitergoverninentalievenues: 

S 3.652.000 S 3.65,  000 S 4 743,452 $ 1 091.452 

Federal 6.000 6.000 8.064 2.064 

State fimds: 

    

Other 10.000 l0,00U 8.000 (2.000) 

lnveslnient eainings Ift,000 10.000 25.680 15.680 

Other revenues 190.680 100.680 194.281 3.602 

Total revenues 3.so8.680 3.S68.680 4.979.-1- 8 1.110,708 

Expenditures: 

    

General aiivermnent - - 32.183 (32.183) 

Eo qualm development 1.457.831 1.457,831 1,461.28s (3..4s4) 

Capital outlay 

  

16.165 O6.165) 

Lease finalicitig 

    

Principal 

  

3,768 (3:768) 

hiterest 

  

120 (120) 

Total expenditures 1.457.631 1,357.831 1.513 510 O5.699) 

Excess (deficiency) of resenues 

over (under) expenditures ?A1U.S-1`) 2.-110,84(.; 3,465.9-18 1.055.o09 

Other financing sources (uses): 

    

Transfers out 12.406.450) (2.406,450) (4,587.676) (2,1N1.226) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (2.406,450) (2.306.450, (4.5x7.676) (2.1x1.??6) 

Net change in fund balance 4.390 4.399 (1.121.728) (1.126.127) 

Funil balance. beginning 3.22S.-144 -4-'44.175 -1.24-1.275 

 

Fund balance, tn(ling S 3.232.843 t 4.248 674 S 3 I 22.5.17 $ (1 126.12 7) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUM) BALANCES 

. DGET AND ACTUAL 

911 COMMUNICATIONS IIiSTRIC'T FUND  

YEAR ENDED DEC'EIIBER 31, 2022  

Reven ues: 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

 

Variance - 
Fas orable 

(Unfavorable) 

     

Fees. Lharges. and Lonuuissions foi serviLes S 7400)0 740.000 $ 678.251 S (61.749) 

Investment earnings 10.000 10.000 11.719 

 

1.719 

reveilues :1.000 '.000 S:7 

 

(1.913) 

Total resenues 752.000 752.000 690,057 

 

0,1.943) 

Expenditures: 

     

General government - 

 

126 

 

(126) 

Public safety 327.650 327,650 319.746 

 

7.904 

Total expenditures "(17.(,50 327.(,50 319.872 

 

7.778 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

 

42-1 3i0 370.185 

 

(54.165) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfers out ( 230.442) (230.4-12) (230.-142) 

  

Total other financing sources (uses) (230.442) (230.442) (230.442) 

  

Net change in fund balance 103.908 193.008 139.743 

 

(54.165) 

Fund balance, beginning 1.61.1O1 1.-153.255 1.453.255 

  

Fund balance, ending S 1.812.1)1 )9 $ 1.647.163 $ 1.592.098 

 

(54.165) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 

-127-

 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUM1 BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

CIVIL DEFENSE FUND 

YEAR ENDED DEC'EIIBER 31. 2022  

Reven ues: 

Intergovernmental revenues: 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

 

Valiance - 
FaNurable 

(Unfavorable) 

     

Federal S 49.500 $ 49,500 $ 4/O50 $ 11,050) 

Investment earnings 1.500 1.500 7.808 

 

6.308 

Other revenues 162.000 I t,'.000 '16.357 

 

5.1357 

Total revenues 213.1)(11) '13.(Mt) 272.615 

 

5o.615 

Expenditures: 

     

General government 109.100 109.100 13.227 

 

95.873 

Public gaiety 449.327 449.327 374.985 

 

74.342 

Capital outlay - 

 

153.187 

 

(153.187) 

Total expenditures 558.427 558.427 541.399 

 

17.0'5 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (345.42-0 (345.42-0 (2(i8. 78-11 

 

76.643 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfers out i 15.032) 115.032) 115.032) 

  

Transfers in 360.746 366,746 360,746 

  

Total other financing sources (uses) 345.714 345.714 345.714 

  

Net change in fund balance 287 287 76.930 

 

76.643 

Fund balance. beginning 511.791 81-4 -“-; 833.353 

  

Fund balance, endino $ 512.078 $ 833.640 $ 910.283 $ 76.643 

See accompanym independent atulitor repot! 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUM) BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

STREET LIGHTING FUND  

YEAR ENDED DEC'E11BER 31, 2022  

 

Original 
Budget  

Final 

Budget  Actual  

Variance - 

Fallorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

Taxes        
Ad %rah:nein S 2.979.020 $ 2.979.020 $ 2.846.153 $ (132.867) 

Intel govennuental revenues 

     

State funds: 

     

Slide revenue shanng 15,000 15,000 37,0-12 

 

17,0-12 

Investment earnings 17,300 17.300 41.938 

 

24.638 

Other ievenues 2O00 2,000 5,10 

 

3,1115 

Total revenues 3.013,321) 1.013.320 1.915:13R 

 

(88.0S2) 

Expenditures: 

     

General government - - 423.171 

 

1423.171) 

Transportation 1.326.743 1.326,743 1O52,861 

 

273,882 

Capital outlay 420,000 420.000 5.(il 

 

414.199 

Total expenditures 1.746,743 1.746,743 1,481,833 

 

264,)10 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 1.266.577 1.26o.577 

  

176.828 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfeis out (496,868i (406,868) (4)6,868) 

  

Transfers ut 14,649 14.649 14.649 

  

Total other financing sources (uses) (392.210 ) (392,219 ) 1392,219) 

  

Net change in fund balance N74,358 874,358 1,051,186 

 

176,828 

Fund balance. beginning 5.567.200 5.888,O5 5.88/O25 

  

Fund halance. ending S 6.441,55 767+:7 : I 

 

7n N 

See accompanymg independent atiditors' teport 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUM) BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FIRE SERVICES FUND  

YEAR ENDED DEC'EIIBER 31, 2022  

    

Valiance - 

 

Original Final 

 

FaNurable 

 

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

    

Taxes 

Sales S 4.850.000 4.850.000 $ ti.324.601 $ 1.474.601 

Inteigovenniletual revenues 

    

Federal 

state funds. 

     

165.000 165.000 311.387 146.387 

Local 

  

50.978 50.978 

hivesunent eaninigs 6.000 6.000 15.549 9.549 

Othei reveniles 175.000 175.000 155.N04 110.1961 

Total revenues 5.196.000 5.1c/6.000 6.S58.:; 1.662:319 

Expenditures: 

    

Public safety 5.126.328 5.126.328 5.551.035 (424.707) 

Capital outlay 623.846 623.84ti 569.700 54.137 

Debt seivice: 

    

Principal 86.001 86.001 86.1,90 I 

Total expenditures 5.S36.'65 5.S36.265 6.206.83-1 (3 7(I.569) 

Excess (deficienc)•) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (6,-6/.2651 (640.265) 651..M5 1,291.750 

Other financing sources (uses): 

    

Transfers uut (626.580) (626.580) (636.247) (9.667) 

Transfeis in 

    

Total other financing sources (uses) (626.580) (626.580) (636.247) (9.667) 

Net change in fund balance (1.266.845) (1.266.845) 15.238 1.282.083 

Fund balance, beginning 610.70-' 2.728.7 15 2.728.715 

 

Fund balance, endino S (656.053) $ 1.461.870 $ 2,743.953 $ 1,282.083 

See accompanying independent auditors' leport 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHIEDULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUM) BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

CRIMINAL COURT FUND  

YEAR ENDED DEC'EIIBER 31, 2022  

Reven ues: 

Fees. sharges. and Lonunissions fiai servites 

Fines and fotfeituies 

hivesunent earnings 

Oilier revelines 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

 

Variance - 
Fas orable 

(Unfavorable) 

S 64.600 

1.520.000 

720 

60.000 

$ 64.600 

1.520.000 

720 

60.000 

$ 30.817 

1.044.238 

878 

3.804 

$ t33.783) 

(475.762) 

158 

(56.196) 

Total revenues 1.6453.20 1.645,320 1,079,737 

 

(7;05. 583) 

Expenditures: 

     

Genet al government 2.372.403 2.372.403 2,216.222 

 

(156.181) 

Capital outlay 1 5.000 25.000 18.732 

 

(6.268) 

Total expenditures 2.397.403 '397.403 2.234.954 

 

lo2.449 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (752.03) (752.083) )1.155.217) 

 

(403.13-1) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfeis in 752.100 751.100 806.732 

 

54.632 

Total other financing snurces (uses) 752.100 752.100 806. 7 32 

 

54.(32 

Net change in fund balance 

 

I (348.)85) 

 

(348.502) 

Fund balance. begiunino (1.56o) (205.456) (205.456) 

  

Fund balance, endino 5 (1.549) $ (21)5.439) $ (553.041) $ (348.502) 

See accotupanying independent auditors'tepoi I. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUM) BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

RECREATION FUND 

YEAR ENDED DEC'EIIBER 31. 2022  

    

Valiance - 

 

Original Final 

 

Fax urable 

 

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

    

Taws 

    

Ad valoiein S 1.750.150 $ 1.750.150 $ 1.684.752 $ (65.398) 

Video poker 625.000 625.000 847.834 222.834 

Intergovei mental revenues: 

    

Federal on0,000 600.000 31.86' (567.138) 

Fees. charges. and commisskes for services 47.800 47,500 55,-175 7,675 

hivestment earnings 5,000 5.000 27.265 ' 1.'65 

Cither revenues 43.870 43,870 16,75l (27,059) 

Total revenues 3.071,320 1.071,820 2.664.9O 1406.851) 

Expendilures: 

    

General government 123,7011 123,700 72.677 51.023 

Culture and recreation 2.042.109 2.042.109 1.342,478 699,63 l 

Capital outlay 1.3119,11011 1.3O,000 541.599 766.4111 

Lease financing: 

    

Principal 

  

14.144 (14.14-1) 

Interest 620 620 1,390 (770) 

Total expenditures 3.475,429 3.-175,429 1.973.2S8 1.502.141 

Excess (defieieneN of revenuoi 

Over (under) expenditures (403.609) (403.609) 691,6S1 1.095,290 

Other financing sources (uses): 

    

Transfers out (2 -‘, , ,061) (237,061) (237.061) 

 

Lease financing proceeds 

  

90,118 90,118 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

 

(237.0o1) 1-16.943) 90.118 

Net change in fund balance (640.670) (640.670) 544.'38 1.185.408 

Fund balance. beginnin£ 7.'95,970 .064.6S6 3.064.6S6 

 

Fund balance. ending S l.655,1M 121 OH w ( ,09424 w 1 I85,Iw, 

See accompanying independent auditor report 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUM1 BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

RESTORE FUND 

YEAR ENDED DEC'EIIBER 31. 2022  

Reven ues: 

Inteigovernmental rex enues: 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Valiance - 
Fax urable 

(Unfavorable) 

    

Federal 480.000 $ 480,000 $ 285,971 (194,029) 

Total revenues 430,000 48(t.1)01) 285.971 (194.029) 

Expenditures: 

    

General government 156.170 156.170 15.~4!) 140.371 

Capital outlay 323.830 323,830 159,208 164,622 

Total expenditures 430.000 480.000 175.007 304.993 

Excess (deficiencx) of revenues 

over (umler) expenditures 

  

1111.964 1111.964 

Other financing sources (uses): 

    

Transfers ul 

  

10.000 10.000 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

  

10.000 10.000 

Net change in fund balance 

  

1211.964 1211.964 

Fund balance. beginning 

 

(140,733) (140.733) 

 

Fund balance. ending 

 

f. 114(1,7.31 $ (19,769) 12(1,964 

See accompanymg independent auditors' ieport 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY C'OMPARISON SCHEDULE  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND ['HINGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

LASAFE FUNI)  

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Revenues: 

Inteigovernmental rt.\ tnues: 

Original 

Budget 

Final 

Budget Actual 

 

Valiance - 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

     

Federal 8S9.810 $ S89,810 $ 2.140,2117 $ 1.250,397 

Total revenues 839,810 S89.810 2.140.2117 1.750.397 

Expenditures: 

     

General :2ovennuent 

Capital outlay. 8S9.810 S89,810 2.393,772 

 

(1.503.)62) 

Total expenditures 889,810 S89.810 7.393.77' 

 

(1.503.962) 

Excess (deficienc) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

  

(253.565) 

 

(253.565) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfeis in 

  

181.226 

 

181.226 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

  

181.226 

 

181.226 

Net change in fund balance 

  

(72.339) 

 

(72.339) 

Fund balance, beginning (3601 (5.511) (5.511) 

  

Fund balance, ending $ (360) $ (5.511) $ (77.850) $ (72.339) 

See acconipanyulg independent auditors' repoit 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY C'OMPARISON SCHEDULE  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND ['HINGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

HURRICANE ISAAC FUND  

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Original Final 

Budget Budget  Actual  

Valiance - 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
       

Revenues: 

Inteigovernmental re\ dines: 

Federal 

Total revenues 
  $  $ $ 

               

Expenditures: 

    

Cleneral government 

 

1.103 

 

(1.103) 

Total expenditures 

 

1.103 

 

(1.103) 

Excess (deficienc)) of revenues 

UN er (under) expentlitures 

 

(1.103) 

 

(1.103) 

Net change in fund balance 

 

(1.103) 

 

(1.103) 

Fund balance, beginning (40S.072.) ( 40S.072.) 

  

Fund balance, ending $ (408.072) $ (409.175) $ ( 1.103) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEI)ULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND AC I UAL 

HURRICANE ISAAC CDBC FUND 

YEAR ENDED DEC'EIIBER 31. 2022  

 

Original Final 

Bud£et Budget  Actual  

Variance - 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Federal        
Other revenues 

Tutal revenues 

 

63.187 

 

6S.187 

 

68.187 

 

68.187 

Expenditures: 

    

Public works 

    

Tolal expenditures 

    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

oVer (under) expenditure, 

 

68.187 

 

68.187 

Net change in fund balauce 

 

63.137 

 

(iS.137 

Fund balance, beginning (2.100) (108.602) ( 108.602) 

  

Fund balance. ending $ 12.101)) $ ( I 08.o02) $ { lo 11:s) s, r)s.187 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEI)ULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUM) BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

LCDBG - CV PUBLIC FACILITIES FUND  

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental revenues 

 

Original 
Bud£et 

Final 
Budget 

 

Actual 

 

Variance - 
FaN orable 

(Unfavorable) 

       

Federal b 1.563 $ 1.5(13 $ 

 

5 11.563) 

Total revenue, 

 

1.563 1.563 

   

11.563) 

Expenditures: 

       

General government 

    

591 

 

(592) 

Capital outlay 

    

' 1.050 

 

(22.050) 

Total expenditures 

    

22.642 

 

(22.642) 

Excess (deficiency) uf revenues 

uver (under) expendllures 

 

1.563 1.563 

 

(22.642) 

 

(24.205) 

Net change in fund balance 

 

1.563 1.563 

 

(22.642) 

 

(24.205) 

Fund balance, beginning 

       

Fund balance, ending 

 

1.5 

    

(11.2(h) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON S(:'HEDULE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUM) BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

ANIMAL SHELTER FUND 

YEAR ENDED DEC'E11BER 31. 2022  

Revenues: 

Taxes 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

 

Valiance - 
Fallorable 

(Unfavorable) 

     

Ad valorem S 583.300 $ 583.300 $ 559.680 $ (23.620) 

Fees. charges. and conmussions foi services 102.150 102.150 50.840 

 

(51.310) 

Investment earnings 1.000 1.0(N) N.495 

 

7.495 

Other revenues 13,05o 13.050 -1.666 

 

(8.384) 

Total revenues 60(O00 699.500 623.681 

 

(75.N19) 

Expenditures: 

     

General government 

  

14.472 

 

(14.472) 

Public gaiety 544.896 544.896 401.695 

 

143.201 

Capital outlay 140.000 140.000 

  

140.000 

Lease financing: 

     

Principal 

  

7.384 

 

(7.384) 

Interest St.10 8(M 

  

800 

Total expenditures 685.696 685.696 473.551 

 

262.145 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 13.804 13.804 200.130 

 

186,326 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfers out 114.139) 114.139) (14.139) 

  

Total other financing sources (uses) (14.139) (14.139) (14.139) 

  

Net change in fund balance (335) (335) 185.991 

 

186.326 

Fund balance, beginning 669.385 978.729 978.729 

  

Fund balance, ending S 669.050 $ 978.394 $ 1.164.720 $ 186.326 

See accompanyinp independent auditors' repot! 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY C'OMPARISON SCHEDULE  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND ['HINGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GOMESA FUND 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Revenues: 

Inteigovernmental reN times: 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

 

Valiance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

     

State ievenue shale 1.020.000 $ 1.020,000 $ 35,791 $ (981,209) 

Investment earnings 3,0(H) 3.0(H) 84.075 

 

81.075 

Total revenues 1.023.000 1.023,000 112,866 

 

(90(1,134) 

Expenditures: 

     

Gelieral govenunelit 

  

4,000 

 

(4,000) 

Capital outlay 1.023,000 1.023.000 42.968 

 

980.032 

Total expenditures 1.023.000 1.023,000 46,968 

 

976,032 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

  

75.898 

 

75.898 

Net change in fund balance 

  

75.898 

 

75.898 

Fund balance. beginning 1.64.8,513 1.525.686 1.525.6S6 

  

Fund balance, ending $ 1,648,513 $ 1.525.686 $ 1.601.5S,4 $ 75.898 

See accompanying independent atiditors' report. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA  

BUDGETARY C'OMPARISON SCHEDULE  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND ['HINGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES FUND  

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022  

Revenues: 
lino L;overnmenial revemies 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

 

Valiance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

     

Federal $ 536,365 $ 536.365 $ 195.9n' $ (240.4(j3) 

Invesuneut eanungs 1.030 1.030 4.885 

 

3.855 

Other revenues 2,000 2,000 10,232 

 

8,232 

Total revenues 539,395 539,395 311,010 

 

(228,376) 

Expenditures: 

     

Cienel al government 357,836 357.836 148.406 

 

209.430 

Health ,illd welfare 304,21.)9 304,299 257,446 

 

46,853 

Total expenditures 662,135 662,135 405,852 

 

256,283 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (122.740) (122.740) (94.833) 

 

27.907 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Transfers in )23,000 123,1)(10 123,000 

  

Total other financing sources (uses) 123.000 123,1)(11) 123,000 

  

Net change in fund balance 260 260 28.167 

 

27.907 

Fund balance, beginning 367,635 517,410 517,410 

  

Fund balance, ending, S 367,895 $ 517,671) $ 545,577 $ 27,907 

See accompanyinF illdepelident auditors'iepoit. 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the St. John the Baptist Parish Councirs comprehensive annual financial report presents 

detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements. note 
disclosures and required supplementary information says about the Parish's overall fmancial health. 

Contents Schedules 

Financial .frends l - 4 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 

understand how the Parish's tinancial performance and well-being 

have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity _ 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 
Parish's inost significant local revenue source, the sales tax, as well as 

the property tax 

  

Debt Capacit 10 - 14 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 

affordability of the Pansh's current levels of outstanding  debt and the 

city's abiht to issue additional debt in the future. 

  

Demographic and Ecnnomic Infoirmation 1 - (.1 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help 
the reader understand the environment within which the Parish's 

financial activities take place. 

  

Operating Information 17 - 19 

These schedules contain service and infrastnicture data to help the 

reader understand how the information in the Pansh's financial report 
relates to the services the Parish provides and the activities it 

performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 

annual financial reports fin-  the relevant year. 

Note: Statistical information regarding sales tax revenue is limited hecause a govenunental agency 

separate from the St. John the Baptist Pansh Council collects the Parish's sales tax and much of the 
information is of a confidential nature 
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ST. JOEL\ THE BAPTIST PARISH C OUNC IL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE I • • NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
LAST IEV FISCAL YEARS 
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ST. JOILN THE BAPTIST PARISH COt'NCIL 
LAPLACE, LM'ISIANA 

SCHEDI ILE 2 -- CHANCES IN NET POSITION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
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ST. JOILN THE BAPTIST PARISH COt'NCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDI ILE 2 -- CHANCES IN NET POSITION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 3 - Ft:ND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 4 -- CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
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Parishwide Sales Tax 5.25% 

I) 

2.25% 

2.50%3 
  

ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 5 -- DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING 

SALES TAX RATES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

Parish 

Direct 

Rate (1) 

Overlapping Rates 

St. John the Baptist 

Parish School Board 

St. John the Baptist 

Parish Sheriffs Office 

2013 2.25% 2.25% 0.25% 

2014 2.25% 2.25% 0.25% 

2015 2.25% 2.25% 0.50% 

2016 2.25% 2.25% 0.50% 

2017 2.25% 2.50% 0.50% 

2018 2.25% 2.50% 0.50% 

2019 2.25% 2.50% 0.50% 

2020 2.25% 2.50% 0.50% 

2021 2.25% 2.50% 0.50% 

2022 2.25% 2.50% 0.50% 

NOTES: The St. John the Baptist Parish School Board, a separate entity, collects five and one fourth 
percent in sales and use tax. Two and one-quarter percent of the taxes collected are remitted to the 
Parish Council. One-half percent of the taxes collected are remitted to the Sheriffs department. 
The School Board's costs of collecting the funds are shared proportionally by the Parish Council, 
Sheriffs Department and the School Board. 

Source: St. John the Baptist Parish Finance Department. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 6 -- ASSESSED AND ESTLMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 

Year 

 

Real 

Estate 

Other 

Propert7. 

 

Total 

Assessments 

Less: 

Tax Exempt 

Real Propert 

Tidal Taxable 

Assessed 

Value 

Total 

Direct 

Tax Rate 

 

Lstiinated 

Actual 

Fa xable Value 

Value as a 

Percentage of 

.iictual Value 

2.01:1 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

202 l 

2022 

I 187.963 803 

190 057.599 

l90.634 898 

193 176.606 

193 777.652 

197.387 ()97 

199 954.289 

215.761 814 

213 075.620 

229.811 318 

S 34832(1,7(17 

341,282.054 

344.669,376 

318,"70.155 

308,283.695 

338.464.718 

337,187.973 

641.612.720 

644,014.337 

6'5.955.977 

t 536 284.510 

531.339 653 

535 304.174 

511.446 861 

502.061 347 

535 852.715 

537.142 262 

857 374.534 

857.089 957 

855 767.295 

t 84.5611,433 

84,560.433 

84.172,237 

84,2nn.ln2 

84,680.707 

85.142.016 

82,520.3n9 

84 333 665 

84,186.311 

84.951.420 

t 451 724.077 

446.77” 220 

451 132.037 

427.246 759 

417.380 640 

450 710.699 

454.621 953 

773 040.869 

772.903 646 

770 815.875 

.38.76 

38.76 

38.76 

38.76 

45.76 

45.76 

45 76 

45.76 

45 76 

45.76 

t 3 698.513 862 

3.697 561.955 

3 691.753 614 

3.527 219.731 

3.462 492.048 

3695.535 896 

3.704 4'9.323 

5 912.927 709 

5.910 965.109 

5 901.843 303 

14.5ngo 

14.370.0 

14.5ngo 

14.5n°, 

14.5n.).., 

14.50°., 

14 S00.0 

14.5noo 

14 S00.0 

14.5(1°0 

Source: St. John the Baptist Parish Assessor's Office 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 7 - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Rate per $1(10 of Assessed Value) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 

Year 

St. John the Baptist Pamh ("mined 

 

Overlapping Rate 

 

Total 

Direct & 

Overlapping 

Rates 

St John the Baptist ish School Board 

Operating 

Mdlage 

Debt 

Service 

Millage 

Total 

Parish 

Millage 

Opel ating 

Millage 

Debt 

Service 

Millage 

Total 

Parish 

Millage 

2013 26 26 12 50 7, 76 21 31 i OH 39 31 78 07 

2014 26 26 12.50 38 76 29 31 I0 00 39 31 7$ 07 

2015 26 26 12 5() 38 76 29 31 I 0 00 39 31 78 07 

2016 26 26 12.50 38 76 29 31 I() 00 39 31 78 07 

2017 33 76 12 50 -15 76 29 31 lo 0o 39 31 1v5 07 

2018 33 26 12 50 45 76 29 31 10 00 39 31 85 (17 

2019 33 26 12.50 -15 76 29 31 10 (10 39 31 85 07 

2020 33 26 1 7.50 45 76 79 31 1O 00 39 31 85 07 

2021 33 26 1'.5o 45 76 79 31 I() o() 39 31 85 07 

2022 33 26 12.50 -15 76 29 31 i 0 00 39 31 85 07 

Sources: St. John the Baplist Palish Finance Department. St. John the Baptist Pansh 

School Boaid Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
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ST-JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 8 - PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(Unaudited) 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2013 

Taxpaser  

Percentage of Percentage or 

Taxable T OW Palish Iasahlr Total Parish 

Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable 

Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value              

Marallimi Petroleum. C,i S 44s.5"i.56 4 1 85 ;;74,, 16 2[0.388.620 1 73 01'. 

Entergy Louisiana Inc 15.106.15(1 ' , 910 0 7.254.140 5 2 53°‘ 

Denka Peilbnnance Elastics 11.117.399 3 2.14% 6,815.751 8 2 38% 

Nalcn Clienikal Company 8.961.553 4 1 73% - .088.231 7 2 46% 

Louisiana Machinery Company 7.285.558 S 

   

li 0W.. 

Evonik Superabsorber. LLC 6.o5i.219 is 

4

22

(

:

::

:

: 

il

l 

  

0 0a% 

Althos Energy Cmporation 6.445.340 

    

0 00% 

DuPont SpeLialiy Products 6.355.843 F 1 22% 

  

0 0a% 

An Products & Chemkals 5.874.683 9 1 12% 

  

0 0a% 

Cartiill Iminpor mod s.634 .601 10 i 21.507.480 

 

7 % 46 

E I Dupont Denemours & Co  

  

i i 011(9:: 7.196,372 o 2 50% 

Pen Maritime, Inc 

  

a 0n% 5.919 800 9 -I 060, 

Ettjet. InL. 

  

() 

) 

7.593.927 4 2 6-I% 

Bengal Pipehne Company 

  

l ol  (°I : 0. ) 5.1 74 020 10 1 Sa% 

Aicelomittal Laplace. LLC 

  

a 0n% 9.156 8'3 3 3 17% 

 

S 519.014 

 

too of )0 28S.00-  214 

 

00°,, 

source SI John the Baptist Pansh Assessors Office. 



ST. J()HN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 9 -- PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unatidtteql) 

 

Taxes Levied 

Collected tor Adjusted) within the 

Fiscal Year of the l.ey 

 

.1 coal Collections to Date 

Fistal for the 

 

Percentage Collections in 

 

Percenta£e 

Year Fkcal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years Amount of Levy 

2013 4. 13.254.871 Nig Available Not Available Not Available S 1).771.i )i 96.35°.) 

2014 12.877.771 Not Available Not Available Nig Available 12.603.800 97  8 7‘?., 

'015 12.085.305 Not Avaihible Not Available Not Available 12.800.358 99 34% 

2016 12.062.376 Not Available Not Available Not Available 11.O6.004 99 3Pii 

2017 14.466.828 Not Available Not Available Not Available 14.456.600 99.93°.) 

2018 16.103.767 Not Amiable Not Available Nig Available 16.082.187 99 ICI* 

2010 16.690.100 Nol Avaihible Not Available Nig Available 16.605.556 99 4910 

>0)0 26.148.867 Not Available Not Available Not Available 25.O1.412 99 36°0 

2021 26.532.678 Not Available Not Available Not Available 26.519.351 99.95% 

)0)) 27.777.021 Not Available Not Available Not Available 6.555.753 23 60% 

S%airce: St. John the Baptist Parish Shetitrs Office. 
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ST. JOILN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 10 -- RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
LAST TEN FISCAL. YEARS 

muumedl 

I Nral 

',Al 

   

(...meniuneulnl 

    

Bu, iut,s -Type 
AcUvlUts 

Total 
Petunia'', 

Government 

Percentage 
of Personal 
lth note f 13 

Pei 
I ?Tit?, III 

PribIrr 

Imp! 0, I.  inr111 

BOLIrl,  

 

i.,rirri al ( ertifics les 
lthlIZ,I1,11 of 

Birrifi`, ludrbtr(Iness 
RCN ruff 

B..uds 

l Lrhincr 

r111,11J , r 

(ThIrptrour 

PI orni..r,r 

\al, Luaus Prruntout 
R in roue 

fi..nils 
Prornisson 
Notes'Lotins 

2013 S 17  0:65,r)(JU S 4,Q0n.orin 1 1.393 out) I- 4 43.4.00u S I136.o37 1 .402.4.15 1 500 625 1 4 480,000 S 156.476 1 71.6b0 165 ".50'' i, 1.o43 

2.014 14 0753100 

 

56.48tono 967  000 3 '9)3310u 684.520 

 

902.315 4.14 66" 4 215,00ti h30.)166 

 

65.011 590 9.11'i, 1./43 

2015 14 210,000 

 

6t..o85.000 523 out/ 5 0..3314m 525.ol4 

 

933.190 390 031 3 060.nflu 1.7 14.166 

 

94.944 Ul0 9.55"i, .:.176 

2016 l .4 5%3nm 

 

64M 5.0ro 362 out) 5 nif.nix, 2-15.115 

 

.:191.1bo 32- 2111 3 r.95.rlflu 2,012,225 

 

60.974 7.44 9.10'i, 2.062 

2.01" 12 "8.15,000 

 

50.i l rl.Orin 194 tiu0 3 0933100 555.165 

 

4430.lbo :64 405 3 430.n4t) 1,035.533 

 

63.I00 260 .i.-10°'.:. I .II ..i 

2016 11 060,000 

 

54.175.0110 1,15 OW 2 0..O.n(m 344.363 

 

76". l ho :U1 59: 3 I6O.rIqu 1.1145.086 

 

75.550 12" 7.467 ', i.- 5ti 

2010 11 135,000 

 

40.o25.01111 71 out/ 2 505.nOU 256.272 

 

734.1ho 13b 770 2 RsO.r)(x) Lo7n.233 

 

60.31' 470 6.2-1°'‘. i .018 

2020 6,3A0,000 

 

44.025,000 

 

2,120,000 l72.032 

 

924 000 66.8 645 .1.596,flou 4.O.22.ru 

 

63 96fs 406 5 01.; 8 1.5116 

2621 T.5f.4).010 

 

.I, ()Avow 

 

1.7:0.010 So 090 

 

gsi sino '90,(r. 2.3(16.uilo '.1- 4 862 

 

66,512,02 5 30. 1 43E 

2622 6.7t-o.oilo 

 

to v vow.) 

 

31.316.01n 

  

7"7.O00 lfill.1.1. 2.000.000 , ,lis2 204 

 

nn.sins.oi7 5 luw. 2 4Ij4 

Notc Deladi tegardnitt the Pansh's “utstanflum debt can be found m the notes to the financial stalemeots 

i 11 See Svhcdule I 5 lb] per.soluil ulaotlte UId popillmwo.b.ta. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COLTNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 11 -- RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BOND DEBT OUTSTANDING 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unatklited) 

General Bonded Debt outstanding Percentage of 

t;eneral Debt Sers ice Net General Estimated Actual 

Fiscal Obligation Monies Oblioation Bowls Taxable Value Per 

1 ear Bonds Available Outstanding of Property (1) Capila (2) 

2013 $ 43.300.000 $ 12.386,632 S 30.913.368 0 841,, 706 41 

2014 58.486.600 14.744.069 43.735,931 1.181, 999.79 

2015 66.685.0011 14.125.296 52.559,704 1 42°E, 1.204 78 

2016 63.885.000 12.385,977 51.499.023 1 46",., 1.180 33 

2017 59.116.600 10.770.195 48.339,865 1.4tr, 1.112.77 

2018 54,175.000 9.645.210 44,529,790 1 20°o 1.031 16 

2019 49.625.000 7.787,315 41.837.685 l 1 31... 976 67 

"10'0 .14.925.600 10.989.939 33.935,061 0.57", 798.96 

2021 40,085,00ti 15.006.303 25.078,692 (i 42% 595 78 

2022 50.075.000 N.145,000 41.930.000 0 7 l'?. 1.051 83 

Note: Details regarding the Parish's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial ,:tatements 

(1) See Schedule 8 for property value data 

(2) Population data can be found in Schedule 15. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 12 - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

AS OF DECEMBER 31. 2022 
(Unaudited) 

Governmental l  

Estimated 

Estimated Share of 

Debt Percentage Overlapping 

Oulktanding Applicable (1) Debt        

Direct: 

St John the Baptist Parish 

     

General Obligation Bonds (1) ¶ 50,075,000 100% $ 50.075.000 

Public Improvement Bonds 

 

6,780,000 100% 

 

6.75(0(l0 

Revenue Bonds 

 

31.310,000 100% 

 

31.310.000 

Promissory Notesloans 

 

777.000 10(i°0 

 

777.000 

Bond Piemiums 

 

1.504A96 100% 

 

L594,496 

Finance Punthase Obligations 

  

100% 

  

Financing Leases 

 

674,843 100% 

 

67-1 8-13 

  

91.211,339 

  

91 211 1-O, 

Overlapping: 

     

St John the Baptist Parish School Board i 2) 

 

92A04.232 100% 

 

92.494.23' 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debi ¶ 183.705,571 

  

183,705571 

(1) All Genetal Obligation Bonds ate secured by Ad Valorem taxes. 

(2) Source: St. John the Baptist Palish School Board .Annual Financial Report a. ofJune 30. 2022. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDt'LE 13 - LEGAL DEBr MARGIN INFORMATION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(I.Inauelstesil 

Fisesd Year 

101, 2014 1015 2ulo :01- 201II 2u14 :0:0 21,21 202: 

Dan Lunn 

Tutd ues slelm et41.44ale so bass  

S GOY 5N,  125.uatilr0 s tr..e.6.4vA 
4z.s5u 

S 

51 40..  

1- 4 

h' 

S 1. is. 

L••••••• 11 1z"•A14 

:au.11h1.4h5 
• -S.A.) 

$ I1.11”1, I I Olt 

Level Jet.,  utwpn % It$ :4... 116 S 1 c S I L 'V; 1-. S ;" S I i 10- ZA,:,  I RI Pa; S 274.402.7v3 S ”'• 

Tutd ues sleht evrlweble the hum 
as paaeni*ee debt luta sem%          :3 -4', L2.2s, ,                           

I r=<I Delo' Nlartin alrularian fnt fiscal Near 202i• 

Assessed salue 

Delx luso iss..esAal %slue 

Dedsm Amami of Acts so &le lot& 

Lepl 364 maps 

14tee Leeway* P. t 39 402 ilkorrs suassanst4 nishe asse.sulseluatua foe Issaskul debt use esey nOg jalltl"CM .V"; alive soca assessed value fur ell mar.. 

 

2".506.$43 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 14 - PLEDGED-REVENUE C'OVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Fiscsil 

Year 

  

Sales Tax and Revenue Bonds 

 

Sales Tax 

Collections 

 

Debt Service 

Coverage 

 

Principal Interest 

2013 $ 20.891.882 s 737.000 S 101.5o8 11. 76 

2014 19.642.496 

 

731.000 171.460 21.77 

2015 24,290,875 

 

770,000 140,007 , 6.69 

2016 '1.195.703 

 

916.000 177.743 19., 9 

2017 21.610.483 

 

1.014.000 140.010 18.73 

2018 21.102.762 

 

1.063.000 100.070 18.14 

2019 26393.581 

 

425.000 72.185 53.09 

'WO 22.128.247 

 

385.000 57.216 50.04 

2021 24,566,908 

 

6911,000 118,596 30.34 

2022 27,520,042 

 

710,000 101,377 33.9' 

NOTES: Details regarding the Parish's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the 

financial statements. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 15 - DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

   

(1) 

 

(2) 

Fiscal (1) Personal Per Capita 

 

Unemplt iyment 

Year Population lncome Personal Income 

 

Rate 

'Mr; 43.761 $ 945 Al2.644 $ 21,604 * 6.1°0 

2014 43.745 933.299.575 1 1.335 * 7.6° b 

2015 43.626 994.018.410 22.785 * 6.7, o 

2010 43.631 988.678.460 11.660 * 6.3". o 

'n17 43,441 989.368.775 22,775 

 

6.1° O 

")n 1 -13,184 1.im9.641.9'll 23.380 .4. 5 .5u 0 

?III 42.837 1.111.277.454 75.94' 

 

6.Ir 0 

2020 42.477 1.101.938,334 25.942 * 6.0'0 

2021 42.094 1.123.194.202 26.083 * 6.1"0 

2022 39.864 L955.129.880 49.045 * 4.70-0 

( l ) Source Information obtained front the Census Bureau's Annual Estimates 

U.S. Census Bureau. 

(2) Source. Intbnnation obtained from the FRED system at stlotusfed.org. 

* Latest information availahle 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 

LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 16 -- PRINCIPAL ENIPLOYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

(Unaudited) 

  

20'1 

  

2013 

   

°4 of Total 

St John 

Parish 

  

°o of Total 

SI. John 

Parish 

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Hls Employment 

St John Parish School Board 919 1 26.94°0 1.000 

 

21.46% 

Marathon Petroleum 921 , 27 000 0 1.760 I 37.77% 

St John Pansh 301 -4 8.82% 210 6 4 51°4 

Wahnan 298 4 8.74% 

  

o 00"o 

Della 1 17 5 6.65% 

  

0 (Jo% 

DuPont 1s6 6 5.45°0 4'5 4 9 12% 

Nalco chemical 149 7 4.3ro 273 5 5 86% 

Pinnacle Polymeis 144 8 J.?1Oo 120 10 / 58° 

Cargill 118 y 3.46% 134 8 2 S8% 

Dreging Supply 

  

0.00% 130 

 

2 79% 

Louisiana Machinery 148 10 4.3.Vo 156 7 3 35% 

ArcelorMittal Sleel 

  

0.00% 452 3 9 70°4 

TOTAL 3.411 

 

100 00% 4.660 

 

100.00°D 

Source 
St John the Baptist Parish Economic Development Department 
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ST. JOIEN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE 17 -- FULL-T1ME EQUIVALENT PARISH GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FILTICTI0N:PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

t Unaudited) 

FunctionTrugram 2013 2014 2015 

Full-time Equivalent Employees as or December 31, 

2016 2017 2G18 2019 2020 2021 2022 

General government 11 77 164 S4 1•2 52 S6 68 69 h 

Public safety 45 43 thi 52 46 46 46 46 46 45 

Pub& works 150 159 14' 149 151 150 148 150 129 135 

Health and A elfare 2 

 

Z 2 2 2 2 .. 1 1 

Culture anti imieatten 5 II ii 9 9 9 8 

 

. i 11 

Shwellaneotts 1.3 In 21 1 4 20 20 20 19 19 21 

Total :06 :Q9 311 311 310 309 310 312 2,03 301 

S.nuse St John Palish Finance Deparimeui 

- - 



     

ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE IS -- OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

ilL'aub Wed) 
      

          Flwal Year        
Function  2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2015 2019 2020 2021 2022                     

Fire 

Einercency reopon.rs 1 302 l 301 1 612 1 6' 1 i 7,30 1 7' I I 520 I 053 2 337 2 145 

Frrer. extinct lulled i 3s 204 143 124 1% 209 10' 126 1 4: 218 

Peta, Ddlection 

Refuse3.olle, led (tons i,er day.i Not At:W.1:4e Nol Available Not "Wadab)e Not "Wadable Not "Wadable Not Available Nol "Wadable Not "Wadable Not "Wadable Not Avadal de 

Recyclablec collected r P•as per day) Not Avadable Not Available Not Available blot Available Not Available Not Available hot Available Not Available Not Available Not Available 

Water 

New sonnectkuio 64 40 G6 I'S 140 G5 G6 O I.IGS I.I0S 

Water inaui breaks zo oo CI Su At A I ....1 ...t.: 71 49 

Aseraire daily ..trusumption 

(thou:mils of Mika 4.1 4.2..2 7.020 4.0St 73 40 (1406 (064 (1 43 7.203 (474 4.4sLt 

Peak daily consumption 

idhoi Kind, or Aallanl4i Not At .uloble Noi Available Not Available Not Al:tillable Not Al:tillable Not Arifilabbe Not Al:tillable Not Al:tillable Not Available Not Available 

Other public s,o4ks 

Potholes repaired 125 l I 2 it,/ 0o 4- t 4 1.6 274 100 

Health aad welfare 

Children Itcl VIA SWUM lbod progam Not As ailoble Not Av ulable 1.241 1.20o I .0..:4 .4/7". Lh0u 1.91: 9A9 

Allabldillace lotal resp,nors Not Mailabk Not Available Nol Ars:liable Not Ars:liable 5 527 h 321 h 007 0 004 5 000 0 2'1 

Anthill aih.e loud titillation:, Nol Auilable Not As ulable Vol Available Nill Available 4.503 (000 A:2‘ 9 ‘ .9A3 6.121 4.54.: 

UHEAP u‘sistance Rol. ided Not Available Not Available Not Available 94-1 blA 903 6112 93-1 1 765 2 701 

ciutitre .Ulallecruttan 

Youth enrolled ill sports pro21311E Not Asailable Not Available Not Mailable Not Mailable 5in 4t5 360 361 RA 

WttcleVealrf 

Averarre daily sewage treatment 

iflior winds ol cilllons I sm - 7,5,:u 7.17t ( 770 7.166 A.304 (541 4.467 4.5..: I 4.156 

Stilltte St. John the Baptist Pam!, Finance and NNW- Safety Department,  

Notes Indicamrs are nor or rur the genetal government function. New k.anneolorlic are for new cruotniction only. 
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ST. JOED: THE BAPTIST PARISH ( OUNC IL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

  

SCHEDULE 19 CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUN!: TION 
LAST TEN FlsCAL YEAR% 

ttimissur.h 

mai 'fear 

    

21113 21114 2915 2119 101" 2016 

 

!ON 2921 2121 

17 17 1? 17 17 II 11 1: I: 17 
+7 s: NZ 3: 46 4 49 IS 4. 39 

Nat asadabl. Nat &global. NM rubble Y4.4 asaiabl. : 44 :9.1 2.4 :fa :91 1.704 

 

7 494 .?.1: I : i:1 : , 71 !.i21 2.5:1 : ,.? I Z.:04 : lb& 
Na &salable Na &salable Ha la amiable NO ualabl- .1 430 4 4N1 4.134' 4 430 109 4.414, 

:10 :10 :4 :30 7/.3 :61 ?..3 :I.; Ao, :0•3 

11 II 11 11 I) I1 li le 1 i 13 

Koi &salable Ka &salable Noa in. &table Not &salable 409 406 Ha 401 NH 1.10* 
I I 

 

7 

  

7 7 7 If 
ISI Ilb 

 

117 474 l 7! 1 r 177 I " l " 
MN avaeleble MN avaeleble fla Ihilbtle I.4.. &sabot. 3.6d0 4 64,. 94.0 0  .4.0 ',. 660 14.404! 

Sam. ••;, hba me Baptist Pena Fruxe au! Pobb< D.faroneass 

Nole. Ind.r.eat a* not IR4lirle la ib• pearls! po..nlotal haar.,01 

f wre 
Nauss lAt use; 
Reefs el'evarearia 

Wafer 
Woes ILURY fades; 
I ay Wawa 
Stance <spoon 

ads...gawk of rliblUI 
Ibbei palm wale. 

Slatew eladesi 

Hailhoirt Iledeel f4ae oinrd f4ae oinrd Suae ^sea *we ..ww4I Saar ottani buv rased tiCeff ~red State called 6as,  &wised Seme < awql 
Smarr Sate ineird Same mead VW, ...an: Saar owing sw• ...word Saar award Va. OPURIl ...,,rie  onntd. saw ..ssars: Saar often( 
iatelllit. Som. +.•a•-d Slaw +.•a•-d Sae. amsed *ate .3*ve4 Sate eased bar- rased 74Ut , veR•J Ude omied Say &wised *ate .3*ve4 
1 abak opal. Sam Ava-d Sire Ava-41 auk embed iota ..w&e.I Suit cooed Say award *re < agesJ Sate wawa Nuak embed iota ..w&e.I 

Health as4 *Mime h.' an Masa h.' an athIsle No osalabk Nei vs4tabir Nos &suable bka 4..ftlabl• th4 ir...1614e Pk. &swab.. No nal&bk Nei avabbir 
Cuba- aal rot rearA 

Padu 
%% awlmer 

Samar;  NJ Alm leXely blillet4 
Iteamsem pars 
Lew. h* OMNI. 

Tamara tape. IR 



SPE(:IAL REPORTS OF (:ERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND OTHER 
SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY GOERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND 

UNIFORNI GUIDANCE 



11 1 P&N 
Postlethwaite &Netterville 

30th F€oor, Energy Centre. 1100 Poydras Street — New €7rleans, Lo, 70163 
One Galieria Blvd., Suite 2100 — Metairie, LA 70001 

504-837-5990 Phone — 504-834-3609 Fax —  pFiC Tta 

.4 Professional Accounling Coiporation 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable President and Members 
of the Council 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
LaPlace, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the St. John the Baptist Parish Council (the Parish), as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Parish's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated September 29, 2023. Our 
report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the aggregate discretely 
presented component unit, St. John the Baptist Parish Library, as described in our report on the Parish's 
financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control 
over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Parish's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Post€ethwaite & Netterville 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. We identified a certain deficiency in internal control, described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-001 that we consider to be a 
significant deficiency. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Parish's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of 
noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and 
which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, noted as item 2022-001. 

St, John the Baptist Parish Council's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Parish's response to 
findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
The Parish's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

4itawaid, 
Metairie, Louisiana 
September 29, 2023 
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Postlethwaite &Netterville 

30th Floor, Energy Centre, 1100 Poyðras Street — New Orleans, LA 70163 
One Galleria Blvd., Suite 2100 — Metairie, LA 70001 

504-837-5990 Phone — 504-834-3609 Fax — pncpa.corn 

A Professiona/ Accounting Colporation 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

The Honorable President and Members 
of the Council 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
LaPlace, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited St. John the Baptist Parish, State of Louisiana's (the Parish) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on the Parish's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2022. The 
Parish's major federal programs are identified in the sumrnary of auditors' results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Parish, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended 
December 31, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section 
of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Parish and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Parish's compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Parish's federal 
programs. 
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Postlethwaite & Netterville 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Parish's 
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material 
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher 
than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the 
Parish's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding the Parish's noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Parish's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to be 
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as item 2022-002. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified 
with respect to this matter. 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Parish's response to 
the noncompliance findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. The Parish's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
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PastLethwaite & Netterville 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. However, as discussed below, we did identify a certain deficiency in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the 
deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as item 2022-02 to be a significant deficiency. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Parish's response to 
the internal control over compliance finding identified in our compliance audit described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Parish's response was not subjected to the other auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

P6016,thias 
Metairie, Louisiana 
September 29, 2023 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanyine Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant 
activity of St. John the Baptist Parish Council (the Parish) under programs of the federal government for the 
year ended December 31. 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented on the modified accrual basis 
and in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. UnifOrm 
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uni form 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the Parish, it is not intended to and does 
not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash tlows of the Parish. 

NOTE B - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accornpanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting, in accordance with generally accepted accountine principles, which is described in Note 1 to the 
Parish's basic financial statements for the year ended December 31. 2022. 

NOTE C - DE MINIMUS COST RATE 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council did not elect to use the 1(1 percent de minimus indlrect cost rate as allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance. 

NOTE D - RECONCILIATION TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Reconciliation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) to the Financial Statements 

Federal assistance expended as reported of Schedule of Expenditures ot Federal Awards 
Less: loan proceeds recorded on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revohing Funds 
Less: differences due to timing of federal receipts for federal expenditures incurred 
Total federal arants revenues 
Federal grants revenues as reported on: 

All Governmental Fund Types - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances 

All Proprietary Fund Types — Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Net Position 

$ 16.954.480 

(92,227) 
833.640 

S 17,695,893 

S 17,628,726 

67.167 
S 17,695.893 

NOTE E - AMOUNTS PASSED THROUGH TO SUBRECIPIENTS 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council did not pass-through Federal funding to subrecipients. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

A. Summary of Auditors' Results 

Fmancial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: UnmodOed 

• Material weaknesstes) identitied? yes x no 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are 

not considered to he material weaknesses? x  yes none reported 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? X Ves nO 

Federal Aiiyards 

Internal control over rnajor programs:     

• Material weakness(es) identified? yes x no 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? x  yes none reported 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major proarams: UnmodOed 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 
§200.516(a)? x  ves no 

Identification of major programs. 

Name of Federal Proilram or Cluster Federal Assistance Listing Numbei  

Disaster Grants — Public Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disaster) 97.036 

CDBG Disaster Recovery Grants C'Iuster 14.272 

• The threshold for distinguishing types A & B programs was program expenditures exceeding 
$750,000. 

• The St. John the Baptist Parish Council did not qualify as a low-risk auditee. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

B. Findings — Financial Statement Audit 

2022-001 Local Government Budget Act 

Criteria: Louisiana Revised Statute 38:1311 requires the governrnental entity to revise its budget when 
total revenues or expenditures and other sources or uses phis projected revenues or expenditures and 
other sources or uses for the remainder of the year, within a fund. are failing to meet total hudgeted 
revenues or expenditures and other sources or uses unfavorably by five percent or more. 

Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1305 requires governrnents to prepare and adopt a comprehensive budget 
presenting a complete financial plan each fiscal year for the General Fund and each Special Revenue 
Fund. 

Cominion -  Based on the last budget adopted by the Parish prior to the end if its fiscal year, the Sales Tax 
District Fund. Road and Bridges Fund, and American Recovery Plan Fund had unfavorable budget 
variations. 

The Parish did not prepare and adopt a comprehensiv e budeet for the Hurricane IDA Fund, which is a 
special revenue fund. 

Cause. Based upon prior practice, the Parish adopted its final amended hudget after the fiscal year end 
which adjusted for the unfavorable variances. 

The Parish rnay not be aware that the budeet law requirement was applicable to the fund. 

£ffect: The Parish is not in compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Budget Act. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish begin to adopt budget amendments for any funds with 
unfavorable ariances of 5% or more prior to the end of the tiscal year. 

teiew o J . Responsible Qfficial. Management believes that this finding is this audit firm's interpretation of 
the Louisiana Revised Statute as there are no written laws setting out when you must amend the final 
budget Additionally, the Parish has remained consistent with their budget adoption practices over the 
past fifteen (15) plus years and multiple auditing firms during those years have approved the Parish's 
practice o f adopting final budgeted figures shortly after the calendar vear had closed. Mana2ement is of 
the belief that the Parish's usual and customary modus operandi was acting in accordance with the 
Parish's Home Rule Charter. which does allow for budget amendments to occur afier the calendar year 
end. Accordingly, the customary year end hudget after the close of the year had been prepared and 
adopted. which had brought a11 budgeted funds within the 5% threshold. 

Additionally, this finding was broueht forth to the Parish's attention with the issuance oldie 2021 audit 
report, which was dated March 31, 2022. As the Parish was not made aware of this audit firm's 
interpretation of the Louisiana Revised Statute until after the close of the 2022 calendar year, the Parish 
was unahle to rectify this situation for 2022. Going forward. the Parish will amend the budget prior to 
the close of the year. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

C. Findings — Federal Award Programs 

2022-01)/ Reporting Timely Submission 

Reporting 
• 97.036 Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters), Grant # 

FEMA-LA-DR 4458; Grant # FEMA-LA-DR 1786; Grant # FEMA-LA-DR 4611; 
Grant # FEMA LA-DR 4080: 

Ouestioned Costs: For the purposes of this finding. there were no questioned costs. 

C'rileria. Quarterly reports should he submitted to the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and 
Ernergency Preparedness (GOHSEP) through the Louisiana Public Assistance (mime system for each 
open disaster grant no later than 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

Condition: Six out of sixteen quarterly reports required to be submitted in 2022 was submitted 31-192 
days late. These quarterly reports are cornpleted and submitted by contracted consulting firrns engaged 
by the Parish flit grant management functions. 

Universe/Population: A total population of sixteen quarterly reports were required to be tiled during the 
fiscal year (4 quarterlv reports for 4 disasters) All sixteen reports were reviewed during audit procedures 
to determine if they were timely filed, and it was detennined that six of these reports were not in 
compliance with the timely reporting requirements 

Cause: The Parish did not have adequate processes and controls in place to ensure that the con',ulting 
firms are preparing and submittine the required quarterly reports to GOHSEP. 

Effect. The lack of controls rdated to ensuring that these quarterly reports are completed and suhmitted 
timely places the Parish in noncompliance with the reporting requirements of the Puhlic Assistance — 
Disaster Grants program, which could lead to the Parish being unahle to receive additional funding 
under the program 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish implement controls related to ensunne that the 
contracted consulting firms are completing and submitting quarterly reports on a timely basis. 

eiew of Responsible Official.  Manaaement concurs with this finding that quarterly reporting was done 
late, mainly due to staff turnover. Of note, 2 of the disasters had occurred in 2008 and 2019 and the 
reports had zero activiry to report as they are in holding phase waiting for the Federal government to 
close out the programs. The Parish had become aware of these delinquent tilings prior to this audit and 
had addressed the situation. Going forward, the Parish will ensure that all reports are filed in a timely 
manner. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
Fur the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

B. Findings — Financial Statement Audit 

2021-001 Local Government Budget Act 

Criteria. Louisiana Revised Starute 38:1311 requires the governmental entity to revise its hudget when 
total revenues or expenditures and other sources or uses plus projected revenues or expenditures and 
other sources or uses for the remainder of the year, within a fund. are failing to meet total hudgeted 
revenues or expenditures and other sources or uses unfavorably by tive percent or more. 

Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1305 requires governments to prepare and adopt a comprehensive budeet 
presenting a complete financial plan each fiscal year for the General Fund and each Special Revenue 
Fund 

Condition: Based on the last budget adopted by the Parish prior to the end if its fiscal year. the General 
Fund, Road and Bridges Fund, and Levee Protection Fund had unfavorable budget variations. 

The Parish did not prepare and adopt a comprehensive budget for the Hurricane IDA Fund and the 
American Recovery Plan Fund, which are special revenue funds. 

Canse: Based upon prior practice. the Parish adopted its final amended bucket after the fiscal year end 
which adjusted for the unfavorahle variances. 

The Parish may not be aware that the budget law requirement was applicable to the tuml 

Effect: The Parish is not in compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Budget Act. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish beuin to adopt budget amendments for any funds with 
unfavorable variances of 5% or more prior to the end of the fiscal year. 

The Parish should prepare and adopt a budget for the Hurricane IDA Fund and the American Recovery 
Plan Fund in accordance with the statute. 

View() fResponsible Official: Manacement believes that this finding is this audit firm's interpretation of 
the Louisiana Revised Statute as there are no written laws settine out when you have to amend the final 
budget. Additionally, the Parish has remained consistent with their budget adoption practices over the 
past fifteen (15) plus years and multiple auditing firms during those years have approved the Parish's 
practice of adoptinu tinal budgeted figures shortly after the calendar year had closed. Management is of 
the helief that the Parish's usual and customary modus operandi was acting in accordance with the 
Parish's Home Rule Charter, which does allow budget amendments to occur after the calendar year end. 
Accordingly, the customary year end budget after the close of the year had been prepared and adopted, 
which had brought all budgeted funds within the 5% threshold. 

Of note, due to Hurricane Ida and the amount of time the Parish was closed and Parish employees were 
displace, Management would have heen unahle to prepare any such amendments prior to the end of the 
calendar year. Additionally, as this finding was not provided to the Parish until after the close of the 
2022 year, the Parish was unable to rectify this situation for 2022. Going forward, the Parish will amend 
the budget prior to the close of the year. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
Fur the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

B. Findings — Financial Statement Audit (contlnued) 

2021-01)1 Local Government Budget Act (contimied) 

Current Status: The recommendation has not been fully implemented. Thus, the findine is repeated as 
finding 2022-001 

2021-002 Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Criteria: A strong control environment should ensure that the Parish maintains accurate records of 
property, plant, and equiprnent, n hich reflect assets acquired and disposed of and the cost of these items. 

Condition: The property, plant, and equipment records were not properly reconciled to the general 
ledger accounts. 

Cause. The Parish underwent a property, plant, and equipment software conversion during the year. 
After the conversion was completed, the Parish had difficulty reconciling the property. plant. and 
equipment records to the general ledger accounts. 

Effect: The subsidiary ledger did not reconci le to the general ledger as a result of the conversion, which 
led to significant modifications by management to the property, plant and equipment schedules initially 
provided during the audit. 

Recommendation • The process for recording property and equipment should be enhanced to ensure that 
all capital assets are timely reconciled to the property and equipment records. 

View of Responsible Official: lv1anagement concurs with this tinding as the Parish had brought forth the 
reconciliation differences durine the course of their annual procedures. Through training, the Parish has 
learned how to better utilize and identify fixed assets as the requisition level and will maintain the fixed 
asset subsidiary ledger throughout the year. 

Current Status: The recommendation has been implemented as described above. Thus, the finding is 
considered resolved. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL 
LAPLACE, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
Fur the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

C. Findings — Federal Award Programs 

2021-003 Timely Filing of the Federal Data Collection Form 

Criteria: The Office of Manacement and Budget (OMB) designated the Census Bureau as the National 
Clearinghouse (or Federal Audit Clearinahouse (FAC) for the receipt of sinale Audit Reports from state 
and local governments (later to include nonprofit oraanizanons). In this capacity, the Census Bureau 
serves as the central collection point and repository for audit reports prepared and submitted under 
provisions of the Sinale Audit Act of 1984 (amended in 1996), and Uniform Guidance. States, local 
governments, Indian Tribes or Tribal Oreanizations, institutions of higher education (IHEs), and 
nonprotit urganizations that annually expend%750,000 or rnore in federal awards must pertbrin a Single 
Audit and complete Form SFSAC for every fiscal period during which they meet the reporting dollar 
threshold. The central collection point for single audit reports is the Federal Audit Clearing House 
Internet Data Entry System (IDES) wehsite. Without any waivers. the report is due no later than nine 
months after an entity's year end. 

Condition: The single audit report with the Federal Audit Clearing House was not submined in the 
tirneline established by regulation. 

Cansc: The Parish was xeverely impacted hy Hurricane Ida on August 29. 2021. The Parish has been 
focused on recovery efforts. There was significant turnover in the Parish's finance department caused hy 
hurricane recox ery efforts. As a result of staffing challenges experienced nationally, the auditor has been 
significantly impacted hy staffing tunio‘ cr. 

Effect: The lack of timely Mina may result in delays or denial of federal grant assistance. 

Recommendation .  The federal data collection form should be filed tirnely. 

View of Responsible Official. Manacement is aware of the annual filing requirement of the Federal Data 
Collection Forrn. Louisiana Legislatix e Auditor had approved multiple extensions due to Hunicane Ida 
recovery efforts and staff shortages Due to these circumstances the audit could not be completed within 
the 9-month allocation provided by the Federal Audit Clearinghouse 

The Parish recognizes that the audit must be completed and submined to the FAC within 9 months of the 
year ending. 

Current Steams: The recommendation has been implemented as descrihed above. Thus, the finding is 
considered resolved 
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A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT  
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of St. John the Baptist Parish Council and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures enumerated in Schedule A on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for 
the fiscal period January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. St. John the Baptist Parish Council's 
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on 
the C/C areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period January 1, 2022 through December 31, 
2022. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate 
for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not 
address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report 
and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for 
their purposes. 

The procedures we performed, and the associated fmdings are summarized in the attached Schedule A, 
which is an integral part of this report. 

We were engaged by St. John the Baptist Parish Council to perform this agreed-upon procedures 
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing 
Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective 
of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of St. John the Baptist Parish Council and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures 
engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

foollauxtaiLA kdtaw:titAd 
Metairie, Louisiana 
September 29, 2023 
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St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED RESULTS 

December 31, 2022 
Schedule A 

The procedures performed and the results thereof are set forth below. The procedure is stated first, followed 
by the results of the procedure presented in italics. If the item being subjected to the procedures is positively 
identified or present, then the results will read "no exception noted ." or jar step 13 "we peiyarmcd the 
procedure and discussed the re.sult.s with management".  If not, then a description of the exception ensues. 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the tbllowing categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations): 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the hud2et. 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Purchasing, including t 1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list: (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders: (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and ( 5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes 

No f\t'8ptiCNI.S noted 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Receipts/collections. including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation) 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing. (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records. including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee 
rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

No exceptions noted. 

vi. Contracting, including ( 1 j types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

No exceptions noted. 
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St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED RESULTS 

December 31, 2022 
Schedule A 

vii. Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar threshokls by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

No exceptions noted. 

‘iii. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel canh, purchase cards, if applicable). including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled. (2) allowable husiness uses, (3) documentation requirements. (4) required 
approvers of statements, and (5) rnonitoring card usage (e.g.. determining the reasonableness of 
fuel card purchases). 

No exceptions noted. 

ix. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1 111-1 121. 
(2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics 
violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all 
employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

No exceptions noted. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure;EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements 

No exceptions noted. 

xi. Information Technology Disaster Recoveiy/Business Continuity. including (I) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups. (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) penodic testing verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems. (5) timely application of all in. ailable system and software 
patches. updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

No exceptions noted. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42.342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) amival employee training, and (3) annual reporting,. 

No exceptions noted. 

2) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Obtain and inspect the board. finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the tiscal period, and: 

i. Observe whether the boardifinance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the hoard's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent 
document. 

No exceptions noted. 
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St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED RESULTS 

December 31, 2022 
Schedule A 

ii. Ft-tr those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the tninutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund. quarterly 
hudeet-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget-to-actual. at a 
minimum, on all special revenue funds. 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. For governmental entities, ohtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassiped fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the tiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the 
general fund. 

The general "rind did not have a negative/mid balance in the prior year audit report. 

iv. Observe whether the boarditinance committee received written updates of the progress of resolving 
audit finding{ s), according to management's correctil, e action plan at each meeting until the 
findings are considered fullv resolved. 

The procedure is not applicable us the entity received its prior year audit report afler the end of 
the cumnt fiscal period 

3) Bank Reconciliations 

A. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the tiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account. and observe that. 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closine date (e g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

Of the 5 bank reconciliations obtained. 5 were not prepared within 2 months of the statement 
closing date. 

ii. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a hoard member 
who does not handle cash. post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., 
initialed and dated, electronicallv logged); and 

No exceptions noted. 
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St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED RESULTS 

December 31, 2022 
Schedule A 

Managernent has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling iterns that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

C)f the 5 hank accounts sclected. 1 hank reconciliation hud reconciling items that have been 
outstanding jiir more than 12 months There was no documentation evidencing that these 
reconciling items were researched .Nr poyper disposition 

4) Collections (excluding electronic funds transf'en) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites  for the fiscal penod where deposits for cash:checks;money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

.4 listing qf deposit .TifeS 14'05 provided and included a total of 5 deposit sites. No exceptions Imre noted 
as u result of perPrining this procedure. 

From the listing provided. we selected all deposit sites and performed the procedures below. 

B. For each deposit site selected. obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (e.g. 5 
collection locations tor 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect Voitten policies and procedure, relating to 
employee job duties (if there are no wntten policies or procedures, then inquire of employees about 
their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each 
collection location such that: 

.4 listing of collection locations Pr each deposit site selected in pmcedure #4 was provided und 
included a total of 5 collection locations. No cm.eptions were noted as u result of poPrining this 
procedure. 

Firm each the listings provided. we randomly selected one collection location for euch deposit site 
Review of the Entity's written policies and procedures or inquiry with employee(s)regardingjob duties 
was polOrmed m order to perform the procedures below. 

i. Employees responsible ti.)r cash collections do not share cash dmversirrgisters, 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing:making bank 
deposits, unless another employee!official is responsible tbr reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit: 

No evceptions noted. 
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St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED RESULTS 

December 31, 2022 
Schedule A 

Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection entries 
to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee. official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit: and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. The employee( s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger andlor subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and'or agency ft.ind additions, is (are) not also responsihle for collecting 
cash, unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Ohtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance pohcy for theft was in force during the fiscal 
period. 

No exceptions noted. 

I). Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations 
procedure g3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). 
Alternatnely. the practitioner may use a source dociunent other than bank statements when selecting 
the deposit date.s fiw testing such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. 
Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

We randomly selected two deposit dates fin. each the 5 bank accounts selected in pmcedure We 
obtain& supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and perliwnied the procedures below. 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-n umhered 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts. system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted 

Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions noted. 
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St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED RESULTS 

December 31, 2022 
Schedule A 

iv. Obser‘ e that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No eveeptions noted. 

5) Non-payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimburseme)rts, and petty 

cash purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

The listing of locations that process payments jiir the fiscal pertod was provided. No exceptions were 
noted as a result of perfimning this procedure. 

From the listing Invvided, thc were 5 locations identified We selected the 5 identified locations and 
perfbrined the pmcedures below 

B. For each location selected under #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, then inquire of employees about their 
job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

The listing of employees involved with non-payroll purchasing and payinent functions for euch parment 
processing location selected m procedure #6' was provided. No exceptions were noted us a result of 
pciforming this procedure 

Review ofthe Entity's written policies and procedures or inquily with emploveea) regardingjob duties 
petlinined rn miff to pciform the procedures below. 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order or making the purchase: 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. At least two employees are invol‘ed in processing and approving payrnents to vendors, 

No exceptions noted. 
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St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED RESULTS 

December 31, 2022 
Schedule A 

The employee responsible for processing payments is prohihited from adding:modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files; 

No evceptions noted. 

iv. Either the employee!official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gn es the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and 

No evceptions noted. 

v. Only employeesiofficials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) 
of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), acetonic funds transfer (EFT), wire 
transfer, or some other electronic means. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. For each location selected under k5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location. obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction and 

hsting non-pajtoll disbursements for each papnent processing locahon selected in procedures 48 
was provided related to the reporting period. No exceptions were noted as a result cfperfmning this 
procedure. 

Front each of thc listings provided, we randomly selected 5 disbursements and perPrmed the 
procedures below. 

i. C)hserve whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the related 
original itemized invoice. and that supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included 
on the invoice were received by the entity, and 

No evceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g initialdate, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B above, as applicable. 

No evceptions noted. 
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AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED RESULTS 
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Schedule A 

I). Using the entity's main operating account and the rnonth selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 
#3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if 
less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons 
authorized to disburse funds (e.g.. sinn checks) per the entity's policy. and (b) approved hy the required 
number of authorized signers per the entity's policy Note: If no electronic payments were niade from 
the main operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative month 
andlor account thr testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

No exceptions noted. 

6) Credit Curds/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit card.s, fuel cards, and purchase 
cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

_4 listing 4 cards was provuled. No exceptions were noted as a result 4petforming this procedure. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were 
used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement). Obtain supporting documentation, 
and 

From the listing providcd. we randomlv selected 5 cards (3 credit cards and 2 fuel cards) uscd in the 
fiscal period. We randomly selected onc monthly statement fi)r each 4 the 5 cards selected and 
petyarmed the procedures noted below. 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined stateinent and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit:debit card purchases. exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved) 
by someone other than the authorized card hokler (those instances requiring such approval that may 
constrain the legal authority of certain puhlic officials, such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act 
inunicipality, should not be reported; and 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No eiceptims noted. 
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C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #6B ahove. excluding 
fiiel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and 
ohtain supporting documentation for the transactions t e.g.. each card should have I() transactions 
subject to inspection). For each transaction_ observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the businessipublic 
purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For 
missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe whether 
management had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt 
statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

Ile randomly selected 17 transactions jOr the 3 credit cards in procedure #12 (2 fuel curds excluded) 
and pedbrined the specified procedures. No exceptions notcd 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transaction.$) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement formsprepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected. 

The hsting qf travel and travel-related expense reimbursements was provided for the fiscal period. No 
excephons vivre noted as a result of perjarming dm procedure. 

From the livung provided, we randomly selected 5 reimbursements and perfinmed the pmcedures 
below. 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no rnore 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.esa 

Not applicable u.s none the five reimbursements selected jiir tevting used a per diem 

ii. If reimbursed using actual costs. observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; 

No exceptions noted 

Obsene that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business-public purpose 
(for ineal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by "Wntten Policies and Procedures", procedure 
#1A(vii), and 

No avceptions noted. 
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iv. Obsene that each reimbursement was reviewed and appro‘ ed. in writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 

No erceptions noted. 

8) Contracts 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements.contracts for professional services. materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period 
Alternatively. the practitioner may use un equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the listine, excluding the practitioner's contract, and 

An active vendor list for the fiscal period was provided. No exceptions were noted a.s a result q. 
perliwining this piwedure. 

From the listing provided. we randomly selected 5 cowmen and performed the procedmes below. 

i. Obsene whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids. advertised), if required by law: 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body board. if required by policy or 
law te.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

No exceptions noted. 

If the contract was amended (e.g.. change order). observe that the origmal contract terms provided 
for such an amendment and that amendments were niade in compliance with the contract terms 
(e.g., if appro‘ al is required for any amendment, the documented approval); and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting imoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the imoice and related 
payment agreed to the temis and conditions of the contract. 

We randomly selected 1 payment jrom the 5 conmicts selected and per:farmed the specified 
procedures. No exceptions noted 
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9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees:elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listin2 is complete. Randomly select 5 employees.officials, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries:pay nnes in the personnel 
files. 

A listing of employees/ekcied officials employed dnring the fiscal year was provided. NO exceptions 
were noted as u resnit olpeiforming this procedure. 

Froin the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 employees:Officials and pofinwied the specified 
procedures. No exceptions noted. 

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees:officials selected under 
procedure ft9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and 

We randomly selected 1 pay period during the fiscal period and performed the procedures below jiir 
the 5 employemofficials selected. 

i. Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their dadv attendance and leave (e.2., 
vacation. sick, compensatory). 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials.. 

No exceptions noted. 

Observe that any leave accrued or taken durinr2 the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative 
leave records.. 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

No exceptions noted. 
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C. Obtain a listing uf those employees or officials that received termination payrnents during thr fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomlv select two employees or 
officials and obtain rdated docurnentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination 
payment calculations and the entity's policy on temunation payments. Agree the hours to the 
employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or official's 
authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the termination payment 
to entity policy 

.4 listing of employeesqlicials receiving termination papnents during the fiscal period was provided. 
No exceptions were noted as a result of perfOrming this pnicedure. 

From the listing provided. we randomly selected 2 employees/Officials and peifiirmed the specified 
procedures. No exceptions noted. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll related 
ainounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retireinent contributions, health insurance premiums, garnishments, 
workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms ha% e been filed. by 
required deadlines. 

No exceptions noted. 

10)Erhics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees:officials from procedure - Payroll and Personnel" procedure 
#9A, above obtain ethics documentation fi-oin management, and 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employeesofficial completed one hour 
of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170: and 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Obsene whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each employee and 
official were notified of anv changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as 
applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

13. Inquire anitor observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required hy R.S. 
42:1170. 

No exceptions noted. 

- 13 - 



St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED RESULTS 

December 31, 2022 
Schedule A 

11) I)ebt Service 

A. Obtain a hsting of bonds notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing is conlplete. Select all bonds:notes on the listing, ohtain supporting documentation. and 
observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each bond, note issued as required by 
Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

No exceptions noted. 

B. Obtain a listing of bondslnotes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randornly select one bond note, inspect deht covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments. and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required hy debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived 
asset funds. or other flands required hy the deht covenants). 

_4 listing of hondsirroter outstanding at the end qf the fiscal period was provided. No exceptions were 
notcd as a result of perliuming this procedure. 

From the listmg provided. we randomly selected I bond note and perfOtmed the vet-died procedures. 
No exceptions 11Ok11. 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation., and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attornev of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required by 
R.S. 24.523. 

No exceptions noted. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required hy R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste. or abuse of puhlic funds. 

No exceptions noted. 

13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with managenient." 

i. Ohtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data ( if 
there is no wntten documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical 
data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, (h) was not stored 
on the government's local server or network. and (c) was encrypted. 

perfiyrmed the procedure ond discussed the results mai management. 
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ii. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has testediverified that its backups 
can he restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible tor 
testing'venfying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test verification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

He per:firmed the procedure and discussed the results with management 

iii. Obtain a listine of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the ‘endor. 

perfimned the procedure and drscussed the results ulth management. 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list of 
terminated employees obtained in procedure 9C-. Observe evidenced that the selected terniinated 
employees ha‘e been remmed or disabled from the network. 

perprmed the procedure and discussed the results with management 

14) Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees. officials from "Payroll and Personnel" procedure #9A, obtain 
sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation 
demonstrates each employee.official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during 
the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

No exceptions nowt/. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website 
(or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

The notice was posted on the Entity's website and in a conspicuous location on the Police Jury's 
premises 

c. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, obsene that the report 
was dated on or hefore February 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable requirements of 
R.S. 42.344: 

i. Numher and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements, 

No exceptions mita/. 

ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency: 

No exceptions noted 
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Ili. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

No exceptions noted. 

Number of complaints in which the ti ng of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or correetive 
action; and 

No exceptions noted. 

Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

No exceptiom noted. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH 

From the Office of Chief Financial Officer Robert Figuero, Jr. 

July 26, 2023 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
1600 North 3rd Street 
P.O. Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

And 

Postlethwaite & Netterville 
One Galleria Boulevard 
Suite 2100 
Metairie, LA 70001 

RE: Management's Response to Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
For the Year Ending December 31, 2022 
St. John the Baptist Parish Council 

Dear Sirs: 

Following are Management's responses to exceptions noted in the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures for the year 
ending December 31, 2022. 

Bank Reconciliations - C3a — Bank reconciliations not being prepared within 2 months 

Management's Response: 

Mid-2021 the Finance Department switched from a manual bank reconciliation process to a computerized one which 
ties into the Parish's general ledger system. As part of this implementation, all reconciliations for the past 3 years as 
well as the current ones performed in 2021 had to be recreated in the computer software. This, along with the lingering 
effects of Hurricane Ida which caused the Parish to be closed for an extended period, as well as employees taking 
leaves of absences to rebuild their homes, compounded the time needed to complete the conversion and return to 
normal operations within Finance. Due to these circumstances, not all fund's current bank statements were able to be 
reconciled within the 2 month time frame as required. Mitigating controls during this time included the CFO opening 
and reviewing the bank statements looking for anomalies. Our staff has been working diligently and to date this 
problem has been rectified. 
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Bank Reconciliations - C3c — Outstanding items greater than 12 months 

Management's Response: 

As stated above, the Finance Department had focused on the conversion from a manual to a computerized bank 
reconciliation process, which was extremely labor intensive and caused some smaller items that would normally be 
addressed to be postponed. Effects from Hurricane Ida which resulted in the closure of the Parish as well as employee 
absences were a contributing factor. Our staff has been working diligently and we anticipate the return to policy as 
soon as possible. 

Sincerely, 

Robert Figuero, Jr. 
Chief Financial Officer 
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30th Floor, Energy Centre, 1100 Poydras Street — New Orleans, LA 70163 
One Galieria Blvd, Suite 2100 — Metairie, LA 70001 

504-837-5990 Phone — 504-834-3609 Fax — pncpa.com 

A Professional Accounting Cryporation 

Page 1 of 3 

September 29, 2023 

The Honorable President 
and Members of the Council 
St. John the Baptist Parish Council 
LaPlace, Louisiana 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the St. John the Baptist Parish Council (the 
"Parish") for the year ended December 31, 2022, we considered the Parish's internal controls and compliance with 
laws and regulations having a material effect on financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal 
control structure or on compliance. 

However, during our audit, we became aware of the following matters that are opportunities for improving 
financial reporting, refining policies and procedures, and enhancing compliance with laws and regulations. The 
following paragraphs summarize our comments and suggestions regarding those matters. This letter does not affect 
our report dated September 29, 2023 on the financial statements of the Parish. 

Inventory Counts and Recordkeeping 

During our review of inventory, it was noted that, due to accounting system limitations, a 
complete and accurate inventory listing could not be provided subsequent to year-end. 
These reports are only available on a "live" basis. Additionally, supporting 
documentation could not be provided for some of the older inventory items to validate 
the system calculation of cost. 

2022-1 

Condition: 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish implement policies and procedures to ensure that 
complete and accurate inventory listings are generated as of the close of the fiscal year. 
Additionally, we recommend the Parish determine whether supporting documentation 
can be obtained to support how costs are determined within the inventory module. 

Management's 
Response:  

The Parish has now added running year-end inventory reports to the items that must be 
run at the end of every calendar year. 

The inventory module calculates the cost of inventory on the average cost basis. Every 
item that is purchased is added to the calculation and the average cost is then updated by 
the module in the internal table. When an inventory report is run, the average cost at 
that moment is what is provided. There is no way to manually maintain physical items of 
evely item purchased and to manually calculate (even by utilizing excel) what the 
average cost would be for all items in the inventory system to tie the figures to the report 
at year end. 
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2022-2 Theft of Public Assets  

Condition: Louisiana Revised Statute 14:67 defines theft as the misappropriation or taking anything 
of economic value which belongs to another, either without the consent of the other to the 
misappropriation or taking, or by means of fraudulent conduct, practices, or 
representations. Instances of misappropriation were identified by Parish staff and are 
described in Attachment A. The instances were reported to the Legislative Auditor. The 
instances were detected by Parish personnel. 

Recommendation: We commend Parish staff for detecting these instances and for taking corrective action. 
We recommend the Parish continue its prosecution and\or pursuit of these matters. 

Management's 
Response: The Parish remains diligent on maintaining proper internal controls and identi,n)ing 

opportunities where misappropriations may occur. The Parish will always report any 
misappropriations to the proper authorities. 

We have discussed these comments and suggestions with management, and we would be pleased to discuss 
them in further detail at your convenience. We would also welcome any opportunity to perform any additional 
study of these matters or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. We would also like to thank the 
Parish staff for their cooperation with us during the performance of the audit. 

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the St. John the Baptist Parish Council, 
management of the St. John the Baptist Parish Council, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

kJtoftimik 
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS  

2021-1 Cvbersecurity Training 

('ondition: During our review of the Information Technology ("IT") pro2ram and related controls, it 
was represented that the Parish does not currently provide or require any regular 
employee training for cybersecurity such as phishing, encryption. data security, etc. In 
the current IT environment facing entities, best practices indicate that initial and recurring 
training should be performed in order to educate employees as to the IT related risks and 
steps they can implement to protect the Parish from cyhersecurity attacks. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish implement policies and procedures to provide for 
appropriate employee training to address cybersecurity risks. 

Current Status: Resolved. 

2021-2 Inventory Counts and Nature of Items Included in Inventor.'  

Condition: During our consideration of inventory which included a scan of the inventory listing, it 
was noted that there are supply items included in the inventory list for tracking purposes, 
hut which are typically expensed as purchased Additionally, it was noted that, as a result 
of the impacts of Hurricane Ida, no inventory count was able to be perfbrmed during 
2021 This resulted in a difference between the halance on inventory listing and the 
balance recorded. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish expense normal supply items and develop other systems 
to track the stock levels, if needed. Additionally, we recommend that the Parish return to 
regular inventory count procedures going forward and that as part of this process, regular 
reconciliations are performed between the inventory listings and the amount recorded on 
the trial balance. 

Current Status: 

2021-3 

Condition: 

Resolved. 

Theft of Public Assrts 

Louisiana Revised Statute 14:67 defines theft as the misappropriation or taking anything 
of economic value which belongs to another, either without the consent of the other to the 
misappropriation or taking. or by means of fraudulent conduct, practices. or 
representations. Instances of misappropriation were identitied hy Parish staff and are 
described in Attachment A. The instances were reported to the Legislative Auditor. The 
instances were detected by Parish personnel. 

Recommendation: We commend Parish staff for detecting these instances and for taking corrective action. 
We recommend the Parish continue its prosecution and\or pursuit of these marters 

Current Status: Not resolved. See current year 201 /- /. 
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